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Nicholas A. Toumpas Fax: 603-271-4506  TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Commissioner

Marcella Jordan Bobinsky
Acting Director

May 26, 2015
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services,
Bureau of Population Health and Community Services, Maternal and Child Health Section, to exercise
renewal options and enter into amendments to existing agreements with the vendors listed below to
provide family planning services, by increasing the price limitation by $2,020,608.52, from
$2,196,074.00 to $4,216,682.52, and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to June 30,
2017, effective July 1, 2015 or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later.
Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreements on June 19, 2013 (Item #94). 68%
Federal Funds, 32% General Funds.

Summary of contracted amounts by vendor:

Vendor Location Current Increase / Modified

Amount Decrease Amount
Ammonoosuc Community Health Services Littleton $ 200,914.85|9% 0.00|%$200,914.85
hcn‘;’r‘:{r‘“n‘;’;'lt(y&%'r“’t"‘ezrfr?fm Belknap and Concord |$ 431,864.00|$ 431,864.00|$ 863,728.00
Concord Hospital, Inc. Concord $ 253,155.74|% 259,098.00(% 512,253.74
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. Berlin $ 133,331.29|% 157,271.18|% 290,602.47
Goodwin Community Health Somersworth |$ 262,334.04 |$ 209,921.24|$ 472,255.28
Indian Stream Health Center, Inc. Colebrook |$ 86,133.35|$ 79,145.74|$% 165,279.09
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Newmarket |$ 395,136.48 |3 462,603.72|$ 857,740.20
Manchester Community Health Center Manchester |$ 107,171.73|$ 100,359.26|% 207,530.99
Weeks Medical Center, Inc. Lancaster |$ 115,329.58|% 131,557.78|% 246,887.36
White Mountain Community Health Center Conway |$ 210,702.94|$ 188,787.60|% 399,490.54
TOTAL:| $2,196,074.00|$2,020,608.52 |$4,216,682.52

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017, upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.
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05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY
SERVICES, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, and TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

See attachment for financial details

EXPLANATION

This Request seeks to continue nine (9) of ten (10) original agreements that provide a
continuum of affordable, comprehensive and accessible reproductive healthcare services to low-
income women, men, and adolescents in New Hampshire, less the geographic areas of Cheshire and
Rockingham Counties, and the towns of Lebanon and Claremont. The tenth contractor, Ammonoosuc
Community Health Services, chose not to continue to provide this service due to low service demand
within its practice’s client base after several families obtained health insurance coverage under the
Affordable Care Act. As a result, the Department worked with Week’s Medical Center to absorb the
remaining service demand in the region and adjusted the Week's Medical Center agreement
accordingly.

Family planning services include: health examinations; screenings for cancer and sexually
transmitted diseases (STD) including testing for Chlamydia and Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);
reproductive health education including healthy relationships and abstinence education; awareness of
and access to safe and effective contraception at low or no cost; and health counseling that promotes
healthy, planned pregnancies.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, there would be a significant
decrease in the availability of quality reproductive health services for adolescents, minorities and iow-
income women and men in New Hampshire. In SFY 2014, 6,176 people, who lived below 250% of the
federal poverty level, utilized these services. This represents 77% of the clients seen at Family
Planning clinics. New Hampshire could face increased long-term costs associated with health care
and social services due to unintended pregnancies without the investment of both federal and general
funds.

These agreements were awarded as the result of a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ web site from January 9,
2013 through February 26, 2013. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Governor and Executive Council letters that originally approved these
agreements, both the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section and the original agreements contained
the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. Because each
of these vendors has continually well-performed its contractual responsibilities, the Department is
exercising this option.
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The following performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreements:

The percent of clients under 100% FPL in the family planning caseload.

The percent of clients under 250% FPL in the family planning caseload.

The percent of clients under 20 years of age in the family planning caseload.

The percent of clients served in the family planning program that were Medicaid recipients
at the time of their last visit.

The percent of clients who are males in the family planning caseload.

The proportion of women <25 screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.

The percent of family planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education that
abstinence is a viable method/form of birth control.

The percent of family planning clients of reproductive age who receives preconception counseling.
The percent of female family planning clients under age 25 screened for Chlamydia infection.

The percent of women with a positive CT test that are treated within 14-30 days of the
specimen collection.

The percent of all patients diagnosed with Chlamydia who were re-screened 3-4 months
after completion of treatment.

The percentage of family planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction education.
Community education, outreach and partnership plan: this measure calls for face-to-face
meetings with agencies or individuals intended to increase linkages between the family
planning program and key partners in the community.

Area served: Statewide, less the geographic areas of Cheshire and Rockingham counties, and
the towns of Lebanon and Claremont.

Source of Funds: 50% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Office of Population Affairs, Family Planning Services, Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance
Number, 93.217, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #FPHPA016063, 18% Federal Funds
from the US Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families,
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance Number
93.558, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 1502NHTANF, and 32% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

7 N epes,

Marcella Jordan Bobinsky
Acting Director

Approved by:bx MA\ 7 §

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF
PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, FAMILY PLANNING

PROGRAM
SFY 2016 & SFY 2017 - 61.2% Federal Funds and 38.8% General Funds
CFDA#  93.217 FAIN# FPHPAD16063
FUNDER Title X Family Planning
Ammonoosuc Community Health Services, Inc. (Vendor #177755-8B003) PO # 1031769
. Increased .

. Class / . Current Modified Revised
Fiscal Year Account Class Title Job Number Budget (D:z:iizfd) Modified Budget
SFY 2014 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 67,840.56 - 67,840.56
SFY 2015 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 86,968.29 - 86,968.29
SFY 2016 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - -

Sub Total 154,808.85 - 154,808.85
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203-B003) PO # 1030669
. Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bewsed
, Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 [102-500734 Contracts for Program Sves 90080203 170,618.00 - 170,618.00
SFY 2015 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 170,618.00 - 170,618.00
SFY 2016  |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 170,618.00 170,618.00
SFY 2017 [102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 170,618.00 170,618.00
Sub Total 341,236.00 341,236.00 682,472.00
Manchester Community Health (Véndor #157274-B001) PO # 1042115
. increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bewsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 44,651.87 - 44,651.87
SFY 2015 ]102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 52,639.86 - 52,639.86
SFY 2016 [102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 45,239.63 45,239.63
SFY 2017 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 45,239.63 45,239.63
Sub Total 97,291.73 90,479.26 187,770.99
Concord Hospital, Inc. (Vendor #177653-B011) PO # 1031463
. Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) : Bevnsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 90,574.74 - 90,574.74
SFY 2015 [102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 96,517.00 - 96,517.00
SFY 2016 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 96,517.00 96,517.00
SFY 2017 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 96,517.00 96,517.00
Sub Total 187,091.74 193,034.00 380,125.74
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. (Vendor #155327-B001) PO # 1031464
. Increased .
. Class / . Current Modified Revised
Fiscal Year Account Class Title Job Number Budget (D:(:T:iii?d) Modified Budget
SFY 2014 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 53,232.43 : - 53,232.43
SFY 2015 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 55,376.86 i - 55,376.86
SFY 2016  1102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 66,274.59 66,274.59
SFY 2017 [{102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 66,274.59 66,274.59
Sub Total ' 108,609.29 132,549.18 241,158.47
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Goodwin Community Health (Vendor #154703-B001) PO # 1031471
. Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bevnsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 [102-500734 Contracts for Program Sves 90080203 110,966.28 - 110,966.28
SFY 2015 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 115,689.76 - 115,689.76
SFY 2016 1102-500734 Contracts for Program Svecs 90080203 - 87,121.62 87,121.62
SFY 2017 1102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 87,121.62 87,121.62
Sub Total 226,656.04 174,243.24 400,899.28
Indian Stream Health Center, Inc. (Vendor #165274-B001) PO # 1031516
. Increased .
Fiscal Year | 135S/ Class Title Job Number | Curent Modified}  p o ced) Revised
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svecs 90080203 25,155.18 - 25,155.18
SFY 2015 ]102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 40,918.17 - 40,918.17
SFY 2016 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Sves 90080203 - 29,542.87 29,542.87
SFY 2017 }102-500734 Contracts for Program Svecs 90080203 - 29,542.87 29,542.87
Sub Total 66,073.35 59,085.74 125,159.09
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (Vendor #177677-R001) PO #1031731
Class / Current Modified| ncreased Revised
Fiscal Year Account Class Title Job Number Budget (Difr:iiz?d) Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 167,684.74 - 167,684.74
SFY 2015 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 168,013.74 - 168,013.74
SFY 2016 1102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 201,582.86 201,582.86
SFY 2017 1102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 201,582.86 201,582.86
Sub Total 335,698.48 403,165.72 738,864.20
Weeks Medical Center, Inc. (Vendor #177171-R001) PO # 1031629
oo . Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bevnsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 44,387.33 - 44,387.33
SFY 2015 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 46,088.25 - 46,088.25
SFY 2016 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 4 53,351.89 53,351.89
SFY 2017 |102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 53,351.89 53,351.89
Sub Total 90,475.58 106,703.78 197,179.36
White Mountain Community Health Center (Vendor #174170-R001) PO #1031631
. Increased ;
Fiscal Year | Clss/ Class Title Job Number | Curment Modified| e o aced) Revised
: Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
- SFY 2014 {102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 89,767.87 - 89,767.87
SFY 2015 }102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 98,365.07 - 98,365.07
SFY 2016 [102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 83,108.80 83,108.80
SFY 2017 1102-500734 Contracts for Program Svcs 90080203 - 83,108.80 83,108.80
Sub Total 188,132.94 166,217.60 354,350.54
Sub Total 1,796,074.00 1,666,714.52 3,462,788.52
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05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF
FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES
SFY 2016 & SFY 2017 - 100% Federal Funds
CFDA#  93.558 FAIN# 1502NHTANF
FUNDER US DHHS, Administration for Children & Families
Ammonoosuc Community Heaith Services, Inc. (Vendor #177755-B003) PO # 1031769
. Increased .
. Class { . Current Modified Revised
Fiscal Year Account Class Title Job Number Budget (Diﬁ;a;::d) Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 23,053.00 - 23,053.00
SFY 2015 [502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 23,053.00 - 23,053.00
SFY 2016 1502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - - -
Sub Total 46,106.00 - '46,106.00
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203-8B003) PO #1031600
. . Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bewsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 {502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 45,314.00 - 45,314.00
SFY 2015 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 45,314.00 - 45.314.00
SFY 2016 [502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 45,314.00 45,314.00
SFY 2017 1502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 45,314.00 45,314.00
Sub Total 90,628.00 90,628.00 181,256.00
Manchester Community Health (Vendor #157274-B001) PO #1042103
. . Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bewsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 4,940.00 - 4,940.00
SFY 2015 [502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 4,940.00 - 4,940.00
SFY 2016 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 4,940.00 4,940.00
SFY 2017 {502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 ‘ - 4,940.00 4,940.00
Sub Total 9,880.00 9,880.00 19,760.00
Concord Hospital, Inc. (Vendor #177653-B011) PO #1031602
Class / Current Modified| ncreased Revised
Fiscal Year Class Title Job Number (Decreased) .
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 33,032.00 - 33,032.00
SFY 2015 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 _33,032.00 - 33,032.00
SFY 2016 }502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 33,032.00 33,032.00
SFY 2017 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 33,032.00 33,032.00
Sub Total 66,064.00 66,064.00 132,128.00
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. (Vendor #155327-B001) PO # 1031604
' . Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Rewsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 ]502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 12,361.00 - 12,361.00
SFY 2015 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 12,361.00 - 12,361.00
SFY 2016 {502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 12,361.00 12,361.00
SFY 2017 ]502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 12,361.00 12,361.00
Sub Total 24,722.00 24,722.00 49,444.00
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Goodwin Community Health (Vendor #154703-B001) PO # 1031605
. Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bewsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 17,839.00 - 17,839.00
SFY 2015 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 17,839.00 - 17,839.00
SFY 2016 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 17,839.00 17,839.00
SFY 2017 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 17,839.00 17,839.00
Sub Total 35,678.00 35,678.00 71,356.00
Indian Stream Health Center, Inc. (Vendor #165274-B001) PO # 1031606
. Increased .
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bevnsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 ]502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 10,030.00 - 10,030.00
SFY 2015 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 10,030.00 - 10,030.00
SFY 2016 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 10,030.00 10,030.00
SFY 2017 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 10,030.00 10,030.00
Sub Total 20,060.00 20,060.00 40,120.00
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (Vendor #177677-R001) PO # 1031608
Class / : Current Modified Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class Title Job Number (Decreased) -
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 29,719.00 - 29,719.00
SFY 2015 }502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 29,719.00 - 29,719.00
SFY 2016 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 29,719.00 29,719.00
SFY 2017 1502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 29,719.00 29,719.00
Sub Total 59,438.00 59,438.00 118,876.00
Weeks Medical Center, inc. (Vendor #177171-R001) PO # 1031609
Class/ Current Modified Increased Revised
Fiscal Year Class Title Job Number (Decreased) -
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 12,427.00 - 12,427.00
SFY 2015 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 12,427.00 - 12,427.00
SFY 2016 {502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 12,427.00 12,427.00
SFY 2017 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 12,427.00 12,427.00
Sub Total 24,854.00 24,854.00 49,708.00
White Mountain Community Health Center (Vendor #174170-R001) PO # 1031612
. Increased -
Fiscal Year Class / Class Title Job Number Current Modified (Decreased) Bewsed
Account Budget Amount Modified Budget
SFY 2014 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 11,285.00 - 11,285.00
SFY 2015 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 11,285.00 - 11,285.00
SFY 2016 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 11,285.00 11,285.00
SFY 2017 |502-500891 Payments to Providers 45030203 - 11,285.00 11,285.00
Sub Total 22,570.00 22,570.00 45,140.00
Sub Total 400,000.00 353,894.00 753,894.00
Total 2,196,074.00 2,020,608.52 4,216,682.52
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G & C APPROVED

* Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

José Thier Montero 1 Date; 6/19/13
Director ! ltem #: 94
§
| May 20, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council ;
State House A i
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 i

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Serv1ces Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services, Maternal and Chxld Health Section, to enter into agreements with
vendors for an amount not to exceed $2,196,074.00 to prov1de family planning services from July 1, 2013 through
June 30, 2015, effective July 1, 2013 or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, wh1chever is later,

through June 30, 2015. : ~—
69.5¢% Fedauk
Summary of contracted amounts by vendor: v . 7. 1Y% O’W‘L
Vendor SFY 2014/2015 Amount
Ammonoosuc Community Health Services, Inc. $200,914.85
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. $431,864.00
Child Health Services A $107,171.73
Concord Hospital, Inc. ‘ $253,155.74
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. $133,331.29
Goodwin Community Health $262,334.04
Indian Stream Health Center, Inc. $86,133.35
Lamprey Health Care, In¢. ' $395,136.48
Weeks Medical Center, Inc. $115,329.58
White Mountain Community Health Center $210,702.94
TOTAL ; , $2,196,074.00
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Funds are anticipated to be available in the follow{ng account in State Fiscal Year 2014-2015 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the futm:je operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further approval from Governor
and Executive Council. |

!
05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM i‘

05-9545-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY, ASSISTANCE, and TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

Please see attachment for financial details

EXPLANATION

The requested action seeks approval of ten agreements to provide a continuum of affordable,
comprehensive and accessible reproductive healthcare serv1'ces to low-income women, men, and adolescents in
the state of New Hampshire, less the geographic areas of Cheshlre and Rockingham Counties, and the towns of

Lebanon and Claremont. f

Family Planning services include: health examinati%)ns; screenings for cancer and sexually transmitted
diseases (STD) including testing for Chlamydia and Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV); reproductive health
education including healthy relationships and abstinence education; awareness of and access to, safe and effective
contraception at low or no cost; and health counseling that promotes healthy, planned pregnancies.

The 2011 Guttmacher Institute publication: “State’ Facts About Title X and Family Planning: New
Hampshire”, reports that in 2008 there were 65,400 women in New Hampshire in need of family
planmng/reproducnve healthcare services. It was estimated that 53% of these women needed public support for
family planning serv1ces as they had no insurance and their i incomes were equal or less than 250% of the Federal
Poverty Guidelines.

Data from the performance measures from Family Planning Programs in State Fiscal Year 2012 illustrate
the success of the program. "

e 7,495 people below 250% of the federal poverty limits were served by Family Planning Programs
offering them reproductive health care and contraceptives, at no or low cost according to their income.
26% of clients served by the family planning program were under 20 years of age.

e 54% of family planning clients under the age of 25 were screened for Chlamydia infections. The national
average is 55%. '

e 97% of women with a positive Chlamydia test were treated within 14-30 days.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorue this request, there would be a significant decrease
in the availability of quality reproductive health services for *adolescents minorities and low-income women and
men in New Hampshire. In SFY 2012, 7,495 people, who lived below 250% of the federal poverty level, utilized

! hitp://www.guttmacher.org/statecenter/title-X/NH. html
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these services. This represents 81% of the clients seen at Férnily Planning clinics. New Hampshire could face
increased long-term costs associated with health care and sorlal services due to unintended pregnancies without
the investment of both federal and general funds.

This contract is awarded as the result of a competiti've bid process. The Division posted a Request for
Proposals on the Department of Health and Human Services’ web site from January 9, 2013 through February 26,
2013.

Ten agencies responded to the request for proposals. An evaluatlon committee of nine reviewers, internal
and external to the Division of Public Health Services, eva]uated the proposals. All reviewers have experience in
managing agreements with vendors with various public health programs or non-profit programs that serve
women, adolescents, or families. Areas of specific expertise include public health infrastructure, family planning,
and maternal and child health services. Reviewers evaluateh proposals consistent with the evaluation criteria
specified in the Request for Proposals. All proposals were determined to be of sufficient quality to receive
funding. The Request for Proposal scoring summary is attached The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals{ Sectlon these competitively procured Agreements
have the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contmgent upon satisfactory dehvery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

I

The following performance measures will be used to rneasure the effectiveness of the agreements.
}

The percent of clients under 100% FPL in the famiily planning caseload.
The percent of clients under 250% FPL in the family planning caseload.
The percent of clients under 20 years of age in the/family planning caseload.

The percent of clients served in the family planmng program that was Medicaid recipients at the time
of their last visit.

The percent of clients who are males in the family{planning caseload.
o The proportion of women <25 screened for Chlam'ydia and tested positive.

e The percent of family planning clients less thafn 18 years of age who received education that
abstinence is a viable method/form of birth control.

e The percent of family planning clients of reproduc%dve age who receives preconception counseling.
e  The percent of female family planning clients under age 25 screened for Chlamydia infection.

e The percent of women with a positive CT test that are treated within 14-30 days of the specimen
collection. '

The percent of all patients diagnosed with Chl

completion of treatment.
The percentage of family planning clients who rec

Community education, outreach and partnership
with agencies or individuals intended to increase

~ key partners in the community.

amydia who were re-screened 3-4 months after

eived STD/HIV reduction education.

plan this measure calls for face-to-face meetings
linkages between the family planning program and

Area served: The State of New Hampshire, less the geographic areas of Cheshire and Rockingham
Counties, and the towns of Lebanon and Claremont. ;




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
May 20,2013
Page 4
Source of Funds: 68.56% Federal Funds from Title X Family Planning and the US Department of Health
and Human Services, Administration for Children and Familiés, and 31.44% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer|available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program. -

' Respectfully submitted,
; José Thier Montero, MD .
Director

T
Director
{  Division of Family Assistance

ot A7

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

JTM/JE/PMTjf
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to Family Planning Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Family Planning Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment 1”) dated this Sth day of April, 2015, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Belknap-Merrimack County Community Action Program, Inc. (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at PO Box
1016, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 19, 2013, (Item #94), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may
amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and
increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:

Amend Form P-37, Subject to read Family Planning Services

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2017

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $863,728.00

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9 to read Eric Borrin

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9558

Amend Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Contract Period to read: “July 1, 2013 or date of G&C
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2017.”

I S o

7. Amend Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, by:

7.1. Changing Contract Period to read, “July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever
is later, through June 30, 2017

7.2. Changing Job #45130203 to read Job #45030203

7.3. Deleting paragraph 1 in its entirety and replacing it with new paragraph 1 and sub-
paragraphs (a) and (b):

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for the cost and
expenses incurred in the performance of services during the period of July 1,
2015 through June 30, 2017 shall not exceed:

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials: ‘Q
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

(a) $215,932.00 in SFY 2016 and $215,932.00 in SFY 2017 for a total amount of
$431,864.00.

(b) Funding is available as follows:

e $208,836.43 — 61.2% Federal Funds from the Office of Population Affairs,
Family Planning Services, Title X of the Public Health Services Act, CFDA
#93.217, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), FPHPA016063

o $132,399.57 — 38.8% from General Funds

o $90,628.00 — 100% Federal Funds from the Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Title IV of the Social
Security Act, (CFDA #93.558, FAIN 1502NHTANF).

7.4. Deleting paragraph 2 and replacing it with new paragraph 2:

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for
direct and indirect costs and expenses including, but not limited to, personnel
costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as detailed in Exhibit
B-1, Budget. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State
in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The
Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or
improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the
State.

7.5. Deleting paragraph 6 and replacing it with new paragraph 6:

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment
limited to adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers,
within the price limitation, may be made by written agreement of both parties
and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

8. Add Exhibit B-1

9. Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1
10. Add Exhibit C-1

11. Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1
12. Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

clelis 7%\@5\/

Date Brook Dupee
Bureau Chief

Belknap-Merrimack County Community Action
Program, Inc.

4/21/2015 d&i&_
Date NAME  Ralph Littl

TITLE Executive Dir

Acknowledgement:

State of _New Hampshire , County of _Merrimack on __4/21/2015 , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

2

Kathy@ Howard, Notary Pub-lic
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

et A e o e e e

KATHY L HOWARD
Notary Pubfic, New Hampshire
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

la e e .o o o o

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

0lg[15 e

Date | Name! N2V

Title: q
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by th ernor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials: ‘Aj —Q
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Ehibit B-1

Budget
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Community Action Program Belknap-
Bidder/Program Name: Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Budget Request for: Family Planning Program Services (FPPS)
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016
B T — —Aliocaton Wethod Tor
1. Total SalaryNVages $ —152.618.00 | $ - $ 152,618.00
2. Employee Benefits $ - $ - $ -
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental 3 - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy 3 18,000.00 1 $ - $ 18,000.00
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ - $ - $ -
|6. Travel 3 - $ - $ -
7. Occupancy $ - $ - $ -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ - $ - $ -
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - 3 -
Insurance $ - I8 - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - $ -
12._Subcontracts/Agreements 3 - $ - 3 -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
3 - $ - $ -
TOTAL 3 170,618.00 | § - [ $ 170,618.00 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget

Page 1 of 1
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Ehibit B-1

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Program Name: Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Community Action Program Belknap-

Budget Request for: Family Planning Program Services (FPPS)
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

~ Direct ~ indirect — Totai ____ Allocation Method for |

1. _Total Salary/Wages $ 152,618.00 | $ - $ 152,618.00
2. Employee Benefits $ - $ - $ -
3. Consultants $ - $ - 3 -
4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ -

Pharmacy $ 18,000.001 $ - $ 18,000.00
Medical $ - $ - 3 -
Office $ - $ - $ -
6. Travel $ - $ - $ -
7. Occupancy $ - $ - $ -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ - $ - $ -
Postage $ - 13 - 18 -
Subscriptions $ - 3 - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $ -
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -
11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - $ -
12._Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ .
13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - f -

TOTAL $ 170,618.00 | $ - $ 170,618.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget
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Exhibit B-1

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Community Action Program Belknap-
Bidder/Program Name: Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Budget Request for: Family Planning Program Svcs (FPPS) TANF

Budget Period: July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016

(Name of RFP)

[Lineiom . jncrementsl Fixed _ ' IndirectFixed Cost
1._Total Salary/Wages $ 3552400 $ 1,200.00] $ 36,724.00
2. Employee Benefits $ 404000 % 250001 $ 4,290.00
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ 250.001 % - $ 250.00
16. Travel $ 2,000.00| $ - $ 2,000.00
7. Qccupancy $ - $ - $ -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ - $ - $ -
Postage $ - 13 - 183 -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $ -
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ - $ -
10. Marketing/Communications $ 1,700.001 $ - $ 1,700.00
11. Staff Education and Training $ 350.001 % - $ 350.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - 13 - 19 -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - 3 -
TOTAL ] 43,864.00 | $ 1,450.00 | $ 45.314.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Community Action Program Belknap-
Bidder/Program Name: Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Budget Request for: Family Planning Program Svcs (FPPS) TANF
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017
“Direct indirect _____ Total

1. _Total Salary/Wages $ 35,624.00 | $ 1,200.00] $ 36,724.00
2. Employee Benefits $ 404000 % 250001 $ 4,290.00
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - 3 -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - 3 - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ 250001 % - $ 250.00
6. Travel $ 2,000.00| % - $ 2,000.00
7. Qccupancy $ - $ - $ -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ - $ - 3 -
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - 13 - 13 -
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ - 3 -
10. Marketing/Communications $ 1,700.001 $ - $ 1,700.00
11. Staff Education and Training $ 35000]1% - $ 350.00
12._Subcontracts/Agreements $ - 193 - $ -
13, Other (specific details mandatory): | $ - 3 - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 43,864.00 | $ 1,450.00 | $ 45,314.00 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 3.3%

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget Contractor Initials: /é éE
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

06127114 Page 1 of 5 Date jﬁ&_d(\j

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials gfg 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: in addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials é i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the perfformance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’'s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Amendment #1
06727114 Page 4 of 5 Date o’"

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials E i



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Renewal:
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewal Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foliowing
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G- Amendment #1
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

4/21/2015
Date

Name:
Title:

Ralph Littlefie
Executive Director
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. ‘Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Reguilations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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. “Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii} an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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(3)

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Busihess Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’'s business associate
agreements with Contractor’'s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHL. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Z E
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. _Q
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e. Segaregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit .

/\) r{ ’D f/ //I / Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
The State Name of the Contractor

) AN /DJ#QL AN

Signature of Authorized Representative  Signatube of Authorized Repfesentative—
Rror Jupee Ralph Littlefield

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
</T/ 4212015
Date Date
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State of Nefr Hampshire
HBepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshirg:, do hereby
certify that Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc. is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 28, 1965. I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3 day of April, A.D. 2015

oy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Dennis T. Martino, Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. (hereinafter the “Corporation”), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) [ am the
duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have
authorized, on _12/18/2014 _, such authority to be in force and effect until _6/30/2017

(contract termination date). (see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation

this _21st day of _ April L2015 .
Secretary-Clerk
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF MERRIMACK
Onthis _21st  dayof _April .2015 , before me, _Kathy I, Howard the

undersigned Officer, personally appeared Dennis T. Martino who acknowledged her/himself to be

the Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation
and that she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

, Notary Public
AAAAAAAAAAAAAA <Dlatarg Public/Justice of the Peace

. o KATHY L HOWARD
Commission Expiration Date: Notary Public, New Hampshire
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

la s e o o e o d




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Accountant, President, Vice-
President(s) or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the State of New
Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal #269 and #272
Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies including, but not limited to, the following:

e Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs
e Department of Education for nutrition programs
e Department of Health and Human Services
— Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
— Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
— Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child care programs
— Division of Family Assistance for Community Services Block Grant
— Division of Public Health Services for public health programs
Department of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs
Department of Transportation-Public Transportation Bureau for transportation programs
Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs
Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job training programs
Department of Resources and Economic Development
Governor’s Office of Energy and Planning for Head Start, Low Income Energy
Assistance, Weatherization and Block Grant programs
New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority
New Hampshire Secretary of State
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
U. S. Department of the Treasury — Internal Revenue Service
and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. on December 18, 2014, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

4/21/2015 /Lm \[' &2

Date Dennis T. Martino
Secretary/Clerk

SEAL

Agency Corporate Resolution
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
4/16/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

CONTACT Raren Shaughnessy

P. O. Box 1016

Community Action Programs

FIAI/Cross Insurance PHONE . (603)669-3218 FAALé..Nm' (603) 645-4331
1100 Elm Street ML s. kshaughnessy@crossagency .com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 msurerA Arch Ing Co 11150
INSURED iNsurRer QBE Insurance Corp 39217

INSURER ¢ Hanover Insg Group

INSURERD-N.H.M.M. JUA

INSURER E :
Concord NH 03302 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:14-15 All w/ prof REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL]SUBR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WvD POLICY NUMBER (MWDD/YYYY) | (MWDD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY gQMEQ%%gO(ERE%NQQTE@D nce) |$ 100,000
A | cLams-MADE OCCUR NCPKG0226602 16/17/2014 16/17/2015 | \ep Exp (Any one person) | § 5,000
—_— PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § 1,000,000
- GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
A POLICY B 1x I LoC NFP0086654- (D&O) #/1/2015 /1/2016 | pirectors & Officers $ 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY £a accident) $ 1,000,000
A X | any auTo BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
:bl.T 8\SNNED ;S\S%QULED NCAUT0226602 6/17/2014 [6/17/2015 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
B NON-OWNED [ PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
Uninsured motorist combined | $ 1,000,000
X [umBRELLALIAB | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000
DED | X | RETENTION $ 10,000 NCPXS0226600 6/17/2014 (6/17/2015 $
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION owC3000372 X WC STATU-S l OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN I TORY LIMIT. ER
ANY gROPRIE‘TORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE @ NIA (3a.) NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
{Mandatory in NH) All officers included 6/17/2014 (6/17/2015 | | pSEASE - EA EMPLOYEH § 500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
C |Blanket Crime DV1945863 B/27/2015 [3/27/2016 | Limi 500,000
D |Professional JUA11882 12/30/201412/30/2015 | Limit 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
NH DHHS

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

rd )ﬂ .
Laura Perrin/JscC 7) Agcov~ AR

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INSO025 2010081 01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Tha ACORN nama and lnnn ara ranictarad marke af ACORD



Community cActiony Program é’?—'—f
Belknap—Merrimack Counties, Inc. wietion

P.O. Box 1016 ¢ 2 Industrial Park Drive ¢ Concord, NH 03302-1016
Phone (603) 225-3295 ¢ Toll Free (800) 856-5525 ¢ Fax (603) 228-1898 ¢ Web www.bm-cap.org

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

(Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as part of the Agency Bylaws.)

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction
of poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through planning
and coordinating the use of a broad range of federal, state, local, and other assistance
(including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the organization
of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and individuals, so
that these services may have a measurable and potentially major impact on the
causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals to achieve self-
sufficiency; the maximum participation of residents of the low-income communities
and members of the groups served to empower such residents and members to
respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities; and to secure a
more active role in the provision of services for private, religious, charitable, and
neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and business, labor, and
professional groups, who are able to influence the quantity and quality of
opportunities and services for the poor.

CAPBMCI Statement of Purpose
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, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors WOLFEBORO » NORTH CONWAY

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. DOVER « CONCORD
Concord, New Hampshire STRATHAN

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise
the statements of financial position as of February 28, 2014 and 2013, and the related
statements of cash flows for the years then ended and the statement of activities and the
related notes to the financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2014.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation -and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 28, 2014 and 2013, and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in
its net assets for the year ended February 28, 2014 in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and the schedules of revenues and expenditures, and refundable
advances are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 2, 2014, on our consideration of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting

and compliance. m M(&M&” s pM
0 %%,;“7 ﬂml'/ﬁ”

October 2, 2014
Concord, New Hampshire



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEBRUARY 28, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS
2014 2013
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 1,048,391 $ 1,205,452
Accounts receivable 2,635,718 3,484,861
Prepaid expenses 233,047 424,367
Total current assets - 3,917 156 5,114,680
PROPERTY
Land, buildings and improvements 4,618,289 4,618,289
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 6,153,197 5,935,585
Total property 10,771,486 10,553,874
Less accumulated depreciation (6,393,172) (5,928,189)
Property, net 4,378,314 4,625,685
OTHER ASSETS
Investments 94,439 82,419
Due from related party 139,441 139,441
Total other assets 233,880 221,860
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,529,350 $ 9,962,225
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of notes payable $ 137,236 $ 129,407
Accounts payable 1,578,759 2,022,052
Accrued expenses 1,120,302 1,179,626
Refundable advances 912,848 1,070,024
Total current liabilities 3,749,145 4,401,109
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above 1,608,954 1,744,319
Total liabilities 5,358,099 6,145,428
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 2,629,700 2,909,675
Temporarily restricted 541,551 907,122
Total net assets 3,171,251 3,816,797
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 8,529,350 $ 9,962,225

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2013

Temporarily 2014 2013
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards $ 16,799,982 $ 16,799,982 $ 19,545,688
Other funds 5,350,061 $ 2,137,274 7,487,335 6,042,343
In-kind 793,868 793,868 1,066,723
United Way 86,102 86,102 150,918
Total revenues and other support 23,030,013 2,137,274 25,167,287 26,805,672
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 2,502,845 (2,502,845)
Total 25,532,858 {365,571) 25,167,287 26,805,672
EXPENSES
Compensation 8,042,123 8,042,123 8,633,277
Payroli taxes and benefits 2,398,215 2,398,215 2,245,454
Travel 289,138 289,138 318,080
Occupancy 1,195,834 1,195,834 1,244,115
Program services 10,867,215 10,867,215 11,402,347
Other costs 1,771,081 1,771,081 1,705,075
Depreciation 455,359 455,359 518,831
in-kind 793,868 793,868 1,066,723
Total expenses 25,812,833 25,812,833 27,133,902
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (279,975) (365,571) (645,546) (328,230)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,909,675 907,122 3,816,797 4,145,027
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 2,629,700 $ 541,551 $ 3,171,251 $ 3,816,797

4

See Notes to Financial Statements




STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014 AND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Donated equipment

Loss (gain) on sale of property

(Increase) decrease in current assets:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property

Investment in partnership

Proceeds from sale of property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for interest

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2014 2013
$ (645546) $ (328,230)
455,359 518,831
26,080
4,514 (3,242)
849,143 (53,687)
191,320 102,653
(443,293) (420,496)
(59,324) 30,313
(157,176) (434,518)
194,997 (562,296)
(214,202) (139,369)
(12,020) (8,128)
1,700 7,250
(224,522) (140,247)
(127,536) (119,869)
(127,536) (119,869)
(157,081) (822,412)
1,205,452 2,027,864
$ 1048391 $ 1205452
$ 118011 § 116,248




COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTiE§, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB in its
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit
Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the Organization is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets. The classes of net assets are determined by the presence or
absence of donor restrictions. As of February 28, 2014 the Organization had no
permanently restricted net assets and had temporarily restricted net assets of $541,551.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information
in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s
financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2013, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Income Taxes
Community Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue

Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be
other than a private foundation.

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. files information
returns in the United States and the State of New Hampshire. Community Action
Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is no longer subject to examinations by
tax authorities for years before 2010.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the years (2010 through 2013), for the
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purposes of implementation, and has concluded that no additional provision for income
taxes is necessary in the Organization’s financial statements.

Property

Property is recorded at cost, except for donated assets, which are recorded at fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met. This represents
the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the Organization might
incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received $793,868 in donated
facilities, services and supplies for the year ended February 28, 2014. :

7



Advertising
The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2014. The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts.

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or

incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$912,848 as of February 28, 2014.

RETIREMENT PLAN
The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the

Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2014 was
$344,450.

LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to every
two years. For the year ended February 28, 2014, the annual lease expense for the
leased facilities was $499,120.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended
February 28 Amount
2015 $ 170,719

ACCRUED EARNED TIME
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested in the amount of $409,763 at February 28, 2014.

BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (3.25% for the year ended February 28,
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2014) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all the
Organization's assets.

LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28, 2014

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $12,373 through July,
2023. The note is secured by property of the Organization for
Lakes Region Family Center. $ 1,207,288

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for principal and
interest of $4,842 through May, 2023. Interest is stated at 1%
above the prime rate as published by the Wall Street Journal,
which resulted in an interest rate of 4.25% at February 28, 2014.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage and
assignment of rents and leases on property located in Concord,
New Hampshire for Early Head Start. : 420,075

3% note payable to the City of Concord for leasehold
improvements in monthly instaliments for principal and interest
of $747 through May, 2027. The note is secured by property of
the Organization for the agency administrative building
renovations. 97,874

475% note payable to Rural Development in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $148 per month through
~June, 2031. The note is secured by property of the

Organization for Franklin Community Services building. 20,953
Total 1,746,190
Less amounts due within one year 137,236
Long term portion $ 1608954

The scheduled maturities of long term debt as of February 28, 2014 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount
2015 $ 137,236
2016 145,551
2017 154,380
2018 163,753
2019 173,709
Thereafter 971,561

$ 1.746.190
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28, 2014:

Land $ 168,676
Building and improvements 4,449,613
Equipment and vehicles 6,153,197
10,771,486
Less accumulated depreciation (6,393,172)
Property and equipment, net $ 4378314

Depreciation expense for the year ended February 28, 2014 was $455,359.

CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2014. Monitoring has not indicated any discrepancies.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the year ended February 28, 2014, approximately $10,500,000 (41%) of the
Organization’s total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued
support from this department.

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions in southern
New Hampshire. At February 28, 2014, the balances were insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Effective July 1, 2010, one of
the financial institutions agreed to collateralize all deposits with them in excess of the
FDIC limit. Another financial institution agreed to collateralize the Organization's sweep
repurchase account up to 110% of the account balance with US Government Agencies.
At February 28, 2014, there were no deposits in excess of the uninsured limits.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
At February 28, 2014, temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following
unexpended, purpose restricted donations:

Restricted Purpose

Agency Fuel Assistance Program $ 16,549
Nutrition and Elder Services 299,339
Software Program-FAP/EAP 781
Senior Center 122,980
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Agency Head Start 66,659

Agency Family Planning and Prenatal Program 7,779
Agency Senior Companion Program . 917
NH Rotary Food Challenge 4,010
Community Crisis 3,578

Other Programs

18,959

$ 541,551

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
The Statement of Activities discloses expenses by natural classification. The
classification of expenses by function is summarized below:

Program Management Total

Salaries and wages $ 7660060 9 382,063 $ 8,042,123
Benefits and payroll taxes 2,260,251 137,964 2,398,215
Travel 287,914 1,224 289,138
Occupancy 1,092,520 103,314 1,195,834
Program services 10,867,215 10,867,215
Other costs:

Accounting fees 25,184 21,734 46,918

Legal fees 31,545 881 32,426

Supplies 222,607 24,232 246,839

Postage and shipping - 57,556 1,029 58,585

Equipment rental and

maintenance 3,897 619 4,516
Printing and publications 10,254 38 10,292
Conferences, conventions and
meetings 6,911 8,116 15,027

Interest 107,415 10,596 118,011

Insurance 222,040 31,074 253,114

Membership fees 11,133 13,097 24,230

Utility and maintenance 9,926 49 932 59,858

Other 877,324 23,941 901,265
Depreciation 448 943 6,416 455,359
In kind 793,868 793,868

$ 24996563 $ 816,270 $ 25,812,833

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Community Action Program Belknap — Merrimack Counties, Inc. is related to the
following corporation as a result of common management:

Related Party Function

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development
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16.

There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at February 28,
2014.

RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is a limited liability
company member of Community Provider Network of Central NH, LLC. The investment
total at February 28, 2014 was $35,000.

The Organization has also invested money relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual
funds. The fair market value of the mutual funds totaled $59,439 at February 28, 2014.

ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework
in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific
measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements.
In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Organization may use valuation techniques
consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value. As a
basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements,
FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used
in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1
measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market prices
in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or other
valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the reporting
entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or
liability including assumptions regarding risk.
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18.

At February 28, 2014, the Organization’s investments were classified as Level 1 and 3 and
were based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)

Beginning balance — mutual funds (at fair value) $ 47,419
Total gains or (losses) - realized /unrealized 8,702
Purchases 3,318

Ending Balance — mutual funds $ 59,439

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Beginning balance (at fair value) $ 35,000
Total gains or (losses) - realized/unrealized -

Ending Balance $ 35,000

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

FISCAL AGENT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations: Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, and the NH Rotary Food Challenge. The Agency provides the
management and oversight of the revenues received (donations) and the expenses
(utilities, food and emergency services).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through October 2, 2014, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

PASS
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ THROUGH
PROGRAM TITLE CFDA GRANTOR FEDERAL
US DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
Head Start 93.600 N/A $ 3,504,084
Through State of New Hampshire
Weatherization-HRRP 93.568 96,098
Fuel Assistance 93.568 611001 4,171,602
Fuel Assistance-SEAS 93.044 611001 15,007
Title 1 Part C 93.045 410338 720,891
Community Services Block Grant 93.569 610155 424 474
Community Services Block Grant Discretionary 93.570 24,609
Title XX - Block Grant 93.667 410338 348,119
Family Planning 93.217 610237 110,552
Family Planning 93.558 610237 37,176
Family Planning 93.940 610237 7,590
Public Heaith Network - (ID-PICS) 93.069 26,422
Public Health Network - (ID-PICS) 93.283 899
Public Health Network - (ID-PICS) 93.889 6,053
Title Il Part B Rural Transportation 93.044 410338 256,274
TANF - Home Visiting 93.558 N/A 71,829
Prenatal 93.994 520243 24,226
Merrimack County Service Link Program 93.778 N/A 67,905
Merrimack County Service Link Program 93.052 N/A 14,723
Merrimack County Service Link Program 93.667 N/A 7.832
Merrimack County Service Link Program 93.048 N/A 8,220
Merrimack County Service Link Program 93.779 N/A 17,503
Senior Medicare Patro! Program Capacity Building 93.048 19,910
Eider Services/NSIP 93.053 410338 181,207
Through Southern New Hampshire Services
Workplace Success 93.558 N/A 322,549
Through Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health
Marketplace Assister Services 93.525 13,916
10,499,670
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Through State of New Hampshire
wiC 10.557 611080 818,111
CSFP 10.565 611080 845,407
Senior Farmers Market 10.576 84,618
Surplus Food-TEFAP/Admin 10.568 N/A 134,633
Surplus Food-TEFAP 10.569 N/A 1,651,554
CACF Head Start/USDA 10.558 N/A 218,256
Summer Food-USDA 10.559 136,744
3,889,323
CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL SERVICES
Senior Companion 94.016 N/A 377,999
US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Through State of New Hampshire
Concord Area Transit 20.509 461,941
Concord Area Transit-New Freedom 20.521 23,958
Concord Area Transit-JARC 20.516 44,707
Concord Area Transit 20.513 17.928
Winnipesaukee Transit System 20.509 68022 55,294
Winnipesaukee Transit System 20.521 3,831
5310 Capital Advance 20.513 87,321
Through County of Merrimack
Rural Transportation 20.513 7.907
Volunteer Driver Program 20.513 71,778
774,665
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US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Through New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority

Statewide Lead Abatement Program 14.900
Through State of New Hampshire
New Start/Outreach Program 14.235 N/A
Emergency Solutions Grant 14.231 N/A
Homeless Prevention 14.235 N/A
Supportive Housing Services 14.235
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Through State of New Hampshire
Weatherization 81.042 551896
MH Park Weatherization 81.042 N/A
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Through State of New Hampshire
Senior Community Service Employment 17.235 610063
Through Southern New Hampshire Services
WIA-Adult Program 17.258 N/A
WIA-Dislocated Worker Program 17.260 N/A
TOTAL AWARDS EXPENDED

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal award activity of Community Action Program
Belknap - Merrimack Counties, inc. for the year ended February 28, 2014. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments
and Non-Profit Organizations." Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, inc.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations , wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. provided federal awards to subrecipients as follows:

Amount
CFDA Number Program Name Provided
14.900 Statewide Lead Abatement Program $135,423

NOTE D - FOOD COMMODITIES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and
distributed.
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1,493,227

139,974
23,654
30,743
58,109

1,745,707

102,225
60,177

162,402

410,669

91,000
120,044

621,713

18,071,479
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM OF BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (@ New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2014, and the
- related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended,

and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 2
2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

1

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community Action
Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s

internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
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weaknesse; or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program of Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests

disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

LW /”Qﬂwmg/ /g la 54«74
A/MszowJ Is:ocw/w

‘October 2, 2014
Concord, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM OF BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY ONMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s compliance with
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program of Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2014. Community
Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action
Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Loons, WeLoangll ¢ /@oé//)é,
Pirftssnal Bssoeishiin

October 2, 2014
Concord, New Hampshire
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COMMUNI CTION PR AM OF BE P- NTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

There were no significant deficiencies reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

There were no significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs
disclosed during the audit as reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for
Each Major Program and On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-
133. No material weaknesses are reported.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community Action
Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

There were no audit findings which the auditor would be required to report in accordance with
Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.

The programs tested as major programs include:
93.568 Low-income Home Energy Assistance
93.217 Family Planning - Services
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP)
10.559 Summer Food Service Program for Children
10.565 Commodity Supplemental Food Program
10.568 Emergency Food Assistance Program (Administrative Costs)
10.569 Emergency Food Assistance Program (Food Commodities)
94.016 Senior Companion Program

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $542,144.

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-
risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - CFDA 93.568
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Grant Period Grant Period

10/1/12-9/30/13  10/1/13-9/30/14 Total
Revenues
Division of Human Resources $ 1,067,482 $ 3,104,120 $ 4,171,602
Other 424 424

$ 1,067,906 $ 3,104,120 3 4,172,026

Expenditures

Personnel 3 163,519 $ 112,614 $ 276,133
Fringe benefits 35,412 26,345 61,757
Travel 2,581 1,610 4,191
Occupancy 33,183 28,750 61,933
Direct program costs 786,757 2,913,043 3,699,800
Other costs 46,454 21,758 68,212

$ 1,067,906 $ 3,104,120 $ 4,172,026
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM - CFDA 94.016
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Revenues
Corporation for National Services

Expenditures
Personnel
Fringe benefits
Travel
Other costs

23

Grant Period Grant Period

7/1/12 - 6/30113  7/1/13 - 6/30/14 Total
$ 108,041 $ 269,958 $ 377,999
$ 84,426 $ 190,851 $ 275,277
6,436 6,436
14,228 70,053 84,281
9,387 2,618 12,005
$ 108,041 $ 269,958 $ 377,999




SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE HEAD START PROGRAM - CFDA 93.600

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Grant Period Grant Period

1/1/13-12/31113 1/1/14-12/31/14 Total
Revenues
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 2,921,295 3 640,875 $ 3,562,170
In-Kind 984,055 203,770 1,187,825

$ 3,905,350 3 844,645 $ 4,749,995

Expenditures

Personnel $ 1,866,380 $ 426,100 $ 2,292,480
Fringe benefits 375,919 87,256 463,175
Travel 32,233 6,268 38,501
in-Kind 984,055 203,770 1,187,825
Other costs 647,234 121,251 - 768,485

$ 3,905,821 $ 844,645 $ 4,750,466
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BEL KNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE NUTRITION AND ELDER SERVICES PROGRAM -
CFDA 93.045, 93.667 and 93.053
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Grant Period Grant Period

7/1/112 - 6/30/13 7/1/13 - 6/30/14 Total
Revenues
NH Department of Health and Human Services $ 97,964 $ 83,242 $ 181,206
Title XX 48,971 299,148 348,119
Title Il Part C 220,128 500,763 720,891
Other - 671,429 671,429

3 367,063 $ 1,554,682 $ 1,921,645

Expenditures

Personnel 3 358,503 3 655,635 $ 1,014,138
Fringe benefits 59,626 105,631 165,257
Occupancy 53,005 106,017 159,022
Travel 41,226 79,868 121,094
Other costs 241,407 488,529 729,936

$ 753,767 $ 1,435,680 $ 2,189,447
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c

Revenues

Expenditures
Personnel
Fringe benefits
Travel
Occupancy
Other costs

Note:

CTION PROGRAM BELKNAP -

ERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FOR THE ELECTRIC ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Grant Period Grant Period
10/1/12-9/30/13  10/1/13-9/30/14 Total

$ 911,030 $ 1,032,362 $ 1,943,392
$ 162,184 $ 105,448 $ 267,632
37,940 24,176 62,116
1,342 853 2,195
5,881 4,519 10,400
703,683 897,366 1,601,049
$ 911,030 $ 1,032,362 $ 1,943,392

For the year ended February 28, 2014, the Electric Assistance Program, which is funded through the New
Hampshire Public Utilities Commission with funds from the utility companies operating in the State of New
Hampshire, was tested for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to the

contract with the Public Utilities Commission.

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-

Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the requirements outlined in the contract for
the year ended February 28, 2014.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Tornado Relief Fund (018)

Twin River Community Corp (053 & 054)
Cottage Hotel (064 & 065)

Transport Coordination (084)

Sandy Ledge (093 & 094)

Ozanam (104 & 105)

Senior Center Program (138)

Franklin intergenerational (184 & 185)

Senior Companion Program - Non Federal (223 & 224)
Senior Companion Program - State (233 & 234)
Franklin Community Services (293 & 294)
Head Start - Childcare (353 & 354)

Belknap County - WXN Program (374)

Lakes Region Family Center (383 & 384)

REIP (402)

NH Modular Ramp (432 & 433)

Sun Safety (484)

New Hampshire Housing Guarantee Program (493 & 494)
Core Program (503 & 504)

NH Rotary (540)

Common Pantry (553 & 554)

Oral Health WIC (600)

Epsom Elderly Housing (643 & 644)

27

Revenues

19,161
25,946
10,304
296
(128,263)
20,177
18,592
46,994
27,621
31,252
24,420
1,015,890
4,288
159,590
21,322
79,694

236,824
1,689,146
1

208
(4,463)
74,188

3

Expenditures

42,943
9,819
296
20,073
20,177
17,714
47,505
48,076
31,252
25,449
1,015,890
8,901
159,590
46,738
68,023
639
236,824
1,745,819
1,061
822

74,188



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Belmont Housing (653 & 654)

Alton Housing (663 & 664)
Kearsarge Housing (673 & 674)
Riverside Housing (683 & 684)
Pembroke Housing (708 & 709)
Homeless Revolving Loan (728)
Community Crisis Fund (746)
Area Centers (763 & 764)

THE FIXIT Program (833 & 834)
Loan Guarantee Program (847)
MC Loan Guarantee Program (848)
The Caring Fund (863 & 864)
Agency WIC/CSFP (883)
Newbury Elderly Housing (884)
Agency Account (911 & 980)
Agency Account FAP (922)
Agency Account SCP (932 & 933)
H/S Agency (943 & 944)

Agency FP/PN (963)

Saving Heat & Reducing Energy (970)

Agency Development Fund

Agency Horseshoe Pond Place (994 & 995)

28

Revenues

66,180

48,670
63,566
70,310
53,543
16,538

3,578
315,556
4,667
58,503
2,292
2,401
6,531
82,115
96,765
97,642
(1,074)
(17,133)
(882)
26
17,500
27,290

$

Expenditures
66,180
48,670
63,566
70,310
53,543
16,538

417,787
1,712
58,503
2,292
5,336
1,073
82,115
(288,613)
112,122
3,413
8,515
382

761
32,500
27,290



FUND #

125
156
164
170
195
224
264

363
414
494
545
574
594
714
728
729
764
834
847
855
883
905

SCHEDULE OF REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

FUND NAME

EAP-Lead Agency

Merrimack County Service Link

Elder Services Program

Volunteer Driver Program

Electric Assistance Program

Senior Companion Program - Non-Federal

Rural Transportation Service

Head Start - USDA

Home Visiting NH

Weatherization

NH Housing Guarantee Program

Summer Feeding

Fuel Assistance Program

Homeless Prevention

Concord Area Transit

Homeless Revolving Loan Fund-Belknap County
Homeless Revolving Loan Fund-Merrimack County
Area Center Program

Fixlt Program

Loan Guarantee Program

New Start Program
Agency Account-WIC/CSFP
Community Services Block Grant 93.569
Agency Account-Head Start
TOTAL

29

HHS PROGRAM CFDA#

93.778 (deferred amount is not federal)
93.045,93.667 (deferred amount is not federal)

93.044 (deferred amount is not federal)

93.558 (deferred amount is not federal)

93.568 (2,827 of deferred amount is not federal)

AMOUNT

$ 17,847
1,747
4,303

11,500
48,936
1,042
625
273
382
9,565
126,865
27,589
199,449
208,878
51,396
39,384
8,179
1,476
60,807
30
21,595
571
69,242
1,167

$ 912848



Effective 11/18/14

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sara A. Lewko, President

Vacant - Vice President

Dennis Martino, Secretary-Clerk

Kathy Goode, Treasurer

Heather Brown

Nicolette Clark

Theresa M. Cromwell

Susan Koerber

Bill Johnson

Andrea MacEachern

David Siff

Hope Cassin

Victoria Jones



SUSAN M. WNUK

18 WHEELER ROAD
Bow, NEwW HAMPSHIRE 03304
603-225-7337
EXPERIENCE
1992 to COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
Present Director, Community Health and Nutrition Services

m  Responsible for overall management of the WIC, Breastfeeding Peer Counseling
Program, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program and Commodity Supplemental
Food Program, Family Planning, Prenatal, Teen Clinic, and Concord Area Public
Health Network

m  Oversee planning, development, implementation and coordination of all program

services and personnel for multiple programs and clinic locations

Fiscal management including budget preparation, monitoring, fundraising, and reports

for $1.6 million operating budget

Oversee special grant projects including Lead Screening and Oral Health initiatives.

Development and implementation of policies and procedures

Oversee quality improvements plans for all program services

Responsible for grant management and report preparation

Represents agency on local Boards of Directors, Coalitions, and Partnerships

1991-1992 Director, Family Planning, Prenatal, STD Clinics and HIV Counseling and Testing Services
m Initiated development and implementation of comprehensive Prenatal program clinical
services in Belknap County for low-income women
m  Integrated all program services to provide access to comprehensive care

1989-1992 Director, Family Planning, STD Clinics and HIV counseling and Testing Services
8 Coordinated development of STD Clinic Services in three County area including
obtaining initial grant funding
m  Fiscal, personnel, program management of all services

1987-1989 Director, Family Planning and HIV Counseling and Testing Services
m  Obtained grant funding to initiate development of HIV Counseling and Testing
Services
m Integrated services into Family Planning Clinic

1986-1987 Family Planning Program Director
m  Responsible for the overall fiscal, programmatic and personnel management of a Title
X funded Family planning program in a three County area.
m [nitiated program development activities and expansion of services

1980-1985 CONCORD HOSPITAL, CONCORD NEW HAMPSHIRE
Social Worker — Social Services Department

m Evaluation of emotional, social and economic stresses of illness.

m  Developed patient care plans including financial assessment, discharge planning needs,
home supports, and transfer for patients in maternity/newborn nursery, ICU,
nephrology/dialysis, and urology units.

Liaison between medical staff, patient, families and community agencies.
Coordinated adoptions with public and private organizations.

Provided assessments for guardianships hearings.

Initiated protective service referrals for infants, children and seniors.

Coordinated transfers to skilled, intermediate level nursing homes, group homes, and
facilities providing traumatic head injury and spinal cord care.
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1977 Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts
North Adams, MA
Bachelor of Arts Degree Majors: History and Sociology

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Board of Directors and Committees

m  National WIC Association — Board of Directors — 2013 to present

NWA - Northeast Region Local Agency Section Chair — NH Representative 2010-present
= National Commodity Supplemental Food Program Association

President 2011

Vice President 2010

Marketing Committee- Chair 2012-2014

Board of Directors 1999-2000
m  New Hampshire WIC Directors Association - 1992-Present
Chairperson 2010-present
Secretary 2000-2008
Health First Family Care Center - Board of Directors January 2009-present
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health - Board of Directors 2005-2014
Winnipesaukee Public Health Council — Executive Committee -2014 to present
Central New Hampshire Health Care Partnership - Founding member 2008-present
HEAL - Practice Committee - 2009-2012

Lakes Region HEAL - 2009-present
CCNTR HEAL - 2009-2012
m  Bi-State Primary Care Association - Government Relations Committee 2004-present
m  Whole Village Family Resource Center - Board of Directors 1995-2000
Chair Personnel Committee 1996-2000

m  Capital Area Wellness Coalition — 2010-present

Chair - Healthy Foods Subcommittee

Government
m  Legislative Task Force on Perinatal Substance Abuse — 1993-2002
s Legislative Study Committee on Premature Births ~ 1991
m  Attorney General’s Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect - 1990-1993

Memberships
s National WIC Association — 1994-Present
s New Hampshire Public Health Association — 1993-Present
m  American Public Health Association — 1986-Present
m  National Family Planning and Reproductive Health Association — 1986-Present

COMMUNITY & VOLUNTEER

®  Bow School District Wellness Committee - 2004-present
®  Bow POPS (Parents of Performing Arts Students) 2005-2010 — Vice President 2009-2010
"  Boys Indoor Soccer Team - Coach —2008-2010




JANICE M. ROWLEY

EDUCATION

10/85-1/86  Nurse Practitioner Program of University of Pennsylvania School of
Nursing, Planned Parenthood Federation of America and Family Planning
Council of S.E. Pennsylvania Certificate Program

9/8/86 Certification-NAACOG Obstetric-Gynecologic Nurse Practitioner

1963-1966 Holy Cross School of Nursing
South Bend, Indiana — Diploma Program

1959-1963  St. Francis deSales High School
Chicago, Illinois — Diploma

EMPLOYMENT

Family Planning Program, Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., Laconia, New Hampshire

1989-Present Clinical Coordinator — Responsible for all aspects of medical services,
including provision of medical services, supervision of medical staff,

program compliance and quality assurance. Oversees coordination of
medical with other program components. Oversees operation of HIV
and STD services.

1986-1989 Nurse Practitioner — Provide medical services under clinical guidelines.

1984-1985 Program Nurse

Lakes Region General Hospital, Laconia, New Hampshire
1981-1986 Staff Nurse-Emergency Room

Laconia Clinic, Laconia, New Hampshire
1973-1981 Supervisor of OB-GYN Department

1971-1972 Westminister School, Simsbury, Connecticut School Nurse

1970-1971 St. Vincent's Hospital, Bridgeport, Connecticut Staff Nurse-Med/Surg Floor
1969-1970 V.A. Hospital, San Francisco, California Staff Nurse-Med/Surg Floor
1969-1971 Camp Pinehurse, Raymond, Maine Camp Nurse

1968-1969 Munster Clinic, Highland, Indiana Assistant to G.P. — Allergist

1966-1967 St. Joseph's Hospital, South Bend, Indiana Charge Nurse-Med/Surg Floor



Amanda T. Savage

OBJECTIVE
Looking for opportunities within the Health and Wellness Industry where | can apply my training as a health coach and
experience of community educator. Educating within large groups whether it is a yoga class, a heaith seminar, or a wellness
event is fulfilling. My goal is to obtain a position that allows me to use my educational skills, business management and
marketing experience to make a difference in a community outreach program.

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS

Highlights of qualifications:

e Determined when given a task

e Strong interpersonal skills

e Reliable work ethic

e (Caring demeanor
Excellent teaching skills
e Managed staff — Teams up to 12
e Lead educational seminars - groups up to 30
e Certified Yoga instructor
e Holistic Health Coach
e Yoga Practitioner since 1999

EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties February 2014 - Present
Family Planning Program, Laconia, NH & Ossipee, NH

Community Educator/Outreach Coordinator - Develop, coordinate, and implement a comprehensive community education
and Teen Clinic program services. Design and conduct educational programs and professional trainings for schools,
community organizations and other interested individuals. Develop a working relationship with community professionals
and evaluate community needs related to community education. Assist with patient intake and educations services.

The Viaggio Spa and Health Club, Mountain Club on Loon December 2012 - February 2014
Lincoln, NH

Wellness Coordinator — Lead the promotion of Wellness Events at the Mountain Club through marketing with the sales
team, website, and email campaigns

-Organize and facilitate the planning process of upcoming wellness seminars, events or workshops and redesigning all
marketing material ie brochure, website and press releases

-Coordinate staff, and group fitness programs between the two locations associated with the resort

Concord Center for Health Promotion August —September 2012
Concord, NH

Yoga Instructor (Contracted)— Prenatal Yoga series: Lead a group of expecting mothers in a 6 week prenatal yoga series,
teaching breath techniques, safe yoga postures and body awareness.

Blackbird Yoga January 2012 — November 2012
Georgetown, CT

Yoga Instructor (Contracted) — Instructed 2 classes per week, instructed a basics class incorporating fundamental poses of
the practice with emphasis on alignment, breathe, and core strength

Enchanted Garden February 2012 — November 2012
Ridgefield, CT
Yoga Instructor (Contracted)- Instructed 2 classes per week both All Levels class

Artisan Wines, Inc. November 2011 — November 2012
37 King St., Norwalk, CT

Administrative Assistant/ Sales Support -Processed all orders, managed accounts receivables, tracked shipments from
vendors, registered brands within the state and federal government, supported inventory management and maintained
data integrity on Company website

Ancona’s Wine and Liquors Oct 2010 - Oct 2011
720 Branchville Rd, Ridgefield, CT



Store Manager- Managed a team of eight employees, inventory and daily operations, addressed all customer service and
special orders, as well as data integrity

CellarXV Wine Market July 2005 - Feb 2010
88 Danbury Rd., Ridgefield, CT

General Manager- Managed a team of six employees and their work schedules and including purchasing, receiving, and
inventory, addressed customer service issues directly, supported website development and management, supervised Wine
of the Month selection, newsletter, billing and delivery

Grapes of Norwalk August 2004 — July 2005
10 Cross Street, Norwalk, CT

Office Manager- Managed purchasing, receiving, inventory, shipping and receiving departments, handled all customer
service. Managed accounts payable for building expenses and daily reconciliation of cash flow.

Ann Taylor May 2003 — August 2004
7 Times Square, New York, NY

Assistant Merchandiser- Managed daily, weekly, and monthly sales reports, worked closely with manufacturing and
production departments to ensure prompt delivery of product, handled all purchase orders including entry, revisions,
tracking, and communication with vendors

Polo Ralph Lauren November 2002 — May 2003
9 Polito Dr., Lynddhurst, NJ

Merchandising Assistant-Handled item definition, purchase order entry and revisions, weekly tracking of orders and
communication with vendors and internal business partners

Technology Solutions Company June 1998 — June 2002
205 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, IL

Senior Computer Software Consultant-Managed teams of four, led corporate meetings to analyze system requirements,
managed projects that deliverables in a timely manner with minimum oversight, analyzed and generated financial and
order management reports

EDUCATION
Auburn University, School of Business, Auburn, Alabama
Bachelor of Science, Management Information Systems 1994-1998

COMPUTER SKILLS
Microsoft Office Applications, QuickBooks

CERTIFICATION
Institute for Integrative Nutrition — Health Coach
New York, NY 2012 - 2013

Kripalu Center for Yoga and Health, CYT — 200hr
Berkshires, MA 2011

e 200hr Teacher Training

e Restorative Teacher Training

¢  Prenatal Teacher Training

American Sommelier Association — ASA, Certified Sommelier
New York, NY (January — April 2007)
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EDUCATION

EMPLOYMENT

RALPH LITTLEFIELD

High School — Winnacunnet High School, Graduated June 1966
College — Keene State College, Keene, NH, Graduated May 1971
Degree — Bachelor of Education

January 1980 — Present
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Executive Director

Responsible for the general administration of the agency which is
comprised of 85 major programs and has an annual budget in
excess of $37 million dollars and a staff of 410 employees.

June 1978 — January 1980
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire
Deputy Director

1976 — June 1978
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire
Head Start Director

1974 — 1975

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire

Program Coordinator-Food Stamp Program, Green Thumb Project,
Nutrition West

1974 — Head Counselor, Summer Neighborhood Youth Corps

1972 — Assistant Head Start Director, Cheshire County Head Start
Claremont, New Hampshire

June 1971 — General Services Director



BRIAN F. HOFFMAN

WORK EXPERIENCE

1981 — Present

1978-1981

1976-1978

1974-1976

EDUCATION

DEPUTY DIRECTOR
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302-1016

Provides general supervision and direction to the program
directors and assists with the development, planning,
coordination and implementation of all agency services.
Responsible for the financial operation of the Fiscal
Department, the programs and the agency.

COMMUNITY SERVICES ADMINISTRATOR
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
P.O. Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108

DIRECTOR OF ELDERLY AFFAIRS
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF ELDERLY AFFAIRS
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

University of New Hampshire

Durham, New Hampshire

Bachelor of Science

Recreation and Parks Administration — 1974

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

New Hampshire Public Television, Community Advisory Board (appointed 2013)

Treasurer, Board of Directors, New Hampshire Community Development Finance
Authority (2006-Present)

New Hampshire Community Action Association

Secretary, Board of Directors, Bedford Firefighters Association (2011-Present)

Retired Volunteer Firefighter and EMT for Bedford Fire Department (30 years)

Baboosic Lake Association, Board of Directors, served as Vice-President and
President (12 years)

Pointer Fish and Game Club, Board of Directors, served as Treasurer (5 years)

enr
Resume-B. Hoffman



FORM NUMBER'P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Family Plannin
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. |
1.1  State Agency Name ' 1.2  State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 29 Hazen Drive
Division of Public Health Services Concord, NH 03301-6504
1.3  Contractor Name » 1.4  Contractor Address
P.O.Box 1016
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Concord, NH 03302-1016
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-95-90-902010-5530-102-
603-225-3295 500734 June 30, 2015 $431,864.00
05-95-45-450010-6146-502- i
500891 !
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1}10  State Agency Telephone Number
i
Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN 603-271-4501
i

Bureau Chief

1.11 Contractor Signature 15;12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

é \%% Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director
17 4 &. l

1.13 AcknoWledgement: State OF=—NH—County of Mert: macki

5/2/13
On____, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged thatb?he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public orFustice vf-tire Peace-

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of thre Peace V

ELAINE N. ROUNDY, Notary Public
My Commission Expires August 24, 2016

I?
I
[Seal] WW @% f
f
t
|

1.14 State Agency Signature il .15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Oéa%——— ngsa L. Bujno, Bureau Chief

1.16  Approval by the’N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: ;‘Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)
E sening i
2L
By: zunne PN En i, Al o r1e 1On: 2—7 Maa /3

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: ;i On:

Page 1 of 4
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% 2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. '

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorpotated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for-the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
.. price. .
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
:contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
:no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
ymade hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
:1.8.

16 COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

|AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

{OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the

,tContractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,

! and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities

i which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,

 including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity

' laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all

} applicable copyright laws.

i 6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall

[ not discriminate against employees or applicants for

i employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,

! handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take

: affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the

United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the

' provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the

- regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41

C.E.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines

i as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to

implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to

' permit the State or United States access to any of the

| Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of

ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,

and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to

perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this

Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event

[ E—

!

of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrué to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies.at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date.of ... -
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
‘described in the attached EXHIBIT A.
%11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
!’respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
1an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
i officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
:bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
for other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

i

112, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

: The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any

| interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
! the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
. Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
; prior written consent of the State.

} 13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

- indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and

- employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the

- Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein

" contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

| sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

oot et o

14, INSURANCE. )
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and

'~ maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or

assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

Gang e e e
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14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
.identified in block 1.9, or.his-or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials:
Date:
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5 certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the

insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only .after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and

inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective

successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4§of 4

120. THIRD PARTIES. The partics hereto do not intend to
‘benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
!;constmed to confer any such benefit.

121. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
' for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
ishall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
'the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
 this Agreement,

, 22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
| in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining

- provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and

| effect.
:

. 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may

" be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior

! Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

i
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NH Department of Health z?md Human Services
5
Exhibit A
Scope of Sel:'vices

Family PIanniné Services
. 3

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C appr(;ival, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR NAME: Community Actloln Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Ine.

ADDRESS: P.O. Box 1016
Concord, NH 03
Family Planning Director: Susan Wnuk
TELEPHONE: 603-225-3295

02-1016

JRESSSRSS S N

The Contractor shall: ,

I. General Proyvisions !

A) Eligibility and Income Determination

Family Planning (FP) services will be provided to individuals of childbearing ages in New Hampshire (NH)
who request such services. Preference will be given'to clients who live within the Contractor’s service area.
Special emphasis will be placed on serving adolescents and individuals in low-income families (defined as <
250% of the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services “Poverty Guidelines™).

1.

Standard Exhibits A ~J

September 2009
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The Contractor shall implement, and post in a public and conspicuous location, a sliding fee payment
schedule for low-income clients. As an altemativé, the Contractor may post, in a public and conspicuous
location, a notice to clients that a sliding fee scale is available and that no client will be denied services for
inability to pay. The sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as
published in the Federal Register. (

The Contractor must inform clients of Medicaﬁd eligibility requirements and assist in the application
process. |.

Per Title X Federal Program Guidelines for Pro_|ect Grants for Family Planning Services (January 2001)
Gross Family Income is defined as the total gross income of all members of a family. Family, for the
purpose of application of these guidelines, is de,ﬁned as a social unit composed of one person, or two or
more persons living together, as a household. ‘Ellglblhty for minors who receive confidential services
must be based on the income of the minor.

Per Region 1 Famlly Planning Office gu1dance if a client’s income cannot be determined for the initial
visit, the client is considered to be unable to pay and must be placed in Category I. On return visits, if
income can be determined, the fee category may be changed although the client’s inability to pay cannot
be a barrier to services. i

The Contractor shall bill all third party paymerltL sources (including private insurance and Medicaid) prior
to spending the family planning contract funds EXCEPT when such billing presents a barrier to
confidential services. !

Contractor Initials: ‘&Q_
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B) Numbers Served i

. The FP Program will provide comprehensive reproductive health care to include age-appropriate clients,
anticipatory guidance, education, assessment, counselipg on preconception health care (reproductive life plan)
and referrals for nutrition services, substance abuse, domestic violence, sexual assault and other health related
issues,

C) Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populatlons experience barriers in efforts to access health services. To ensure equal

* access to quality health services, the Division of Publi¢ Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors shall
provide culturally and linguistically appropriate scrvnces according to the following guidelines:

1. Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

‘ i
2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staffto work effectively with consumers with respect to
their culturally and linguistically diverse environnient

3. Provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with interpreter services. Persons of LEP are defined
as those who do not speak English as their prunarf/ language and whose skills in lnstemng to, speakmg,
reading English are such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the
services provided to them without language assistz;mce.

t . .
4. Offer consumers a forum through which clients he'%ve the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and
organizations regarding cultural and linguistic iss?es that may deserve response.

5. The Contractor shall maintain a program policy thg}lt sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency. The policy;shall describe the way in which the items listed above
were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances in which interpretation services are provided and the
method of providing service (e.g. trained interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the client,
language line).

i
D) State and Federal Laws i
|
The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relcvant state and
Federal laws. Special attention is called to the followmg statutory responsibilities:
(
1. The Contractor shall report all cases of commun1¢able diseases according to New Hampshire RSA 141-C
and He-P 301 as most currently amended (1/05). |

2. Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New Hampshire
RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 161:F46,|Protective Services to Adults and RSA 631:6, Assault
and Related Offences. .
3. Contractor shall ensure that clients served will receive up-to-date recommended
immunizations either on site or by referral to a pnmary care provider in accordance with
RSA 141-C and the most current Immunization R’ulcs promulgated.
E) Relevant Policies and Guidelines

Contractors operate, at minimum, in accordance with the following:

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials: é. _'Q
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The (Federal) Office of Population Affairs, Office Iof Family Planning, Program Guidelines for Project
Grants for Family Planning Services, dated January 2001, and subsequent amendments, program

instructions and clarifications. *

I
National program priorities established by the Ofﬂce of Population Affairs.

i
The most current New Hampshire Guidelines for Famlly Planning Clinical Services (NH Guidelines) and
any revisions to these guidelines. i
The Contractor must submit to MCHS the complet‘;ed face sheet to the NH Guidelines with the signature of
the agency medical director and all medical providers who will provide family planning services. New
providers are required to add their signatures to thi's document.

The Contractor shall design and implement systems of governance, administration, financial

management, information management, and chmcal services which are adequate to assure the
provision of contracted services and to meet the data and reporting requirements. These
systems shall meet the most current minimum standards described in at least one of the
followmg Health Resources and Services Admlmstratlon (HRSA) Office of Performance
review protocols, Joint Commission on Accredltatlon of Health Care Organizations (JCAHO),
Community Health Accreditation Program (CHAP) or Accreditation Association for
Ambulatory Healthcare (AAA). i

i

F) Publications Funded Under Contract (Standard Lainguage)

1.

G) Subcontractors

1.

II. Minimal Standards of Core Services

A. Service Requirements

1.

Standard Exhibits A —J

Page 3 of 30

The DPHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original materials
produced with DPHS contract funding, includirig, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories,
protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced, downloaded from a web source or purchased
under the contract shall have prior approval from| DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.
In the case of Family Planning Programs, all suchidocuments are subject to review by the information and
education review committee.
The Contractor shall credit DPHS on all materials ;'produced under this contract following the instructions
outlined in Exhibit C (14)

If any service required by this exhibit is provided, in whole or in part, by a subcontracted agency or
provider, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) Maternal and Child Health Section (MCHS)
must be notlﬁed in writing prior to initiation of the' subcontract.

|
In additiop, the original DPHS Contractor will rem‘ain liable for all requirements included in
this ‘exhibit and carried out by subcontractors.

Clinical Services

In addition to following the federal and state guidelines outlined above, clinical services will be guided by
the protocol and practice guidelines established b)? the Contractor and will be supervised by a medical
director qualified to oversee obstetric and gynecological care.

Contractor Initials: 4 %
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2. HIV Counseling and Testing

|
|

HIV counseling and testing provided by family plhnning Contractors must conform to CDC’s
Fundamentals of HIV Prevention Counseling and!staff providing this counseling must be trained in this

counseling model. 5

i

3. Health Education Materials

Health education materials are to be rev1ewed according to Federal Program Guidelines for Project
Grants for Family Planning Services (reference sectlon 6.8) and the NH State Family Planning Program’s
Information and Education Policy on the review; approval, and distribution of family planning materials.
Delegate agencies may be asked to work with ‘the State in identifying consumer volunteers to review
educational materials in order to provide consumier input. Any and all materials an agency develaps for
marketing or patlent education must be submltted in its final draft form, for approval before printing or

duplicating it in quantity. g

4. Sterilization Services i
l

Those Contractors providing sterlllzatlon serv1ces will adhere to all federal sterilization requirements as

outlined in the Federal Program Guideline’s Attachment C, Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted

Family Planmng Projects and subsequent revisions or amendments related to this federal requirement.

5. Transitional Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and Title X FP Collaborative

B) Staffing Provisions

1.

The TANF and Title X Collaborative will conduct statewide activities to support knowledge of and
access to FP services by populations in need, w1th a particular emphasis on Medicaid-eligible women and
adolescents at risk for pregnancy. The Contractor shall produce a plan that documents a promotional &
partncrshlp building strategy and marketmg/outreach campaign that includes identification of the target
population, details, activities and projects for feachmg the target population and specifies evaluation
measures. The NH FP & Contractors will review the plan on an on-going basis to monitor progress
towards outcomes and overall project goals. '

Research

Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to the
legal requirements governing human subjects research. Contractors must inform the Division of Public
Health Services, Maternal and Child Health Section prior to initiating any research related to this

contract.

School-based Education Programs

Contractors must enter into a written agreement: with any school where the Contractor will implement

sexuality education programs for students underfthe age of 18. The agreement must be signed by the

school principal/or designee and must include a statement that information was provided to parents which

offered the opportunity for the parents to opt theirchild out of any program to which the parent objects.

Staff Training and Qualifications

Documentation will be available to show that all staff members employed in the Family Plannmg program
has adequate training to fulfill their activities. Staff performing clinical functions will have NH licensing
that is required for their responsibilities. Each agcncy will employ appropriate credentialing procedures to
assure that clinical staffs have appropriate cducatlon and experience for their responsibilities.

o g
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0) Coordination of Services

1.

Medical Director Participation ?

Each agency will have the services of a medical di:rector who has special training and/or experience in
family planning services. For each Contractor, the medical director and the clinical staff shall participate in
the development and approval of specific guidelinés for medical care that meet or exceed these minimal
standards. In addition, the medical director shall pamc1pate in QI activities and be available to other staff
for consultation. g

Community Education & Partnership Developrflnent

The Contractor will designate one staff member or committee responsible for the coordination and
development of a community education and outreach plan, to include partnership development so as to
increase utilization of family planning services. A community education & outreach report will be
required, as well as any supporting documentatlon that supports the development of partnerships with key
community stakeholders. [ .

Staffing Changes ,

New Hires [

The Contractor shall notify the Maternal and Chlld Health Section (MCHS) in wrltmg within one month of
hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this scope of
services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee shall accompany this notification.

Vacancies i

The Contractor must notify MCHS in writing of key positions (agency executive director, agency fiscal
director, medical director, site manager, commumty educator, teen clinic coordinator, TANF coordinator)
vacant for more than three months. This may be done through a budget revision. In addition, MCHS must
be notified in writing if at any time any site funded under this agreement does not have adequate clinical
and administrative staffing to perform all requ1red services for more than one month.

The Contractor will be responsible to ensure that other providers in the designated service area,
particularly those who serve low income individuals and adolescents, are aware of the availability and
scope of their family planning services, lncludmg awareness of the availability of confidential services and
of a sliding fee scale. The Contractor shall coordmatc where possible, with other service providers in the
community. At a minimum, such collaboration shall include interagency referrals.

!
As appropriate, agencies should participate in communlty needs assessments, public health performance
assessments and the development of regional pubhc health improvement plans within their Public Health
Networks. Network staff should also be engaged as appropriate, to enhance the implementation of
community-based public health prevention initiatives, emergency planning or emergency relief efforts

being unplemented by the agency. i’
|

As part of the Family Planning Workplan process, each Contractor will make plan explicitly identifying
community services providers who will be contadtcd for face-to-face meetings intended to build
partnerships, increase coordination and referrals w1th other providers.

i

D) Meetings and Trainings }

The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to’lmeetmgs and training required by the family planning
program, mcfudlng but not limited to: medical d1rector s meetings, family planning director’s meetings,
community educator/clinic coordinators meetings, data training and review meetings and family planning
orientation. i

}
l
i
!
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II1. Quality or Performance Improvement (QI/PI)

A) Workplans !

1.

B) Data and reporting requirements

)
Performance Workplans must be submitted and are used to monitor achievement of standard measures of
performance of the services provided under this contract. Said workplan is incorporated herein by
reference. :

!
Performa.ncc Workplans and Workplan Outcome chorts will be completed according to the schedule and
instructions provided by MCHS. The workplans are a key component of the DPHS and MCHS
performance based contracting system and of thlsscontract
The Contractor shall mcorporatc required and ‘developmental performance measures, defined by the
MCHS in to the agency’s QI/PI plan. Reports ion Workplan Progress/Outcomes shall detail the QI/PI
plans and activities that monitor and evaluate the agency’s progress toward performance measure targets.
If the Contractor’s performance is above the deﬁned target, no additional information will need to be
provided. It will be the understanding that activity and evaluation efforts were effective in reaching the
desired outcome. If the Contractor’s performan(;:e is below the defined target, an explanation must be
provided of why and what action steps (corrective action plan) will be taken to improve performance.

The Contractor shall comply with minor modlﬁcatlons and/or additions to the workplan and annual
report format as requested by MCHS. MCHS will provide the Contractor with reasonable notice of such
changes.

In addition to Performance Workplans and Outcome Reports, the Contractor shall submit to MCHS the

following data used to monitor program performance:

- L.

Standard Exhibits A —J
September 2009
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Annual Report. f

In years when contracts or amendments are not r‘equlred the DPHS Budget Form, Budget Justification,
Sources of Revenue and Program Staff list forms must be completed according to the relevant instructions
and submitted as requested by DPHS.

The Sources of Revenue report must be subrmtted bi-annually (Jul-Dec and Jan-Jun), as well as
resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the
planned program.

Completed UDS tables reflecting program performance in the previous calendar as requested by DPHS.

A copy of the Contractor’s updated Sliding Fee Scale including the amounts(s) of any client fees and the
schedule of discounts must be submitted by March 31* of each year. The Contractor’s sliding fee scale
must be updated annually based on the USDHHD Poverty guidelines as published in the Federal Register.

An annual summary of patient satisfaction results obtained during the prior contract year and of the
method by-which the results were obtained must be submitted with annual Workplan Outcome/Progress
report. . ll
Followmg the instructions provided in the Farmly Planning Annual Report Manual, a Family Planmng
Encounter Record (FPER) must be submitted by the 10™ of the month, following the delivery of service
for each cllent visit prov1ded in the famlly pla.nnmg program. This rccord must be submitted in eomphance

" method bemg used and any other state specnﬁc mst[ructlons prov1de by the family plannmg program.

By February 17 of each program year, submit data  required for submission of the federal Family Planning

i

!
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C)On-site reviews

1.

i
§

|

As requested by the family planning program, submlt costing reports using a methodology approved by
the Family Planning Program. ;

Comply with all Family Planning Program and STD/HIV Prevention Bureau requirements for reporting
chlamydia testing. (

|
|

The Contractor shall allow a team or person authonzed by the MCHS to periodically review the
Contractor’s systems of governance, admmlstratlon, data collection and submission, clinical services
management, financial management and design and delivery of educational services to assure systems are
adequate to provide the contracted services. ;
!

Reviews shall include client record reviews to mea?sure compliance with this exhibit.
The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted services are not
found to be provided in accordance with this exhibit.

. _ !
On-site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of MCHS, upon submission of satisfactory
reports of reviews such as Health Services Resources Administration (HRSA) Office of Performance
Review (OPR), or reviews from nationally accrcdltatlon organizations such as the Joint Commission for
the Accreditation of Health Care Organizations (JCAHO), the Community Health Accreditation Program
(CHAP) or the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Healthcare (AAA). Abbreviated reviews will
focus on any deficiencies found in previous rev1ews issues of compliance with this exhibit, and actions to
strengthen performance as outlined in the agency Performance Workplan.

Standard Exhibits A —-J ) Contractor Initials: & E
September 2009
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NH Department of Health!and Human Services
Exhibit B
|
i
Purchase of Services
Contract Brice
'i
Family Planning Services
!

CONTRACTORNAME: Community ActioL Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Ine.

ADDRESS: P.0. Box 1016

Concord, NH 03302-1016

Family Planning Director: Susan Wnuk
TELEPHONE: 603-225-3295

Vendor #177203-B003 . Job #90080203 Appropriation #05-95-90-902010-5530-102-500734
#45130203 #05-95-45-450010-6146-502-500891

L. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor f:or cost and expenses incurred in the performance of the
services during the period of the contract shall not exceed: !

i
$170,618.00 for Family Planning Services, funded fré)m 60% ($102,370.80) federal funds from Title X
Family Planning (CFDA #93.217), and 40% ($68,247.20) general funds in SFY 14.

$170,618.00 for Family Planning Services, funded from 63% ($107,489.34) federal funds from Title X
Family Planning (CFDA #93.217), and 37% ($63,128.66) general funds in SFY 15.

$90,628.00 for Fémily Planning Services - TANF, funded from 100% US Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration for Children and Families funds (CFDA #93.558) in SFY 14 and 15.

TOTAL: $431,864.00
|

2. The Contractor. agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and

expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs an:d operating expenses related to the Services, as detailed

in the attached budgets. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with

applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital
additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the State.

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period. Reimbursement
shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous month up to an amount not greater than
one-twelfth of the contract amount. Reimbursement greater than one-twelfth of the contract amount in any month

shall require prior, written permission from the State.

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State for each of the
Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) working days following the end of
the month during which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no
later than sixty (60) days after the contract Completion! Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all
allowable costs and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent: to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient

funds are available in the Service category budget line ittms submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs and
expenses incurred in the performances of the services.

Standard Exhibits A ~J Contractor Initials: &
September 2009
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!
6. The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service category through line item increases, decreases, or

the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for that particular
Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval by the State.
Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20% of each contract year.
i
7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds to purchase any
equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a useful life beyond one year.

z
|
|

i

i
i

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit.C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under
the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and, in the
furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made|in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. |

3. Time and Manner of Defermination: Eligibility deturmmatlons shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade’ at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms, required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation ’regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permltted to fill out an application form and that each applicant
or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a payment,
gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence
the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhlblt A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it ‘1s determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any ¢ fﬁc1als, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor
or Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior toja determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding any'thmg to .he contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such serv1ce If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess of

- such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors,
the Department may elect to:

i
8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
! .

i

' :
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8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contraetor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs; ;

83 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by
the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the perio'r'd of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DIS;CLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility ]lrecords specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performanc':e of the Contract, and all income received or collected
by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and propérly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are
acceptable to the Department, and to include, witholut limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the
Department. l

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and e11g1b1l1ty (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each recrplent) records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

‘ :
9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

l
10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within nine months after the close of the agency

11

fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations”
and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions,
issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of thisContract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
" audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or ‘which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reportsl and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall nat be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be ‘made to public officials requiring such information in _
connection with their official duties and for purposes directed connected to the administration of the services and
the Contract; and provided further, that the use or drsclosuré by any party of any information concerning a recipient
for any purpose not directly connected with the admmlstratron of the Department or the Contractor’s
responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the
recipient, his attorney or guardian.

' :
¥
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained hereinithe covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.
!
12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times if
requested by the Department |
12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim ﬁnanc!ial reports containing a detailed description of all costs
and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form de51gnated by the Departinent or deemed satisfactory by the
Department. :
'i
12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted w1thm sixty (60) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satlsfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated'm the Proposal and other information required by the
Department. '

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number
of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the
obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obhgatlons as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by. the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retam the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

a

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or resulting

from the performance of the services of the Contract shall mclude the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), wias financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, with funds provided in
part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or sdch other funding sources as were available or required,
e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Servnces

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regu]atlons In the operation of any facilities for providing
services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any government license or permit shall be frequired for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will proctre said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Ofﬁce of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.
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16. Insurance: Select either (1) or (2) below: ;

As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehensive Gieneral Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form, the
Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable 'ito this contract:

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) conrractorsiwhose annual gross amount of contract work with the
State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp; 2006): The general liability insurance requirements of
standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work withfthe state does not exceed $500,000, is comprehensive
general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1, 000, 000 per claim or occurrence and $2,000,000 in the

aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified. ;
i
O (1) The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) cbntractor whose annual total amount of contract work
with the State of New Hampshire does not ¢ exceed}g$500,000.

Insurance Reguirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp. 2006),
Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply The Contractor shall, at its sole
expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force,
both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehenswe general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per incident
or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the State of NH determines contract activities are a risk of lower
liability.

X  (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV
(Supp. 2006).

17. Renewal:

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and C}‘ouncil.

:

The remainder of this page is i‘ntentionally left blank.
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows: !

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement tb the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or avallablllty of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
~ appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or avallablllty of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scfope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in eéccess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appr'opriated or available funds, the State shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any
other source or account into the Account(s) 1dentlﬁed in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
. Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this;contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language; ;

10.1 The State méy terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30
days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement. i

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan .for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishes a process to meet those needs. l

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having ser\hces delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a a 1 process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan.

110.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notrfymg clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as described above.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
) ¢

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of exi)ense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accountmg principles established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. ;
|

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document subr?nitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Se':‘rvices to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contrac;t.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide tofeligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state la'ws regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time. i

i
CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document: prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
Procedures Act. NH 'RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of i;implemen’cing State of NH and federal regulations

promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Standard Exhibits A —J v Contractor Inmals

September 2009 !
Page 15 of 30 Date: _)



L

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-F R]EE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General PrOVlSIOI‘lS agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections
5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act to 1988 (Pub. L. 100 690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and
further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as 1dent1ﬁed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: !

’1
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS{
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONT RACTO‘RS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sectlons 5151-51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act
of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle B; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). the January 31, 1989 regulatlons were amended
and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681 21691) and require certification by
grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free
workplace. Section 3017.630 of the regulation provides théit a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certlﬁcatlon to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of
certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certification set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or
violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspensioxf of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or

government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:
i
I

Commnssnoner
NH Department of Health and Human Services,
129 PleasantlStreet
Concord, NH! 03301

1) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to prow;)ide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees thafit the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession or use of a controlled substance is pr;ohibited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying the
actions that will be taken against employees for vi?lation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness prog%am to inform employee’s about:

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplztlce
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehablhtatlon and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon ;_employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace; §
(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be éngaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy
of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d). Notifying the employee in the statement requlrec by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment
under the grant, the employee will:

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and_
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(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or! her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute
occurring in the workplace no later than ﬁve calendar days after such conviction;

(¢) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calepdar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)
(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted
employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity
the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the 1dent1ﬁcatlon number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 39 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph
(dX2), with respect to any employee who is so c’onvicted

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action agamst such an employee, up to and including termination,
consistent with the requirements of the Rchabllltatxon Act of 1973, as amended; or

I
(2) Requiring such employee to partnmpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation

program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or
other appropriate agency; .

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maint,'éin a drug-free workplace through implementation of

paragraphs (a), (b), (), (d), (e), and (£). ";

2) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection
- with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)
2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301

b
Check a if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

June 30,2015
Contractor Name

ermd Covered by this Certification

f
t
i
Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director l
Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative
l
|
l

5/2/13
Date

Contractor RepreseiMdative Signaty
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NH Department of Health z;nd Human Services
Standard Exljlibit E

:
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
i
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provnslons agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319
of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for Ncw Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and
further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as 1dent1ﬁcd in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: ¢

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ~ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ~ CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): :

*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title [V-A |

*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D ‘

*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX :

*Medicaid Program under Title XIX }

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI !

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV ff
{
Contract Period: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C Approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015 '
|
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
nH No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or w111 be paid by or on behalf of the undersngned to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
~ officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendnl'lent, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds, other than Federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or émployee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,

- grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specnﬁc mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the undersigned
shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Dlsclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its
instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhlblt E-1.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub‘grants and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify gnd disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by
Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails(“ to file the required certification shall be subject to civil
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

R}alph Littlefield, Executive Director

i'Contractor’s Representative Title
{

Contractor Signat

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. | 5/2/13
Contractor Name | Date

i
|
i
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NH Department of Health a{nd Human Services

Standard Ex:hibit F
1

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Executive
Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certlﬁcatlon

1

Instructions for Certification ;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. i

2. The inability of a person to provide the certiﬁcation required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The cemﬁcatlon or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Health and Human Serv1ces (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation
shall disqualify such person from participation in thisitransaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representétion of fact upon which reliance was placed when DHHS
determined to enter into this transition. If it ‘is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, m addition to other remedies available to the Federal
"~ Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

>

The prospective primary partncnpant shall provide unmedlate written notice to the DHHS agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospectlve primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erronelous by reason of changed circumstances.
5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “su‘spended ” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transition,
partmnpant ” “person,” “primary covered transactlon,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntary excluded,”
used in this clause, have the meanings set out| lin the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rule
- implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76 See the attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submlttmg this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction with a person who is debarred suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partlcxpatlon in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

i

7. The prospective primary participant further agreesi'by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspetfsmn Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier
Covered Transaction”, “provided by DHHS, w1thout modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in

. all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. }
8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely u'}pon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, sfuspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
—covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the
method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is
not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of  excluded parties).

|

i
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" Contractor S}

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification reqmred by thlS clause. The knowledge and information of a participant
" is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of
business dealings. !
10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph'6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available

to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transactlon for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
1. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily

excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
f

b. have not within a three-year period preceding ;this proposal (contract) been convicted or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing ajpublic (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract
under a public transaction; violation of Federal o"r State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement,
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destructxon of records, making false statermnents, or receiving stolen

property; g

c. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminaily or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal,
State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 1 b of this certification;
and

d. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
I
2. Where the prospective primary participant is unablfe to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).
Lower Tier Covered Transactions {
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined
in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief'that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debannent declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transactlon by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier partxcxpanft is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
_participant shall attach an explanation to thi's proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include
this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensmn Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion —
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without mod;ﬁcanon in all lower tier covered transactions and in all
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. |

4 N

Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director

~ Contractor’s Representative Title

i

Community Actign Program Belknap-Merrimack Countics, Inc. i 5/2/13
Contractor Name t Date

!
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NH Department of Health z;lnd Human Services
Standard Exljlibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

{
{

The contractar identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s representative
as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provision’s, to execute the following certification:
{

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Corftractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabiliticsf' Act of 1990.

- Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director
Contractoq’"s Representative Title

Coutractor 3i
i}.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. ’ 5/2/13
1
| Date

Contractor Name

[
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NH Department of Health énd Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CEQTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smok"e also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act),

requires that smoking not be permitted in any pomon of any ; ’mdoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an
entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee The law does not apply to children’s services
provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used
for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply w1thJ the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of
a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the 1mposnt10n of an administrative compliance order on the

responsible entity. '
i

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General ' Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

i
By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractorf agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with all
applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, knm:rm as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

F

<,

1.

Ralph Littlefield
Executive Director

Contractor’s Representative Title

\Contr or Signa

Counties, Inc.
Date

|
i
¥
!
j
I
i
}
t
i
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack ]
’ o 5/2/13
Contractor Name ?
]
!
¥
3
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply
with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Informatlon 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of
the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defmed herein, “Business Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
1 Definitions. :

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the termf “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given suclfl term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. 1

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such tenn in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. j

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meanmg as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. 1

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meanir;:gg as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. |

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same m‘feaning as the term “health care operations” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. g

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Informatlon? Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIIlI, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the Amencan:Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portabilit? and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191

and the Standards for Privacy and Security of ;f_Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164, ;

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the;term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personalX representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g). 5

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for anvacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promuligated under i{IPAA by the United States Department of Health and

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the sérne meaning as the term “protected health information”

Human Services.

in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or

on behalf of Covered Entity.
Standard Exhibits A —J : Contractor Initials:
September 2009 |
Page 23 of 30 ; Date: Ai'_'ﬁgpi



")

F

@

September 2009

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaningi‘ as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section

164.501.

i

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Deéartment of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee. ‘
“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standa.rds for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health

Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

i
- “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means jprotected health information that is not secured by a

technology standard that renders protected health ifnformation unusable, unreasonable, or indecipherable
to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is

accredited by the American National Standards Ins‘{itute_.

. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise deﬁnefa herein shall have the meaning established under 45

C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from tirfne to time, and the HITECH Act.

. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informa tl

.——

!

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, mamtam or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the servnces outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: ¢

}
L For the proper management and admmlstratlon of the Business Associate;
I As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to thei{third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with tpe HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PH, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.
|

The Business- Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered" Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate rellef If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

s
f

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Asso’ciate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such addltlonal restrictions and shall abide by any additional
security safeguards. ’

)
|
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3 Obligations and Activities of Business Associate, 1

a.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtltle D, Part 1, Sec.13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sectlons of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of 1ts internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. !

i

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the' duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity fshall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of
the Contracfor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will
be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose
of use and disclosure of protected health informati%m.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wriften request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hour§ at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’sicompliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrltten request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Coveéred Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

b :
B |
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Business Associate shall document such dlsclosures of PHI and ulformatlon related to such disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an mdxvndual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

[
Within ten (lO) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assdcmte shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to ffulﬁll its obli atlons to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with; 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall w1th1n two (2) dusmess days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the respon51b111ty of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as requxred by such lgw and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, flfr any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entlty, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement and shall not retain any copies or back-up
tapes of such PHL. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Assoclate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make
the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as’ Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered
Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Busmess Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business
Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PFHI has been destroyed.

i

Obligations of Covered Entity

P
P

- Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy

Practices provided to individuals in accordance thh 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’ |s use or dlsclosdlre of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Assdc1ate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164 506 or 45 C[R Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Assoc1ate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of

- PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such

restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or dlsclosure of PHL.
I
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreem:ent the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of.a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entlty determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall repon the violation to ,the Secretary.

‘.
Miscellaneous i
Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms uised, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and S{acurity Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in etfect or as amended.

|
Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rﬁle and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect to the
PHI provnded by or created on behalf of Covered Entlty

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity }i ;n the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPA A, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given
effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are
declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreemient in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement. '

Contractor Initials: __# § i
1
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exec{llted this Exhibit I.

i
|
i

i

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES Comn;Eunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
The State Agency Name Narne of Contractor
ACﬁq Dﬁvu— : /

Signature of Authoriz@Representative Signhature of Al}ghorized epresentative

RALPH LITTLEFIELD

LISA L. BUINO, MSN, APRN
Name of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

[RUUOR——

oy v

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

BUREAU CHIEF
Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

SRR PR,

5- 36-20l3 | 5/2/13
! Date

Date

M S = e e e
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

i
i

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

!
i
;

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Aict (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on data related
to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the initial award is below
$25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total;award equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject
to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

3 .
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requnrements
1) Name of entity - ’
2) Amount of award {
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source |
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding actlon
7) Location of the entity ;
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #) {
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are! Ifrom the Federal government, and those revenues are
greater than $25M annually and t
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipienté must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which the
award or award amendment is made. -

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of The
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR
Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees to have the
Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the
following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed mformatlon as outlined above to the NH Department of
Health and Human Services and to comply with all appllcable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act. Z

| Ralph Littlefield
§ Executive Director
(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, In¢c.
(Contractor Name)

Standard Exhibits A —J
September 2009
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NH Department of Health :imd Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A
|
As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov151ons I certify that the responses to the below
listed questions are true and accurate. :
;

073997504

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization receive
(1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-
grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000, 000: or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperatlve agreements?

?
If the answer to #2 abovl'e is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, filease answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the cl;ompensatlon of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Reyenue Code of 19867

i
B YES|

If the answer to #3 abovqf is YES, stop here
!
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or

organization are as follows: I
;

Amount: ke

Name: #
Name: E Amount: SERE
Name: §

Amount: R
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Agency Name:

Name of Bureau/Section: Community Health Services/Maternal & Child Health/Family Planning Services

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Family Planning

Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director $140,639
Brian F. Hoffman, Deputy Director $117,785
Susan M. Wnuk, Director, Community Health & Nutrition Services $66,866
Jan Rowley, Clincial Coordinator $40,997

$0

$0
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director $140,639 0.00%
Brian F. Hoffman, Deputy Director $117,785 0.00%}
Susan M. Wnuk, Director, Community Health & Nutrition Services $66,866 13.33%
Jan Rowley, Clincial Coordinator $40,997 62.50%
$0 0.00%].
" -
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line item 1 of Budget request)

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc.), and
individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager, etc.). These
personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name, title, annual salary and
percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to Family Planning Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Family Planning Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment 1”) dated this 9th day of April, 2015, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Concord Hospital, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-
profit corporation with a place of business at 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 19, 2013, (ltem #94), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may
amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and
increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:

Amend Form P-37, Subject to read Family Planning Services

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2017

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $512,253.74

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9 to read Eric Borrin

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9558

Amend Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Contract Period to read: “July 1, 2013 or date of G&C
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2017."

o o~ w0 h =

7. Amend Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, by:

7.1. Changing Contract Period to read, “July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever
is later, through June 30, 2017”

7.2. Changing Job #45130203 to read Job #45030203
7.3. Deleting paragraph 1 in its entirety and replacing it with new paragraph 1 and sub-
paragraphs (a) and (b):

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for the cost and
expenses incurred in the performance of services during the period of July 1,
2015 through June 30, 2017 shall not exceed:

CA/DHHS/100213

Amendment #1 Contractor Initials: /
Page 1 of 4 Date: £



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

(a) $129,549.00in SFY 2016 and $129,549.00 in SFY 2017 for a total amount of
$259,098.

(b) Funding is available as follows:

o $118,136.81 — 61.2% Federal Funds from the Office of Population Affairs,
Family Planning Services, Title X of the Public Health Services Act, CFDA
#93.217, Federal Award ldentification Number (FAIN), FPHPA016063

o $74,897.19 — 38.8% from General Funds

e $66,064.00 — 100% Federal Funds from the Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Title IV of the Social
Security Act, (CFDA #93.558, FAIN 1502NHTANF).

7.4. Deleting paragraph 2 and replacing it with new paragraph 2;

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for
direct and indirect costs and expenses including, but not limited to, personnel
costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as detailed in Exhibit
B-1, Budget. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State
in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The
Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or

improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the
State.

7.5. Deleting paragraph 6 and replacing it with new paragraph 6:

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment
limited to adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers,
within the price limitation, may be made by written agreement of both parties

and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

8. Add Exhibit B-1

9. Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1
10. Add Exhibit C-1

11. Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1
12. Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

CA/DHHS/100213
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

/2117 W/\\

Date Brook Dupee
Bureau Chief

Concord Hospital, Inc.

L//%L/ 2015~ M A A

Date 7 NAME K pled m{’je/“
TTLE  Jjon dent € @ €8>

Acknowledgement: .
State of AP , County o‘fm/ﬂtaaé gﬁ/ﬁ% P Dnefore the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Yo/ 2

Name and Title of Notary or JustiCe of the Peace

\\“\uumm,,

6‘\_, E ”//
X o

commssno~ %
EXPIRES '-

APRIL 18, 2017 H
£ % RYP\f’

AN AU -"\>\
%, \\\
7} ,,”H

AMPS
Iumu\\\\“\

2,
.99 %,

\\
/llmmu\\\\\“

\\\\““"”"””I/,
o“"‘ ae

\\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

|2 16

Date U ‘
Tltle

OFFICE 0 THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

(—

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
Page 4 of 4 Date:



Exhibit B-1
Budget
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Concord Hospital Family Health Center

Budget Request for: Family Planning

Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

Direct
1. _Total Salary/Wages $ 56,517.00
2. Employee Benefits $
3. Consultants $
4. Equipment: $
Rental $ -
$
$
$

Repair and Maintenance
Purchase/Depreciation
5. Supplies:
Educational b
Lab b -
Pharmacy $  40,000.00
Medical
Office
Travel
Occupancy
Current Expenses
Telephone
Postage
Subscriptions
Audit and Legal
Insurance

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
Board Expenses $ -
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Py

«H

®|Nfo

9. Software

10. Marketing/Communications

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

L]
R Rl Rl e R R d R g R A R R R A R R R A e R R R R A R A R DA R A R A R P A R R R R AR R P R Y e
'

_ TOTAL 96,517.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS M
Exhibit B-1 Budget Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: "‘/ 24 /:)f
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: Concord Hospital Family Health Center
Budget Request for: Family Planning
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17
~ [ Direct Indirect
funeitem = = __| Incremental _ Fixed
1. _Total Salary/Wages $ 56517.00|% -
2. Employee Benefits 3 - $ -
3. Consultants $ - $ -
4. Equipment: 3 - 3 -
Rental $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance 3 - 3 -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - 13 -
5. Supplies: $ - 3 -
Educational $ - 19 -
Lab $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ 40,000.00|% -
Medical $ - $ -
Office $ - |3 -
6. Travel 3 - $ -
7. Occupancy $ - $ -
8. Current Expenses 3 - 3 -
Telephone $ - 13 -
Postage $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - 13 -
Audit and Legal $ - 1% -
Insurance $ - 13 -
Board Expenses 3 - $ -
9. Software $ - 1% -
10._Marketing/Communications $ - 19 -
11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ -
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 96,517.00[$ - J|$ 96,517.00 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Concord Hospital Family Health Center

Budget Request for: Family Planning - TANF

Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

Line item

Direct " Indirect __ Total
incremental Fixed ‘

1.

Total Saléry/Wages 33,032.00 55,032.06

. Employee Benefits

Consultants

2
3.
4

Equipment.

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

Supplies:

Educational

$
$
$
$
Rental $ -
$
$
$
$
$

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

Travel

Occupancy

®IN®

Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

Software

10.

Marketing/Communications

11.

Staff Education and Training

12.

Subcontracts/Agreements

13.

Other (specific details mandatory):
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TOTAL 33,032.00 33,032.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Concord Hospital Family Health Center

Budget Request for: Family Planning-TANF
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/117

Line item

Direct
incremental

indirect
Fixed

1.

Total Salary/Wages

33,032.00

Total

33.032.00

Employee Benefits

Consultants

2.
3.
4

. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

Travel

Occupancy

®IN|o

Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

Software

10.

Marketing/Communications

11.

Staff Education and Training

12.

Subcontracts/Agreements

13.

Other (specific details mandatory):

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
3
$
$
$
$ -
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

R R AR R R d R R R d R A R AR A R R A R d Ry R R R oA € R Dy R By R R Y B B A oy ey B Ry p et e

TOTAL

enllen

b
b 33,032.00

enllen
\-4d | Riad

1

33,032.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligibie have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shali be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shal! be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’'s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL. If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligibie
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials _ 4 i J
Amendment #1
06727114 Page 5 of 5 Date /5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Renewal:
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewal Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA,) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistie blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

H /99/ 2015 //% /CA—— |

Date Name: koke 4 V\ﬁkl meye o
I / Title: /{ﬁdaﬂ‘{ %C;s:) j
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

¢. 'Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
20089.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promuigated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials /

Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Assaciate Agreement
Page 1 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

()

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
iIl. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available ali of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PH

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shail make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524,

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528,

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. /,{/
Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.
¢ ynn ek (
P Y NA (' Gfoid S0
The State Name of $he Contractor
i), v f A

Signature of Authorized Representative ignature of Authorlze Representatlve
! :
ok Dyt i herd V

Gnege
Name of Authorized Representative ame of Authorlzed Representétive
Qe vl Drondogh < 020
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
ey 2,5
Date Date / /[
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State of Nefw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Concord Hospital, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
January 29, 1985. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 10" day of April, A.D. 2015

Zy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE
I, Mary Boucher, Secretary of Concord Hospital, Inc. do hereby certify:

1) I maintain and have custody of and am familiar with the seal and minute books of
the corporation;

2) I am authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books and
to affix such seal to such certificates;

3) The following is a true and complete copy of the resolution adopted by the board of
trustees of the corporation at a meeting of that board on March 21, 2005 which
meeting was held in accordance with the law of the state of incorporation and the
bylaws of the corporation:

The motion was made, seconded and the Board unanimously voted that the powers
and duties of the President shall include the execution of all contracts and other
legal documents on behalf of the corporation, unless some other person is
specifically so designated by the Board, by law, or pursuant to the administrative
policy adadressing contract and expenditure approval levels.

4) the foregoing resolution is in full force and effect, unamended, as of the date
hereof; and
5) the following persons lawfully occupy the offices indicated below:

Robert P. Steigmeyer, President
Bruce R. Burns, Chief Financial Officer

Corporation this & 2\ day of 20_/5 .

(Corporate seal) ﬂ—M/(// vf MGA/(//

Secretar/

State of /]/’I/ i , County of %W/ /’(ﬂ%
“ %7 v 2278
On this th& day of // ,20 /6 before n%ﬂc/ , the undersigned
officer, personally appeared%mm , who acknow!edg‘I llmself to be the
Ny
W M %eéporatlon and that such
MW being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes

therein contained, \Qy\ &imgg‘fé&/})ame of the corporation by her/himself MM

IN WITNETSS @@REOF Iﬂqreunt’q@‘emy hand and official seal.

{ COMMISSION %
EXPIRES ¢
i APRIL18,2017 §

O Notary Publicjlustice of the Peace
%my p\)@k‘: - f'
195 \<\Q\:\\ My Commission expizesi/ , // /4 %/7

// HA
”/lumnm\\‘

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have Zereunto set my hand as the Secretary of the

I,

(Seal)

W

\\\\\‘“ "
//
"”Iumum

N
\\\
N

N
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDD/YYYY)
12/29/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROD!

UCER
MARSH USA, INC.
99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON, MA 02110

ONTACT
NAME:
PHONE J FAX
(AIC, No):
E-MAIL
| ADDRESS:

Attn: Boston certrequest@marsh.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

319078-CHS-gener-15-16 INSURER & : Oranite Shield Insurance Exchange
INSURED .

CAPITAL REGION HEALTHCARE CORPORATION INSURERB :

& CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. INSURER C :

ATTN: JESSICA FANJOY .

250 PLEASANT STREET INSURER D ;

CONCORD, NH 03301 INSURERE :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-005740298-20 REVISION NUMBER: 0

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
IR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR| POLICY NUMBER MM/DD/YYYY) mﬁ_l%oﬂvw umITs
A | GENERAL LIABILITY GSIE-PRIM-2015-101 0101/2015 0101/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE s 2,000,000
F— DAMAGE 10 RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Pnemses?& occurrence) | $
J CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | §
PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | '§
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 12,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | §
POLICY RO Loc $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (%ghggéﬁgt,glmm TIMIT
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
AL SUNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) |
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
s
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED L EETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- l ]om-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
(Mandatory in NH) E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A |Professional Liability GSIE-PRIM-2015-101 01012015 01/01/2016 SEE ABOVE

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarke Schedule, if more space is required)
GENERAL LIABILITY AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY SHARE A COMBINED LIMIT OF 2,000,000/12,000,000. HOSPITAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RETRO ACTIVE-DATE 6/24/1985.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE
CONCORD, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.

it an. Iriellsig—

Susan Molioy

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




ACORD..

Client#: 243089

CAPITALREG

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDD/YYYY)
10/14/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

cortificato holder in lleu of such endorsement(s).

HU
HU

PRODUCER

B Healthcare Solutions
B International New England

136 Turnpike Road, Suite 105
Southborough, MA 01772

SRue e’ Jessica Kelley

PHONE

{A1C. No, Ext): 508-303-9473

[P oy, 508-303-9476

ML os. jessica.kelley@hubinternational.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC #

wsurer A ; Safety National Casualty Corp

INSURED i INSURER B ;
Capital Region Healthcare Corporation INSURER C -
250 Pleasant Street INSURER D
Concord, NH 03301 )
INSURERE :
INSURER F
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'''' Si TADDLISUBH] POLICYEFF | P Y EXP
'|.M|'snR TYPE OF INSURANCE 'ND§DBL SUBDT POLICY NUMBER MM/'T)CDNYW) (Ml?ll‘b'gIYYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Ay e
J CLAINS-MADE | OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | §
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $
GENERAL AGGREGATE $
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $
POLICY PR Loc $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY %2'22&'}%2,)3'”&5 TIMIT
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
| ALL OWNED SCHEDULED -
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMERELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
DED ] l RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
A | ND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY N SP4051888 10/01/14 {10/01/15 | X |TCORY | miTs ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE| $1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below SIR $500,000 E.L. DISEASE - PoLICY LimiT | 31,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

ERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

prom——

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human

Services

105 Pleasant Drive

Concord, NH 03301
|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 2§ (2010/05) 1

of 1
#51235661/M1235649

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

JSo08

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Concord Hospital, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Concord Hospital, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the System), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30,2014 and 2013,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the System as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.
&J@r Klu)mon ?%‘5

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company

December 8§, 2014
Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC

1



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
(In thousands)

2014 2013

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,953 § 24,006

Investments 12,390 2,384

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
0f $16,339 in 2014 and $19,695 in 2013 46,896 46,061
Due from affiliates 438 584
Supplies 1,443 1,153
5,927 5,983

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets 80,047 80,171

Assets whose use is limited or restricted:
Board designated
Funds held by trustee:
Workers' compensation reserves and self-insurance escrows
Construction fund
Donor-restricted

263,225 230,143

10,499 9,212
- 10,398
34,932 32.367

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted 308,656 282,120

Other noncurrent assets: .
Due from affiliates, net of current portion 2,428 2,779
Bond issuance costs and other assets 24,613 18.651

Total other noncurrent assets 27,041 21,430

Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Construction in progress

5,370 5,394
175,689 166,951
214,922 205,283

10,414 9.286

406,395 386,914
(255,381) (230.767)

Less accumulated depreciation

151,014 156,147

Net property and equipment
$.566,758 $.539,868



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
(In thousands)

2014 2013

Current liabilities:
Short-term notes payable $ 1912 § 1,027
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 20,448 21,822
Accrued compensation and related expenses 25,829 23,293
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements 15,033 14,599
Current portion of long-term debt 8.131 7,931

Total current liabilities 71,353 68,672

Long-term debt, net of current portion 103,495 111,781

78,191 64,102

Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities 253,039 244,555

Net assets:
Unrestricted 278,787 262,946
Temporarily restricted 15,089 14,127
19.843 18,240

Permanently restricted

Total net assets 313,719 295,313

$.566,758 $_539.868

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

2014 2013

Unrestricted revenue and other support:
Net patient service revenue, net of
contractual allowances and discounts
Provision for doubtful accounts
Net patient service revenue less
provision for doubtful accounts

$442,951 $432,232
(32,476) (31.493)

410,475 400,739

23,387 24,140
5,099 -
1,354 1,886

Other revenue
Disproportionate share revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total unrestricted revenue and other support 440,315 426,765

Expenses:
Salaries and wages 186,457 180,716
48,346 45,644

Employee benefits
76,206 76,347

Supplies and other
Purchased services 61,668 59,783
2,670 3,170

Professional fees

Depreciation and amortization 25,397 25,047
Medicaid enhancement tax 16,437 16,541
Interest expense 4,057 4,720

421,238 411,968

Total expenses

Income from operations 19,077 14,797

Nonoperating income (loss):
Unrestricted gifts and bequests 218 159
Investment income and other 9,923 92
Loss on extinguishment of debt - (3.169)

10,141 (2.918)

Total nonoperating income (loss)

$.29.218 35 11879

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30,2014 and 2013

(In thousands)

Unrestricted net assets:
Excess of revenues and gains over expenses
Net unrealized gains on investments
Net transfers from affiliates
Net assets released from restrictions used for
purchases of property and equipment
Pension adjustment

Increase in unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net assets:
Restricted contributions and pledges

Restricted investment income
Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations

Net unrealized gains on investments
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions used for
purchases of property and equipment
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets
Permanently restricted net assets:
Restricted contributions and pledges
Unrealized gains on trusts administered by others
Increase in permanently restricted net assets
Increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes.

2014 2013
$ 29218 $ 11,879
2,627 22,870
312 295

62 112
(16378) _26.967
15,841 62,123
1,157 1,285
984 66
(146) (135)
383 2,019
(1,354)  (1,886)
(62) (112)

962 1,237
1,211 1,022
392 466
1,603 1,488
18,406 64,848
295313 230.465
$313,719 $295313



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Restricted contributions and pledges
Depreciation and amortization
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments
Bond premium amortization
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Provision for doubtful accounts
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment
Pension adjustment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Supplies, prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets

$ 18,406 § 64,848

(2,368)  (2,307)
25,397 25,047
(12,123)  (23,589)

(154) (202)
- 3,169
32,476 31,493
6,121)  (5.835)
(55) 56
16,378 (26,967

(33311)  (35,940)
(234)  (1,944)
6.279)  (11,973)

Due from affiliates 497 44

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,374) 414)

Accrued compensation and related expenses 2,536 1,071
434 3,257

Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements
Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

(2,289) 8,069
31,816 27,883

Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in property and equipment, net
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales of investments
Equity distributions from affiliates

Net cash used by investing activities

(20,148)  (23,961)
(50,714)  (161,265)
26,381 127,222

6.377 6.152
(38,104) (51,852

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt - 81,052
Payments on long-term debt (7,932)  (67,646)
Change in short-term notes payable 885 326
Bond issuance costs - (766)
2,282 2,289

Restricted contributions and pledges

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (4,765) 15,255

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (11,053) (8,714)

24,006 32,720

$_12.953 §$_24.006

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Concord Hospital, Inc., (the Hospital) located in Concord, New Hampshire, is a not-for-profit acute care
hospital. The Hospital provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for
residents within its geographic region. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.
The Hospital is controlled by Capital Regional Health Care Corporation (CRHC).

In 1985, the then Concord Hospital underwent a corporate reorganization in which it was renamed and
became CRHC. At the same time, the Hospital was formed as a new entity. All assets and liabilities of
the former hospital, now CRHC, with the exception of its endowments and restricted funds, were
conveyed to the new Hospital. The endowments were held by CRHC for the benefit of the Hospital,
which is the true party in interest. Effective October 1, 1999, CRHC transferred these funds to the

Hospital.

In March 2009, Concord Hospital created The Concord Hospital Trust (the Trust), a separately
incorporated, not-for-profit organization to serve as the Hospital's philanthropic arm. In establishing the
Trust, the Hospital transferred philanthropic permanent and temporarily restricted funds, including board
designated funds, endowments, indigent care funds and specific purpose funds, to the newly formed
organization together with the stewardship responsibility to direct monies available to support the
Hospital's charitable mission and reflect the specific intentions of the donors who made these gifis.
Concord Hospital and the Trust constitute the Obligated Group at September 30, 2014 and 2013 to

certain debt described in Note 6.

Subsidiaries of the Hospital include:

Capital Region Health Care Development Corporation (CRHCDC) is a not-for-profit real estate
corporation that owns and operates medical office buildings and other properties.

Capital Region Health Ventures Corporation (CRHVC) is a not-for-profit corporation that engages in
health care delivery partnerships and joint ventures. It operates ambulatory surgery and diagnostic

facilities in cooperation with other entities.

CH/DHC, Inc. d/b/a Dartmouth-Hitchcock-Concord (CH/DHC) is a not-for-profit corporation that
provides clinical medical services through a multi-specialty group practice. CH/DHC was formed under
a joint agreement between the Hospital and DH-Concord.

The Hospital, its subsidiaries and the Trust are collectively referred to as the System. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, the Trust, CRHCDC, CRHVC and CH/DHC.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant areas which are
affected by the use of estimates include the allowance for doubtful accounts and contractual adjustments,
estimated third-party payor settlements, and actuarial assumptions used in determining pension expense,
health benefit plan expense, workers' compensation costs and malpractice losses.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Hospital to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
Hospital's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The Hospital's accounts receivable are primarily due from third-party payors and
amounts are presented net of expected contractual allowances and uncollectible amounts. The Hospital's
investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. The State
Street S&P 500 CTF exceeded 10% of investments as of September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds and secured repurchase agreements with original
maturities of three months or less, excluding assets whose use is limited or restricted.

The Hospital maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Hospital has not experienced any losses on such accounts.

Supplies

Supplies are carried at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted-average method, or market.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements,
workers' compensation reserves, quasi-endowment funds, designated assets set aside by the Board of
Trustees, over which the Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other

purposes, and donor-restricted investments.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Description of Organization and Summa

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Investment
income (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) is included in the
excess of revenues and gains over expenses unless the income is restricted by donor or law. Gains and
losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis. Unrealized gains and losses on
investments are excluded from the excess of revenues and gains over expenses unless the investments
are classified as trading securities or losses are considered other-than-temporary. Periodically,
management reviews investments for which the market value has fallen significantly below cost and
recognizes impairment losses where they believe the declines are other-than-temporary.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The System has an irrevocable right to receive income earned on certain trust assets established for its
benefit. Distributions received by the System are unrestricted. The System's interest in the fair value of
the trust assets is included in assets whose use is limited. Changes in the fair value of beneficial trust

assets are reported as increases or decreases to permanently restricted net assets.

Investment Policies

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated (unrestricted) funds.

Endowment funds are identified as permanent in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable

events.

Temporarily restricted funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the
donor or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with

specific identified spending objectives.

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets is designed to increase, with minimum risk, the inflation adjusted principal
and income of the endowment funds over the long term. The System targets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Description of Organization and Summa

Spending Policy for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation
and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; (f) other
resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the
programs. The System has a current spending policy on various funds currently equivalent to 5% of

twelve-quarter moving average of the funds' total market value.

Accounts Receivable and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the collectibility
of accounts receivable, the System analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its major
payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for
doubtful accounts. Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of revenue in
evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. For receivables associated with
services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, the System analyzes contractually due
amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a provision for doubtful accounts, if
necessary (for example, for expected uncollectible deductibles and copayments on accounts for which
the third-party payor has not yet paid, or for payors who are known to be having financial difficulties
that make the realization of amounts due unlikely). For receivables associated with self-pay patients
(which includes both patients without insurance and patients with deductible and copayment balances
due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill), the System records a provision for doubtful
accounts in the period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients
are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the standard rates (or the discounted rates if negotiated) and the amounts actually
collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance

for doubtful accounts.

The System's allowance for doubtful accounts for self-pay patients represented 87% of self-pay accounts
receivable at September 30, 2014 and 2013. The total provision for the allowance for doubtful accounts
was $32,476 and $31,493 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The System
also allocates a portion of the allowance and provision for doubtful accounts to charity care, which is
reflected within net patient service revenue, net of contractual allowance and discounts, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The System's self-pay bad debt writeoffs
increased $212, from $32,284 in 2013 to $32,496 in 2014. The change in bad debt writeoffs was a result

of collection trends.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase, or at fair value at time of donation for assets
contributed, less any reductions in carrying value for impairment and less accumulated depreciation.
The System's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major improvements and charge maintenance and
repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize the cost of the related assets
over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, depreciation

expense was $25,336 and $24,859, respectively:

The System has also capitalized certain costs associated with property and equipment not yet in service.
Construction in progress includes amounts incurred related to major construction projects, other
renovations, and other capital equipment purchased but not yet placed in service. Interest capitalized as
part of construction projects was $23 during 2013. There was no interest capitalized during 2014.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as unrestricted support, and
are excluded from the excess of revenues and gains over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations
specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-
lived assets, are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those
long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or

acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the grant expenditures are
incurred.

Bond Issuance Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for construction and renovation projects and the original
issue discount or premium are being amortized by the straight-line method, which approximates the
effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. The original issue discount or premium

is presented as a component of bonds payable.

Charity Care

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates (Note 11). Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue, The System
determines the costs associated with providing charity care by calculating a ratio of cost to gross charges,
and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to
patients eligible for free care. Funds received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided
for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $349 and $607, respectively.

11



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use
has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction expires (when
a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets
are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported as either net assets released from restrictions for
operations (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used for purchases of
property and equipment (capital related items). Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted

by donors to be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per
discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient
service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and
others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.
Changes in these estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year in which they occur. For
the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, net patient service revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations increased by approximately $2,914 and $1,366, respectively, due
to actual settlements and changes in assumptions underlying estimated future third-party settlements.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 27% and 3% and
28% and 3% of the System's net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex

and subject to interpretation.

The Hospital recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For uninsured
patients, the Hospital provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest private insurance
payors. On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Hospital's uninsured patients
will be unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the Hospital records a significant
provision for doubtful accounts related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided.

12



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the System are reported at fair value at the date
the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and intentions to give are reported at fair value at
the date the condition is met. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets.

Excess of Revenues and Gains QOver Expenses

The System has deemed all activities as ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services
and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenue and expenses, except for unrestricted
contributions and pledges, the related philanthropy expenses, investment income and loss on
extinguishment of debt which are recorded as nonoperating income (loss).

The consolidated statements of operations also include excess of revenues and gains over expenses.
Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues and gains over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, include the change in net unrealized gains and losses on investments
other than trading securities or losses considered other than temporary, permanent transfers of assets to
and from affiliates for other than goods and services, the minimum pension liability adjustment and
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which by donor
restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Estimated Workers' Compensation and Health Care Claims

The provision for estimated workers' compensation and health care claims includes estimates of the
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

Income Taxes

The Hospital, CRHCDC, CRHVC, CH/DHC and the Trust are not-for-profit corporations as described
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and are exempt from federal income taxes on related
income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Management evaluated the System's tax positions and
concluded the System has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated
business income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. With few exceptions, the System is no longer subject
to income tax examination by the U.S. federal or state tax authorities for years before 2011.

Advertising Costs

The System expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled approximately $215 and $184
for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of its fiscal year and
December 8, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Transactions With Affiliates

The System provides funds to CRHC and its affiliates which are used for a variety of purposes. The
System records the transfer of funds to CRHC and the other affiliates as either receivables or directly
against net assets, depending on the intended use and repayment requirements of the funds. Generally,
funds transferred for start-up costs of new ventures or capital related expenditures are recorded as
charges against net assets. For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, transfers made to CRHC
were $(125) and $(212), respectively, and transfers received from Capital Region Health Care Services

Corporation (CRHCSC) were $437 and $507, respectively.
A brief description of affiliated entities is as follows:

e CRHCSC is a for-profit provider of health care services, including an eye surgery center and assisted
living facility.

¢ Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (CRVNA) provides home health
care services.

* Riverbend, Inc. provides behavioral health services.

Amounts due the System, primarily from joint ventures, totaled $2,866 and $3,363 at September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. Amounts have been classified as current or long-term depending on the
intentions of the parties involved. Beginning in 1999, the Hospital began charging interest on a portion
of the receivables ($931 and $968 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively) with principal and
interest (6.75% at September 30, 2014) payments due monthly. Interest income amounted to $64 and
$67 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations from temporarily restricted net assets were
$146 and $135 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014 and 2013

(In thousands)

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Investments totaling $12,390 and $2,384 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are comprised
primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Assets whose use is limited or restricted are carried at fair value

and consist of the following at September 30:

2014 2013

Board designated funds:
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income securities
Marketable equity and other securities
Inflation-protected securities

§ 2,598 § 2416
38,060 36,488
199,507 175,797
23,060 15,442
263,225 230,143

Held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves:

Fixed income securities * 3,749 3,629

Health insurance and other escrow funds:
Cash and cash equivalents 961 863
1,259 912

Fixed income securities

Marketable equity securities 4,530 3.808

6,750 5,583

Held by trustee for construction fund:
Cash equivalents - 10,398
Donor restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed income securities
Marketable equity securities
Inflation-protected securities
Trust funds administered by others

3,450 2,635
2,946 3,696
15,487 13,961
1,785 1,290
11,070 10,678

Other 194 107
34932 32367
$308,656 $282,120

Included in marketable equity and other securities above are $111,693 and $80,648 at September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively, in so called alternative investments. See also note 14.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted (Continued)

Investment income, net realized gains and losses and net unrealized gains and losses on assets whose
use is limited or restricted, cash and cash equivalents, and other investments are as follows at

September 30:

2014 2013
Unrestricted:
Interest and dividends $ 3,173 § 2,936
Investment income from trust funds administered by others 533 496
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments 7.987 (1.632)
11,693 1,800
Restricted:
Interest and dividends 250 200
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments 734 (134)
984 66
$12,677 $_1.866

Other changes in net assets:
Net unrealized gains on investments:

Unrestricted $ 2,627 $22,870

Temporarily restricted 383 2,019
Permanently restricted 392 466
$.3.402 $25355

In compliance with the System's spending policy, portions of investment income and related fees are
recognized in other operating revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Investment income reflected in other operating revenue was $1,693 and $1,550 in 2014 and 2013,

respectively.

Investment management fees expensed and reflected in nonoperating income were $884 and $736 for
the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted (Continued)

The following summarizes the Hospital's gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized

loss position at September 30, 2014 and 2013:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair  Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
2014
Marketable equity securities $ 1,188 § (142) $34,834  $(1,687) $36,022 §(1,829)
Fund-of-funds 17,772 (1,191) 16417 (1,370) 34,189 (2,561)
$18960 $(1,333) $51.251 $(3.057) $70.211 $.(4,390)
2013
Marketable equity securities  $41,047 § (882) § 47 $ (19) $41,094 $ (901)
REIT 108 3) - - 108 3)
Fund-of-funds 7.344 {658) 8.800 (981) 16,144 (1.639)

$48.499 $(1,543) $.8.847 $(1.000) $57.346 $(2.543)

In evaluating whether investments have suffered an other-than-temporary decline, based on input from
outside investment advisors, management evaluated the amount of the decline compared to cost, the
length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than cost, the underlying creditworthiness of
the issuer, the fair values exhibited during the year, estimated future fair values and the System's intent
and ability to hold the security until a recovery in fair value or maturity. Based on evaluations of the
underlying issuers' financial condition, current trends and economic conditions, management believes
that unrealized losses related to securities that have suffered an other-than-temporary decline in value

are not material to these consolidated financial statements.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The System has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the Plan), covering all eligible employees
of the System and subsidiaries. The Plan is a cash balance plan that provides benefits based on an
employee's years of service, age and the employee's compensation over those years. The System's
funding policy is to contribute annually the amount needed to meet or exceed actuarially determined
minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The System accounts for its defined benefit pension plan under ASC 715, Compensation Retirement
Benefits. This Statement requires entities to recognize an asset or liability for the overfunded or
underfunded status of their benefit plans in their financial statements.

The following table summarizes the Plan's funded status at September 30, 2014 and 2013:
2014 2013

Pension benefits:
Fair value of plan assets
Projected benefit obligation

$ 151,055 $ 131,706
(199.121)  (172.761)

$_(48,066) $_(41,055)

Activities for the year consist of:
Benefit payments and administrative expenses $
Net periodic benefit cost

7,556 $ 9,356
9,333 10,923

The table below presents details about the System's defined benefit pension plan, including its funded
status, components of net periodic benefit cost, and certain assumptions used in determining the funded

status and cost:
2014 2013

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain)
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid

$172,761 $186,897
8,447 8,711
9,052 7,940
16,417 (21,431)
(7,556) (9.356)

$199,121 $172,761

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid

$131,706 $117,798
8,205 11,264
18,700 12,000
(1,556) (9,.356)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $151,055 $131,706
Funded status and amount recognized in
noncurrent liabilities at September 30 $.(48,066) $(41,0535)
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September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Amounts recognized as a change in unrestricted net assets during the years ended September 30, 2014
and 2013 consist of:

2014 2013
$19,115  $(22,539)

Net actuarial loss (gain)
(2,770) (4,492)

Net amortized loss
Prior service credit amortization

Total amount recognized

Pension Plan Assets

The fair values of the System's pension plan assets and target allocations as of September 30, 2014 and
2013, by asset category are as follows (see Note 14 for level definitions):

Target Percentage of

Allo- Plan Assets
cation September 30,
2014 Level ]l Level2 Level3 Total 2014
Short-term investments: 0-20% 13%
Money market funds $19389 § - $f - $ 19,389
Equity securities: 40 — 80% 58%
Common stocks 8,040 - - 8,040
Mutual funds — international 13,288 - - 13,288
Common collective trust - 24,154 - 24,154
Funds-of-funds - 3,831 37,393 41,224
Fixed income securities: 5 - 80% 21%
Mutual funds — REIT 685 - - 685
Mutual funds — fixed income 27,054 - - 27,054
Funds-of-funds - - 4,545 4,545
Hedge funds: 0-30% 8%
Inflation hedge - 12,676 - 12,676

$68,456 $40,661 $41.938 $151,055
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September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Percentage of

Target
Allo- Plan Assets
cation September 30,
2013 Level ]l Level2 Level3 Total 2013
Short-term investments: 0-5% 7%
Money market funds $ 918 $ - §$ - $ 9,186
Equity securities: 40 — 70% 71%
Common stocks 6,960 - - 6,960
Mutual funds — international 36,542 - ~ 36,542
Common collective trust - 20,170 - 20,170
Funds-of-funds - 3,672 26,582 30,254
Fixed income securities: 10 - 60% 13%
Mutual funds — REIT 545 - - 545
Mutual funds - fixed income 11,529 - - 11,529
Funds-of-funds - - 4,568 4,568
Hedge funds: 0-20% 9%
Inflation hedge - 11,952 — 11,952

$64,762 $35,794 $31,150 $131,706

The funds-of-funds are invested with seven investment managers and have various restrictions on
redemptions. Five of the managers holding amounts totaling approximately $3 1 million at Séptember 30,
2014 allow for monthly redemptions, with notices ranging from 5 to 15 days. Two managers holding
amounts totaling approximately $15 million at September 30, 2014 allow for quarterly redemptions, with
a notice of 45 or 65 days. Two of the funds also require a one-year lock on initial deposit of funds. One
fund also may include a fee estimated to be equal to the cost the fund incurs in converting investments

to cash (maximum of 1.5%).
The table below sets forth a summary of changes in plan assets using unobservable inputs (Level 3):

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year $31,150 $33,772

Unrealized gains (losses) related to instruments

still held at the reporting date 2,015 (566)
Purchases 8,984 4,000
Sales (211) (6.056)

$41,938 $31,150

Balance, end of year
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September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The System considers various factors in estimating the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Among the factors considered include the historical long-term returns on plan assets, the current and
expected allocation of plan assets, input from the System's actuaries and investment consultants, and
long-term inflation assumptions. The System's expected allocation of plan assets is based on a
diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed income securities,

and real estate.

The System's investment policy for its pension plan is to balance risk and returns using a diversified
portfolio consisting primarily of high quality equity and fixed income securities. To accomplish this
goal, plan assets are actively managed by outside investment managers with the objective of optimizing
long-term return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and proper diversification. The
System monitors the maturities of fixed income securities so that there is sufficient liquidity to meet
current benefit payment obligations. The System's Investment Committee provides oversight of the plan
investments and the performance of the investment managers.

Amounts included in expense during fiscal 2014 and 2013 consist of;

(3o

2014 013

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost and gains and losses

$ 8447 $ 8711

9,052 7,940
(10,903)  (10,156)

2,737 4.428

$_9333 $_10923

Net periodic benefit cost

The accumulated benefit obligations for the plan at September 30, 2014 and 2013 were $187,040 and
$161,290, respectively.

(8]

2014 201

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligation:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

4.78%  5.38%
2.00 2.00

Weighted average assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost:
538% 4.40%

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets 8.00 8.00

Cash balance credit rate 5.00 5.00
2.00 2.00

Rate of compensation increase

In selecting the long-term rate of return on plan assets, the System considered the average rate of earnings
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits of the plan. This included
considering the plan's asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the
plan, as well as the historical returns on the types of assets held and the current economic environment.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The loss and prior service credit amount expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2015
are as follows:

Actuarial loss $4,100
Prior service credit (33)
$.4,067

The System funds the pension plan and no contributions are made by employees. The System funds the
plan annually by making a contribution of at least the minimum amount required by applicable
regulations and as recommended by the System's actuary. However, the System may also fund the plan
in excess of the minimum required amount.

Cash contributions in subsequent years will depend on a number of factors including performance of
plan assets. However, the System expects to fund $12,000 in cash contributions to the plan for the 2015

plan year.
Benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

Year Ended September 30 Pension Benefits

2015 $10,359
2016 11,426
2017 13,556
2018 14,132
2019 15,106
2020 -2024 89,267

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party

payors follows:

Medicare

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are primarily paid at
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is
based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. In addition to this, the System is also reimbursed for
medical education and other items which require cost settlement and retrospective review by the fiscal
intermediary. Accordingly, the System files an annual cost report with the Medicare program after the
completion of each fiscal year to report activity applicable to the Medicare program and to determine

any final settlements.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee screen basis.
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Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements (Continued)

Disproportionate Share Payments and Medicaid Enhancement Tax

Under the State of New Hampshire's tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement Tax (MET)
equal to 5.5% of net patient service revenues, with certain exclusions. The amount of tax incurred by
the System for fiscal 2014 and 2013 was $16,437 and $16,541, respectively.

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding retroactive to
July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment that was not
directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation created
some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains. In
addition, as part of the State of New Hampshire's biennial budget process for the two-year period ended
June 30, 2013, the State eliminated disproportionate share payments to certain New Hampshire hospitals,
including the System. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the State of New Hampshire restored a portion
of disproportionate share funding, and the System received $5,099 in disproportionate share payments
which are recorded within unrestricted revenue and other support.

During 2014, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) began an audit of the State's
program and the disproportionate share payments made by the State in 2011, the first year that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals. 1t is
possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. At the date of these consolidated financial
statements, CMS's audit was still in process, and the System has received no indication of adjustments,
if any, that may be made to disproportionate share payments received in prior years. As such, no amounts
have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements related to this contingency.

The System amended certain past MET returns based upon further guidance which provided that certain
exclusions can be deducted from net patient service revenues. During 2014, the State completed an
initial audit of those amended returns. The outcome of the amended returns and related audits is
uncertain at the date of these consolidated financial statements, and no amounts have been reflected in

these consolidated financial statements related to those matters

Medicaid

Inpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates
per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under
fee schedules and cost reimbursement methodologies subject to various limitations or discounts. The
Hospital is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual

cost reports by the Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicaid program.
The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee screen basis.

Other

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
health maintenance organizations, The basis for payment to the System under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively

determined rates.
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Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements (Continued)

The accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements reflected on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets represents the estimated net amounts to be paid under reimbursement contracts with the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare), the New Hampshire Department of Welfare
(Medicaid) and any commercial payors with settlement provision. Settlements for the Hospital have
been finalized through 2010 for Medicare and Medicaid.

Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable
Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30, 2014 and 2013:

[y
(=]
F=N
N
Ll
w

2.0% to 5.0% New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority
(NHHEFA) Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2013A;
due in annual installments, including principal and interest ranging
from $1,543 to $3,555 through 2043, including unamortized original
issue premium of $3,429 in 2014 and $3,550 in 2013 $ 46,714 $ 47,860

1.71% fixed rate NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue,

Series 2013B; due in annual installments, including principal and
interest ranging from $1,860 to $3,977 through 2024 27,550

1.3% to 5.6% NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series
2011; due in annual installments, including principal and interest
ranging from $2,737 to $5,201 through 2026, including unamortized
original issue premium of $233 in 2014 and $252 in 2013

31,011

37.362 40,841
111,626 119,712
(8.131) (7,931)

Less current portion

$103,495 $111,781

In February 2013, $48,631 (including an original issue premium of $3,631) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2013A, were issued to assist in the funding of a significant facility
improvement project and to advance refund the Series 2001 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. The
facility improvement project included enhancements to the System's power plant, renovation of certain
nursing units, expansion of the parking capacity at the main campus and various other routine capital
expenditures and miscellaneous construction, renovation and improvements of the System's facilities.
As a result of the advance refunding, the unamortized bond issuance costs and original issue discount
related to the Series 2001 NHHEF A Hospital Revenue Bonds were included in loss on extinguishment
of debt and totaled $1,483 for the year ended September 30, 2013. As of September 30, 2013, none of
the Series 2001 advance refunded bonds remained outstanding.
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Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable (Continued)

In April 2013, $32,42]1 of NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issues, Series 2013B, were
issued to advance refund the Series 2004 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. As a result of the bond
refinancing, the unamortized bond issuance costs and original issue premium related to the Series 2004
NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds were included on loss on extinguishment of debt and totaled $1,686
for the year ended September 30, 2013. As of September 30, 2013, $3 1,800 of advance refunded bonds,
which were considered extinguished for purposes of these consolidated financial statements, remained

outstanding. These were redeemed in full during 2014.

In March 2011, $49,795 of NHHEF A Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2011, were issued
to assist in the funding of a significant facility improvement project and pay off the Series 1996 Revenue
Bonds. The project included expansion and renovation of various Hospital departments, infrastructure
upgrades, and acquisition of capital equipment. The project began during fiscal year 2011 and was

completed in fiscal year 2012.

Substantially all the property and equipment relating to the aforementioned construction and renovation
projects, as well as subsequent property and equipment additions thereto, and a mortgage lien on the
facility, are pledged as collateral for the Series 2011 and 2013A and B Revenue Bonds. In addition, the
gross receipts of the Hospital are pledged as collateral for the Series 2011 and 2013A and B Revenue
Bonds. The most restrictive financial covenants require a 1.10 to 1.0 ratio of aggregate income available
for debt service to total annual debt service and a day's cash on hand ratio of 75 days. The Hospital was
in compliance with its debt covenants at September 30, 2014 and 2013.

The obligations of the Hospital under the Series 2013 A and B and Series 2011 Revenue Bond Indentures
are not guaranteed by any of the subsidiaries or affiliated entities.

Interest paid on long-term debt amounted to $4,138 and $4,892 for the years ended September 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

The aggregate principal payments on long-term debt for the next five fiscal years ending September 30
are as follows:

2015 $ 8,131
2016 8,337
2017 8,570
2018 8,822
2019 9,061
Thereafter _65.043

$107,964
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Commitments and Contingencies

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

Prior to February 1, 2011, the System was insured against malpractice loss contingencies under claims-
made insurance policies. A claims-made policy provides specific coverage for claims made during the
policy period. The System maintained excess professional and general liability insurance policies to
cover claims in excess of liability retention levels. The System has established reserves to cover
professional liability exposures for incurred but unpaid or unreported claims. The amounts of the
reserves have been determined by actuarial consultants and total $3,908 and $4,692 at September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within
accrued pension and other long-term liabilities. The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business,
that malpractice claims in excess of insurance coverage may be asserted against the System.

Effective February 1, 2011, the System insures its medical malpractice risks through a multiprovider
captive insurance company under a claims-made insurance policy. Premiums paid are based upon
actuarially determined amounts to adequately fund for expected losses. At September 30, 2014, there
were no known malpractice claims outstanding for the System which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage, nor were there any unasserted claims or
incidents which required loss accruals. The captive retains and funds up to actuarial expected loss
amounts, and obtains reinsurance at various attachment points for individual and aggregate claims in
excess of funding in accordance with industry practices. The System's interest in the captive represents
approximately 28% of the captive. Control of the captive is equally shared by participating hospitals.
The System has recorded its interest in the captive's equity, totaling approximately $420 and $1,335 at
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, in other noncurrent assets on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the System's interest are included in nonoperating income on

the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 954):
Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2014 and 2013,
the Hospital recorded a liability of approximately $19,750 and $12,900, respectively, related to estimated
professional liability losses. At September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Hospital also recorded a receivable
of $19,750 and $12,900, respectively, related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for
recoveries of the potential losses. These amounts are included in accrued pension and other long-term
liabilities, and bond issuance costs and other assets, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The Hospital maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insurance plan. The plan offers,
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the Hospital against
excessive losses. The Hospital has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settiement of such claims, Accrued workers' compensation losses of $2,526 and $2,456 at
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, have been discounted at 3% (both years) and, in
management's opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. A trustee held fund has been

established as a reserve under the plan.
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Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Litigation

The System is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be
resolved without material adverse effect on the System's financial position, results of operations or cash

flows.

Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants under the terms of the plan
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System
recognizes revenue for services provided to employees of the System during the year. The System is
insured above a stop-loss amount of $440 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and those
claims incurred but not reported at September 30, 2014 and 2013, have been recorded as a liability of
$4,508 and $5,034, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

within accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Operating Leases

The System has various operating leases relative to its office and offsite locations. Future annual
minimum lease payments under noncancellable lease agreements as of September 30, 2013 are as

follows:

Year Ending September 30:
2015 $ 4,476
2016 4,356
2017 3,775
2018 3,339
2019 3,246
Thereafter 18,243
$37,435

Rent expense was $8,156 and $8,456 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at September 30:

2014 2013

Health education and program services $13,604 $12,821

Capital acquisitions 1,195 1,053
Indigent care 188 181
For periods after September 30 of each year 102 72

$15.089 $14,127

Income on the following permanently restricted net asset funds is available for the following purposes
at September 30:

2014 2013

Health education and program services $17,088 $15513

Capital acquisitions 803 803
Indigent care 1,810 1,810
For periods after September 30 of each year 142 114
$19.843 $18,240
Patient Service and Other Revenue
Net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30 is as follows:
2014 2013

Gross patient service charges:
Inpatient services
Outpatient services
Physician services
Less charitable services

$ 400,259 $393,992
515,503 469,048
134,699 125,705
(38.119)  (33.903)
1,012,342 954,842

Less contractual allowances and discounts:
348,110 313,177

Medicare
Medicaid 69,545 68,347
Other 181.548 170,770

599203 552,294

Total Hospital net patient service revenue (net of

contractual allowances and discounts) 4_13, 139 402,548

29.812 29,684

$_442,951 $432.232

Other entities
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Patient Service and Other Revenue (Continued)

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances, discounts and
provision for doubtful accounts recognized in 2014 and 2013 from these major payor sources, is as
follows for the Hospital. The provision for doubtful accounts for subsidiaries of the Hospital was not

significant in 2014 and 2013.

Hospital
Net Patient
Service
Gross Contractual Provision Revenues
Patient Allowances for Less Provision
Service and Doubtful for Doubtful
Revenues Discounts Accounts Accounts
2014
Private payors (includes
coinsurance and deductibles) $ 426,874 $(181,548) $ (9,337) $235,989
Medicaid 85,624 (69,545) (1,049) 15,030
Medicare 467,071 (348,110) (1,869) 117,092
Self-pay 32,773 - (19,465) _13.308
$1.012,342  $(599.203) $(31,720) $381,419
2013
Private payors (includes
coinsurance and deductibles) $ 413,913 $(170,770) % (9,270) $233,873
Medicaid 79,936 (68,347) - 11,589
Medicare 429,908 (313,177) (1,948) 114,783
Self-pay 31.085 - (19,660) 11,425
$_954.842  $(552,294) $(30,878) $371.670

Electronic Health Records Incentive Payments

The CMS Electronic Health Records (EHR) incentive programs provide a financial incentive for the
"meaningful use" of certified EHR technology to achieve health and efficiency goals. To qualify for
incentive payments, eligible organizations must successfully demonstrate meaningful use of certified
EHR technology through various stages defined by CMS. Revenue totaling $2,196 and $3,719
associated with these meaningful use attestations was recorded as other revenue for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In addition, a receivable amount of $674 and $1,616 was
recorded within prepaid expenses and other current assets at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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10. Functional Expenses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the years ended September 30:

2014 2013
$313,042 $306,213
62,305 59,447
25,397 25,047
16,437 16,541
4,057 4,720

Health care services

General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Medicaid enhancement tax
Interest expense

$421,238 $411,968

Fundraising related expenses were $751 and $690 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

11. Charity Care and Community Benefits (Unaudited)

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. The Hospital
provides traditional charity care, as well as other forms of community benefits. The cost of all such
benefits provided is as follows for the years ended September 30:

2014 2013

Community health services $ 2,721 § 2,627

Health professions education 3,814 4,141
Subsidized health services 27911 23,938
Research 89 89
Financial contributions 948 1,061
Community building activities 53 45

96 49

Community benefit operations

Charity care costs (see Note 1) 16,666 13,304

$52.208 $45.254

In addition, the Hospital incurred costs for services to Medicare and Medicaid patients in excess of the
payment from these programs of $70,152 and $51,171 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents of southern
New Hampshire and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross receivabies from
patients and third-party payors as of September 30 is as follows:

2014 2013

Patients 14%  18%
Medicare 35 37
Anthem Blue Cross 14 12
Cigna 6 5
Medicaid 11 10
Commercial 19 17
Workers' compensation 1 _1

100% 100%

Volunteer Services (Unaudited)

Total volunteer service hours received by the Hospital were approximately 37,300 in 2014 and 36,500
in 2013. The volunteers provide various nonspecialized services to the Hospital, none of which has been
recognized as revenue or expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In
determining fair value, the System uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches.
Based on these approaches, the System often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally unobservable inputs. The System utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs
used in the valuation techniques, the System is required to provide the following information according
to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information
used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and

disclosed in one of the following three categories:
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Trust funds administered by others

2013

Trust funds administered by others

Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal
agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving

identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based
on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities.
At each reporting period, all assets and liabilities for which the fair value measurement is based on

significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level 3.

The following presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30:

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
2014
Cash and cash equivalents $32352 § - % - $32352
Fixed income securities 46,014 - - 46,014
Marketable equity and other securities 55,964 51,867 111,693 219,524
Inflation-protected securities and other 14,159 10,880 - 25,039
- — 11,070 11,070

$148,480 $62,747 $122,763 $333.999

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42702 § - $ - $ 42,702
Fixed income securities 44,725 - - 44,725
Marketable equity and other securities 69,597 43,321 80,648 193,566
Inflation-protected securities and other 11,898 4,941 16,839

= - 10,678 10,678

$168,922 $48262 $. 91,326 $308.510
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The System's Level 3 investments consist of so called alternative investments and trust funds
administered by others. The alternative investments consist primarily of interests in limited partnership
funds that are not publicly traded. The fair value measurement is based on significant unobservable

inputs.
Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market

volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations.

A reconciliation of the fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as
follows for 2014 and 2013:

Trust Funds
Administered Alternative
by Others Investments
Balance at September 30, 2012 $10,212 $ 69,967
Purchases - 10,900
Sales - (13,167)
Net realized and unrealized gains 466 12,948
Balance at September 30, 2013 10,678 80,648
Purchases - 27,468
Sales - 467)
Net realized and unrealized gains 392 4,044
Balance at September 30, 2014 $11,070 $111,693

In accordance with ASU 2009-12, Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per
Share (or Its Equivalent), the table below sets forth additional disclosures for investment funds (other
than mutual funds) valued based on net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the

investments by category:

Unfunded Redemption
Fair Commit- Redemption Notice
Value ments Frequency Period
September 30, 2014:
Funds-of-funds $61,418 $ - Monthly 5~15days -
Funds-of-funds 50,275 - Quarterly 45 - 90 days*
September 30, 2013:
Funds-of-funds $42,265 $ - Monthly 5~ 15 days
Funds-of-funds 38,383 - Quarterly 45 ~ 65 days

* $9 million subject to a one year lock-up period.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Investment Strategies

Fixed Income Securities

The primary purpose of fixed income investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable
source of income, preserve capital, and reduce the volatility of the total portfolio and hedge against the

risk of deflation or protracted economic contraction.

Marketable Equity and Other Securities

The primary purpose of marketable equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth
of income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of
loss. The total marketable equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to
economic sector, industry, number of holdings and other characteristics including style and
capitalization. The System may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have
distinct investment styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it
is expected that the combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

The System invests in other securities that are considered alternative investments that consist of limited
partnership interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly
comprised of equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other
less liquid investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the
System values these investments at fair value, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata
interest in the net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each
investment from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly by the investment manager. These
investments are classified as Level 2 or 3, depending on the nature of the underlying assets and valuation

methodologies used as reported by the fund managers.

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation
of certain alternative investments, the estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from
actual values, and differences could be significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its

alternative investments at the balance sheet dates are reasonable.

Inflation-Protected Securities

The primary purpose of inflation-protected securities is to provide protection against the negative effects
of inflation.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts and pledges receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, estimated third-party payor settlements, and long-term debt and notes payable. The fair value
of all financial instruments other than long-term debt and notes payable approximates their relative book
values as these financial instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that
approximate fair value. The fair value of the System's long-term debt and notes payable is estimated
using discounted cash flow analyses, based on the System's current incremental borrowing rates for
similar types of borrowing arrangements. The carrying value and fair value of the System's long-term
debt and notes payable amounted to $111,626 and $132,106, respectively, at September 30, 2014, and

$119,712 and $129,976, respectively, at September 30, 2013,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Board of Trustees
Concord Hospital, Inc.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather
than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual entities and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated

financial statements as a whole.
Buter R byes

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company

December 8, 2014

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC
36
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
2015

Valerie Acres, Esq.

D. Thomas Akey, MD
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Career History:

1/2014 — Present

2012 -12/2013

2010-2012

2005 - 2010

1993 - 2005

1989 -1993

Educational Background:

1989

1985

RESUME

ROBERT P. STEIGMEYER

Capital Region Health Care and
Concord Hospital
Concord, NH

Geisinger Community Medical Center
Scranton, PA

Community Medical Center Healthcare System
Scranton, PA

Northwest Hospital & Medical Center
Seattle, WA

ECG Management Consultants
Seattle, WA

Ernst & Young
St. Louis, MO

Master of Health Administration
Master of Business Administration
St. Louis University

Bachelor of Arts
Wabash College

President and CEO

CEO

President and CEO

Senior Vice President-
Operations & Finance

Principal/Shareholder
Senior Manager
Manager

Manager
Senior Consultant
Consultant



P. TRAVIS HARKER, MD, MPH

Education & Training

NH Dartmouth Family Practice Residency & Dartmouth Leadership and Preventive Medicine
Residency, Concord Hospital, Concord, New Hampshire
June 2002 —December 2006

e Paul W. Ambrose Fellow in Leadership and Preventive Medicine

Dartmouth College of Medicine Center for the Evaluative Clinical Sciences, Hanover, New Hampshire
MPH conferred June 2006
September 2002 —June 2006

The Ohio State University College of Medicine and Public Health, Columbus, Ohio
MD conferred June 2001
September 1996—June 2001

The Ohio State University College of Arts and Sciences, Columbus, Ohio
B.S. conferred June 1996. Major: Biology, Minor: Spanish
September 1992—June 1996

Positions & Employment

Medical Director, Concord Hopsital Family Health Center, Concord and Hillsborough Deering
Concord Hopital, Concord, NH
2012 - Present

Clinical Leader, Concord Hopsital Family Heaith Center, Concord
Concord Hoptial, Concord, NH
2006-2012

Faculty, NH Dartmouth Family Medicine Residency, Leadership Preventive Medicine
Concord Hospital, Concord, NH
December 2006—Present

¢ Chair, Quality Improvement Committee

o (Clinical leader

e Faculty Supervisor of Medical Students

Assistant Professor of Community and Family Medicine, Dartmouth Medical School, Hanover New
Hampshire
December 2006—Present

Research Fellow, Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Department of Health and
Human Services, Washington D.C.



Resume
Martha E. Seery

Career History

2014 - Present Concord Hospital Administrative Director
Concord, NH NH Dartmouth Family Medicine Residency,
Concord Hospital Family Health Center
Center for Integrative Medicine

Responsible for maintaining the balance of academic, clinical and managerial operations, ensuring that all staffs are
working at optimal levels of performance, performance metrics are understood, monitored, and achieved, budgets are
developed and maintained in order to sustain operations in a fiscally viable manner, patient satisfaction levels and
employee engagement levels are excellent, and ultimately ensure that the mission, vision, and values are upheld.
Practice Management curriculum coordinator.

2007 - 2014 Concord Hospital Administrative Director
NH Dartmouth Family Medicine Residency

Provide leadership and coordination of the Family Practice Residency Program to advance the position of Concord
Hospital and Family Medicine Residency’s mission and objectives at all sites. Oversee the Family Practice Residency
operations to insure quality graduate medical education, efficiency and cost-effective management of resources. Ensure
compliance with all academic requirements. Practice Management curriculum coordinator.

2003 - 2007 Concord Hospital Manager
NH Dartmouth Family Medicine Residency

Responsible for the operational management of the day to day activities of the Family Medicine Residency and
integrates the residency into the organization’s vision, mission, values and operational systems.

1989 -2003 Elliot Health System Director, Demand Management 1992 - 2002
Elliot Hospital Physician Services Coordinator 1989 - 1992
Manchester, NH

Responsible for start-up, development and oversight of a 24-hour health information call center. Oversee daily
operations including community telephone triage, after-hours physician practice triage, physician referral and class
registration for Elliot Health System.

1988- 1989 Elliot Health Systems Supervisor
Northeast Health Services

1983 — 1987 Computervision Corporation  Data Coordinator
Manchester, NH

Bachelor of Science coursework
Southern NH University

Leadership Training courses: Personalities at Work, Positive Power and Influence, Situational
Leadership, Advanced Positive Power and Influence, Negotiation Skills, and Emotional
Intelligence



Resume
Susan Hemingway MA, LCMHC
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor

EDUCATION
May 1998 MA Counseling Psychology
Notre Dame College  Manchester, NH

EXPERIENCE

January 2000-Present  Community Health Educator/School Based Clinic Coordinator/
Psychotherapist
Concord Hospital Family Health Center, Concord, NH

e Mental Health Provider in integrated primary care practice

e Supervisor of Master’s level counseling interns

e Provides outreach and education to teens, staff in schools and youth serving
organizations about family planning and pregnancy prevention, and other wellness and
prevention topics. Also provides these services to adults

e Coordinates a School Based Health Clinic where students are seen by family medicine
residents during Pediatric rotation

e Advises, guides and evaluates medical residents in their interactions with youth

e Coordinates Community Medicine rotation for first year family medicine resident.

e Member of Plan of Care Committee and Centering Pregnancy Ql work groups

e Serves on Community Coalitions whose missions include prevention of risk behaviors
and promotion of wellness

e Teaches Community Teams and Health Care Systems’ workshop for second year family
medicine residents

e Member of Family Health Center Teen Care Clinic

1998- 2000 Community Health Educator
Concord Hospital Family Health Center
Concord, NH

e Provided outreach and education to teens in schools and youth serving organizations
and adults about Family Planning, including abstinence, STD/HIV prevention

e STD/HIV Counselor at walk in clinic

e Mental Health Provider for teens and parents, young adults

¢ Trained and Supervised Teen Peer Health Educators.
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Concord Hospital Family Health Center
Center for Integrative Medicine
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working at optimal levels of performance, performance metrics are understood, monitored, and achieved, budgets are
developed and maintained in order to sustain operations in a fiscally viable manner, patient satisfaction levels and
employee engagement levels are excellent, and ultimately ensure that the mission, vision, and values are upheld.
Practice Management curriculum coordinator.
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[RE /2T ¢
JUNBORM NUMBERB37 (version 1/09)
Subject: Family Planning
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contra{:tor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

1.2 State Agency Address

29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504

1.3 Contractor Name

Concord Hospital, Inc.

1.4  Contractor Address
250 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Nuiber 05-95-90-902010-5530-102-
603-227-7000 Ext. 4711 500734

05-95-45-450010-6146-502-
500891

17 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

Jl;'me 30,2015 $253,155.74

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN
Bureau Chief

110  State Agency Telephone Number

6;03-271-4501

1.11 Contractor Signature

W St

1;.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

mlchde/ B.Green
Presded +E0

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of J #/ , County o M,
ol

1.12.

efore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document "%dmw}?' indicdted in block
0,

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal]

\\\ " \N %,
S RS

SO wy 0

{ COMMISSION %
t  EXPIRES H
: APRIL 18,2017 §

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

%//574/7‘4/ DbLes, /7d72/%

¥
/ ’S./.O -~

Yy, p‘S Nl
7, AM
/'”"lmml\\\“\

1.15

1.14  State Agency Signature Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
0& o oié‘-’_‘ §Lisa L. Bujno, Bureau Chief

1.16  Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Djvision of Personnel (if applicable)

By: §Director, On:

1.17

. Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance an_;d Execution)
By: Yignne Pofenm A, Ao  ren lon,. 27 Aan 9_0 /2

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By:

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
conttingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price. . ... - . .

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
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no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

.6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

‘AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.

"6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
: Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
.and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities

 which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,

. including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity

laws, In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all

- applicable copyright laws.
t 6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall

not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,

: handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
! affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

' 6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
: United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the

© provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal

Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the

- regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41

. C.FR. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
. as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to

- implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
! permit the State or United States access to any of the

Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
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8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”).

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.
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11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor

- an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
; officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
+ bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
; or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

t 12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

i The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any

: interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
. the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
' Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
: prior written consent of the State.

" 13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

: indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and

. employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
! State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,

* liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers

and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein

! contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

. sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
* reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall

. survive the termination of this Agreement.

‘ 14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: ‘

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all

i claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
* of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
i occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all

; property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not

less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer

Contractor Initials:
Date:



identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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- 20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
: benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
- construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein

i shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in

- the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
, this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by

i reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
. this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to

' be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
; provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
. effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, This Agreement, which may

be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials:
Date:




NH Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

Family Planning Services

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1,2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR NAME: Concord Hospital, Inc.

ADDRESS: 250 Pleasant Streé:t
Concord, NH 03301

Family Health Center Director: Marie Wawrzyniaflk

TELEPHONE: 603-227-7000 ext.f4711

The Contractor shall:

I. General Provisions

A) Eligibility and Income Determination

Family Planning (FP) services will be provided to individuals of childbearing ages in New Hampshire (NH)
who request such services. Preference will be given to clients who live within the Contractor’s service area.
Special emphasis will be placed on serving adolesce’nts and individuals in low-income families (defined as <
250% of the U.S. Department of Health & Human Servwes “Poverty Guidelines”). :

1.

Standard Exhibits A — ) . Contractor Initiais:
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The Contractor shall implement, and post in a public and conspicuous location, a sliding fee payment
schedule for low-income clients. As an altenative, the Contractor may post, in a public and conspicuous
location, a notice to clients that a sliding fee scal'é is available and that no client will be denied services for
inability to pay. The sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as
published in the Federal Register.

The Contractor must inform clients of Medice:iid eligibility requirements and assist in the application
process. '

1
Per Title X Federal Program Guidelines for Project Grants for Family Planning Services (January 2001)
Gross Family Income is defined as the total gr:oss income of all members of a family. Family, for the
purpose of application of these guidelines, is defined as a social unit composed of one person, or two or
more persons living together, as a household. | Eligibility for minors who receive confidential services
must be based on the income of the minor.

Per Region I Family Planning Office gutdance if a client’s income cannot be determined for the initial
visit, the client is considered to be unable to pay and must be placed in Category I. On retum visits, if
income can be determined, the fee category maly be changed although the client’s inability to pay cannot
be a barrier to services.

The Contractor shall bill all third party paymeﬂt sources (including private insurance and Medicaid) prior

to spending the family planning contract funds EXCEPT when such billing presents a barrier to
- confidential services.

>
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B) Numbers Served

The FP Program will provide comprehensive reproduc;tive health care to include age-appropriate clients,
anticipatory guidance, education, assessment, counseling on preconception health care (reproductive life plan)
and referrals for nutrition services, substance abuse, domestic violence, sexual assault and other health related
issues.

C) Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access health services. To ensure equal
access to quality health services, the Division of Publi¢ Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors shall
provide culturally and linguistically appropriate servicf:s according to the following guidelines:

1. Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assfets of their community.

2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for st;aff to work effectively with consumers with respect to
their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

3. Provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with interpreter services. Persons of LEP are defined
as those who do not speak English as their primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or
reading English are such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the
services provided to them without language assist:ance.

4. Offer consumers a forum through which clients h%lve the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and
organizations regarding cultural and linguistic issues that may deserve response.

5. The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency. The pollcy shall describe the way in which the items listed ahove
were addressed and shall indicate the clrcumstances in which interpretation services are provided and the
method of providing service (e.g. trained mterpreter staff person who speaks the language of the client,
language line). !

D) State and Federal Laws

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all:relevant state and
Federal laws. Special attention is called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1. The Contractor shall report all cases of communicable diseases according to New Hampshire RSA 141-C
and He-P 301 as most currently amended (1/05).}

2. Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New Hampshire
RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 16]: F46 Protective Services to Adults and RSA 631:6, Assault
and Related Offences.

3. Contractor shall ensure that clients served will receive up-to-date recommended
immunizations either on site or by referral to a primary care provider in accordance with
RSA 141-C and the most current Immunization Rules promulgated.

EY Relevant Policies and Guidelines

Contractors operate, at minimum, in accordance with the following:

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials: Z ; ;@’-\
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1. The (Federal) Office of Population Affairs, Office:of Family Planning, Program Guidelines for Project
Grants for Family Planning Services, dated January 2001, and subsequent amendments, program
instructions and clarifications.

2. National program priorities established by the Ofﬁce of Population Affairs.

3. The most current New Hampshire Guidelines for Fam1ly Planning Clinical Services (NH Guidelines) and
any revisions to these guidelines.

4. The Contractor must submit to MCHS the completed face sheet to the NH Guidelines with the signature of
the agency medical director and all medical providers who will provide family planning services. New
providers are required to add their signatures to this document.

5. The Contractor shall design and implement systenis of governance, administration, financial
managcment information management, and cllmcal services which are adequate to assure the
provision of contracted services and to meet the data and reporting requirements. These
systems shall meet the most current minimum standards described in at least one of the
fol]owing: Health Resources and Services Adminifstration (HRSA) Office of Performance
review protocols, Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care Organizations (JCAHO),
Community Health Accreditation Program (CHAP) or Accreditation Association for

Ambulatory Healthcare (AAA). .

F) Publications Funded Under Contract (Standard L%\nguage)

1. The DPHS and/or its funders will retain COPéYRIGHT ownership for any and all original materials
produced with DPHS contract funding, includiﬁg, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories,
protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports. '

2. All documents (written, video, audio) produced,lreproduced downloaded from a web source or purchased
under the contract shall have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.
In the case of Family Planning Programs, all such documents are subject to review by the information and
education review committee. :

3. The Contractor shall credit DPHS on all matenals produced under this contract following the instructions
outlined in Exhibit C (14)

G) Subcontractors
1. Ifany service required by this exhibit is provnded, in whole or in part, by a subcontracted agency or
provider, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) Maternal and Child Health Section (MCHS)

must be notified in writing prior to initiation of the subcontract.

2. In addition, the original DPHS Contractor will remain liable for all requirements included in
this exhibit and carried out by subcontractors.

1I. Minimal Standards of Core Services i

A. Service Requirements

1. Clinical Services
In addition to following the federal and state guidelines outlined above, clinical services will be guided by
the protocol and practice guidelines established gby the Contractor and will be supervised by a medical
director qualified to oversee obstetric and gynecological care.

Standard Exhibits A —} Contractor Initials: X
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2. HIV Counseling and Testing

HIV counseling and testing provided by family planning Contractors must conform to CDC’s
Fundamentals of HIV Prevention Counseling and staff providing this counseling must be trained in this
counseling model. '

3. Health Education Materials

Health education materials are to be reviewed according to Federal Program Guidelines for Project
Grants for Family Planning Services (reference section 6.8) and the NH State Family Planning Program’s
Information and Education Policy on the review, approval, and distribution of family planning materials.
Delegate agencies may be asked to work with the State in identifying consumer volunteers to review
educational materials in order to provide consumer input. Any and all materials an agency develops for
marketing or patlent education must be submltted in its final draft form, for approval before printing or
duplicating it in quantity.

4. Sterilization Services
Those Contractors providing sterilization services will adhere to all federal sterilization requirements as

outlined in the Federal Program Guideline’s Attachment C, Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted
Family Planning Projects and subsequent revisions or amendments related to this federal requirement.

5. Transitional Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and Title X FP Collaborative

The TANF and Title X Collaborative will conduct statewide activities to support knowledge of and
access to FP services by populations in need, w1th a particular emphasis on Medicaid-eligible women and
adolescents at risk for pregnancy. The Contractor shall produce a plan that documents a promotional &
partnership building strategy and marketmg/ou|treach campaign that includes identification of the target
population, details, activities and projects for! reachmg the target popu]atlon and specifies evaluation
measures. The NH FP & Contractors will rev1ew the plan on an on-going basis to monitor progress
towards outcomes and overall project goals.

6. Research

Contractors considering clinical or sociologiéal research using clients as subjects must adhere to the
legal requirements governing human subjects fresearch. Contractors must inform the Division of Public
Health Services, Maternal and Child Health’ Section prior to initiating any research related to this
contract.

7. School-based Education Programs

Contractors must enter into a written agreement with any school where the Contractor will implement
sexuality education programs for students under the age of 18. The agreement must be signed by the
school principal/or designee and must include a statement that information was provided to parents which
offered the opportunity for the parents to opt their child out of any program to which the parent objects.

B) Staffing Provisions
1. Staff Training and Qualifications
Documentation will be available to show that allj staff members employed in the Family Planning program
has adequate training to fulfill their activities. Staff performing clinical functions will have NH licensing

that is required for their responsibilities. Each agency will employ appropriate credentialing procedures to
assure that clinical staffs have appropriate education and experience for their responsibilities.
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2. Medical Director Participation

Each agency will have the services of a medical director who has special training and/or experience in
family planning services. For each Contractor, the'medical director and the clinical staff shall participate in
the development and approval of specific guidelings for medical care that meet or exceed these minimal
standards. In addition, the medical director shall part1c1patc in QI activities and be available to other staff
for consultation.

3. Community Education & Partnership Development
The Contractor will designate one staff member or committee responsible for the coordination and
development of a community education and outreach plan, to include partnership development so as to
increase utilization of family planning services. A community education & outreach report will be
required, as well as any supporting documentatlon that supports the development of partnerships with key
community stakeholders.

4. Staffing Changes

New Hires

The Contractor shall notify the Maternal and Chlld Health Section (MCHS) in wrltmg within one month of
hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this scope of
services is hired to work in the program. A resum:e of the employee shall accompany this notification.

Vacancies

The Contractor must notify MCHS in writing of k:ey positions (agency executive director, agency fiscal
director, medical director, site manager, communi;ty educator, teen clinic coordinator, TANF coordinator)
vacant for more than three months. This may be done through a budget revision. In addition, MCHS must
be notified in writing if at any time any site funded under this agreement does not have adequate chmcal
and administrative staffing to perform all requlred services for more than one month.

C) Coordination of Services

1. The Contractor will be responsible to ensure that other providers in the designated service area,
particularly those who serve low income individuals and adolescents, are aware of the availability and
scope of their family planning services, mcludmglawareness of the availability of confidential services and
of a sliding fee scale. The Contractor shall coordmate, where possible, with other service providers in the

community. At a2 minimum, such collaboration shall include interagency referrals.

2. As appropriate, agencies should participate in commumty needs assessments, public health performance
assessments and the development of regional publlc health improvement plans within their Public Health
Networks. Network staff should also be engaged, as appropriate, to enhance the implementation of
community-based public health prevention initiatives, emergency planning or emergency relief efforts
being implemented by the agency.

3. As part of the Family Planning Workplan process, each Contractor will make plan explicitly identifying
community services providers who will be contacted for face-to-face meetings intended to build
partnerships, increase coordination and referrals v_'vith other providers.

D) Meetings and Trainings
The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to :‘.meetings and training required by the family planning

program, including but not limited to: medical diréctor s meetings, family planning director’s meetings,
community educator/clinic coordinators meetings, data training and review meetings and family planning

orientation.
Standard Exhibits A - J Contractor Initials: @
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1. Quality or Performance Improvement (QI/PI)

A) Workplans

1.

Performance Workplans must be submitted and are used to monitor achievement of standard measures of
performance of the services provided under thxs contract. Said workplan is incorporated herein by
reference.

Performance Workplans and Workplan Qutcome Reports will be completed according to the schedule and
instructions provided by MCHS. The workplans are a key component of the DPHS and MCHS
performance based contracting system and of this contract

The Contractor shall mcorporate required and developmental performance measures, defined by the
MCHS in to the agency’s QI/PI plan. Reports ¢ on Workplan Progress/Outcomes shall detail the QI/PI
plans and activities that monitor and evaluate the lagency’s progress toward performance measure targets.
If the Contractor’s performance is above the deﬁned target, no additional information will need to be
provided. It will be the understanding that act1v1ty and evaluation efforts were effective in reaching the
desired outcome. If the Contractor’s performanee is below the defined target, an explanation must be
provided of why and what action steps (corrective action plan) will be taken to improve performance.

The Contractor shall comply with minor modlf cations and/or additions to the workplan and annual
report format as requested by MCHS. MCHS w1ll provide the Contractor with reasonable notice of such
changes. [

B) Data and reporting requirements

In addition to Performance Workplans and Outcomfe Reports, the Contractor shall submit to MCHS the
following data used to monitor program performance:,

1.

In years when contracts or amendments are not }equued the DPHS Budget Form, Budget Justification,
Sources of Revenue and Program Staff list forms ,must be completed according to the relevant instructions
and submitted as requested by DPHS.

The Sources of Revenue report must be subrlmtted bi-annually (Jul-Dec and Jan-Jun), as well as
resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the
planned program. :

Completed UDS tables reflecting program perfon':nance in the previous calendar as requested by DPHS.

A copy of the Contractor’s updated Sliding Fee fScaIe including the amounts(s) of any client fees and the
schedule of discounts must be submitted by March 31* of each year. The Contractor’s sliding fee scale

must be updated annually based on the USDHHD Poverty guidelines as published in the Federal Register.

An annual summary of patient satisfaction resylts obtained during the prior contract year and of the
method by which the results were obtained must be submitted with annual Workplan Outcome/Progress
report.

Following the instructions provided in the Fam11y Planmng Annual Report Manual, a Family Planning
Encounter Record (FPER) must be submitted by the 10™ of the month, following the delivery of service
for each client visit provided in the family planning program. This record must be submitted in compliance

" with the Region T Title X Family Planning Data System Instruction Manual relevant to the submission

method being used and any other state specific iﬁstructions provide by the family planning program.

i
By February 1* of each program year, submit data required for submission of the federal Family Planning
Annual Report.
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As requested by the family planning program, submit costing reports using a methodology approved by
the Family Planning Program.

Comply with all Family Planning Program and STD/HIV Prevention Bureau requirements for reporting
chlamydia testing.

C)On-site reviews

1.

The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the MCHS to periodically review the
Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and submission, clinical services
management, financial management and design arfd delivery of educational services to assure systems are
adequate to provide the contracted services. !

Reviews shall include client record reviews to measure compliance with this exhibit.
i

The Contractor shall make corrective actions as ahvised by the review team if contracted services are not
found to be provided in accordance with this exhibit.

On-site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of MCHS, upon submission of satisfactory
reports of reviews such as Health Services Resources Administration (HRSA): Office of Performance
Review (OPR), or reviews from nationally accredltatlon organizations such as the Joint Commission for
the Accreditation of Health Care Organizations (JCAHO) the Community Health Accreditation Program
(CHAP) or the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Healthcare (AAA). Abbreviated reviews will
focus on any deficiencies found in previous rev1ews issues of compliance with this exhibit, and actions to
strengthen performance as outlined in the agency Performance Workplan.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B

Purchase of Sérvices
Contract Price

Family Planning Services

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 11,2013 or date of G&C apprdval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR NAME: Concord Hospital, Inc.

ADDRESS: 250 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301
Family Health Center Director: Marie Wawrzyniak !
TELEPHONE: 603-227-7000 ext. 47 1:1

Vendor #177653-B01 1 Job #90080203 - Appropriation #05-95-90-902010-5530-102-500734
#45130203 : #05-95-45-450010-6146-502-500891

The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses incurred in the performance of the
services during the period of the contract shall not exceed:!

$90,574.74 for Family Planning Services, funded from; 60% ($54,344.84) federal funds from Title X Family
Planning (CFDA #93.217), and 40% ($36,229.90) general funds in SFY 14.

$96,517 for Family Planning Services, funded from 63% ($60,805.71) federal funds from Title X Family
Planning (CFDA #93.217), and 37% ($35,711.29) general funds in SFY 15.
i

$66,064 for Family Planning Services - TANF, fundéd from 100% US Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration for Children and Families funds (CFDA #93.558) in SFY 14 and 15.

TOTAL: $253,155.74

2.

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract, funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and
expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as detailed
in the attached budgets. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with
applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital
additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the State.

This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period. Reimbursement
shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred durmg the previous month up to an amount not greater than
one-twelfth of the contract amount. Reimbursement greater than one-twelfth of the contract amount in any month
shall require prior, written permission from the State.

Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State for each of the
Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) workmg days following the end of
the month during which the contract activities were completed and the final invoice shall be due to the State no
later than sixty (60) days after the contract Completlon Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all
allowable costs and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available in the Service category budget lme items submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs and
expenses incurred in the performances of the services. |
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6. The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service category through line item increases, decreases, or

the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for that particular
Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval by the State.
Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20" of each contract year.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from thé State prior to using contract funds to-purchase any

equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a useful life beyond one year.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under
the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and, in the
furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made jin accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade iat such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms, required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regardmg eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant
or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair heanng in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it isj a breach of this Contract to accept or make a payment,
gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence
the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhlblt A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it ;lS determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any ofﬁc1als officers, employees or agents of the Contractor
or Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwrthstandmg anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services. :

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess of
such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors,
the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
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82 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs; '

83 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by
the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the peri(f)d of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9.

|
Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibilityg‘records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performarice of the Contract, and all income received or collected
by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are
acceptable to the Department, and to include, withcf)ut limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and ‘orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards lpayrolls and other records requested or required by the
Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall 1nclude all records of application and eligibility (mcludlng all
forms required to determine eligibility for each rec1p1ent) records regardmg the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain paymeént for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within nine months after the close of the agency

1.

fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of Sta'ites, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations”
and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions,
issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standfards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of thls Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. :

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because off such an exception.
Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state;laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may;be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes dlrected connected to the administration of the services and
the Contract; and provided further, that the use or dlsclosure by any party of any information concering a recipient
for any purpose not directly connected with the admlmstratlon of the Department or the Contractor’s
responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the
recipient, his attomey or guardian. ‘
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12.

13.

15.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees t6 submit the following reports at the following times if
requested by the Department ‘

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all costs
and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor|to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department. |

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted wEthin sixty (60) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated ‘m the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number
of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of. the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the
obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research rieports, and other materials prepared during or resulting

from the performance of the services of the Contract shall ir:iclude the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services, D1v1snon of Public Health Services, with funds provided in
part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required,
e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Serv1ces

Operatwn of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulatlons In the operation of any facilities for providing
services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, ordersland regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any government license or permit shall be tequired for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procﬂxre said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the t€rm of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Ofﬁce of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.
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16. Insurance: Select either (1) or (2) below:

As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehensive (i;eneral Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form, the
Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable:to this contract:

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) contractors whose annual gross amount of contract work with the
State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp. 2006): The general liability insurance requirements of
standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed $500,000, is comprehensive
general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1,000,000 per claim or occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified. ;

X (1) The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) contractor whose annual total amount of contract work
with the State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500,000.

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp. 2006),
Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor shall, at its sole
expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any s:ubcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force,
both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not Pess than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per incident
or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the Stateiof NH determines contract activities are a risk of lower

liability.

0O (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify f:or insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, X1V
(Supp. 2006). :

17. Renewal:

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Séction, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,

agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The remainder of this page 1s intentionally left blank.
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by zfny state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in eéxcess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any
other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account, in the event funds ar-"e reduced or unavailable.

19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of thrs contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language; '

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any tirfle for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30
days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Comractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishes a process to meet those needs. ‘

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transrtlon Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as ;requested

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, ‘mcludmg but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall prov1de a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan. :

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as described above. i
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the fo]lowmg meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting: prmcrples established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Seirvices.

j
PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to 'ellgible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time. r

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document| prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of frmplementmg State of NH and federal regulations
promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The C(i)ntractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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NH Department ofHealthfand Human Services

Standard Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FIiEE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections
5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act to 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and
further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN leDIVlDUALS
i
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVI¢ES — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE — CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing:Sections 5151-51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act
of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701% et seq.). the January 31, 1989 regulations were amended
and published as Part I of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require certification by
grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free
workplace. Section 3017.630 of the regulation provides tljat a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
confractors) that is a State may elect to make one certiﬁcatio:n to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of
certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certification set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placediwhen the agency awards the grant. False certification or
violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commlssmner
NH Department ofHealth and Human Services,
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to prf)vide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees tilat the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying the
actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) EStablishing an ongoing drug-free awareness prdgrmn to inform employee’s about:

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabllltatlon and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy
of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement requlred by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment -
under the grant, the employee will:

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
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(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute
occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten caléndar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)
(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted
employees must provide notice, including posmon title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity
the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identiﬁcation number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so conv1cted
l
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action agéinst such an employee, up to and including termination,
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate isatisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or
other appropriate agency; :

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintafin a drug-free workplace through implementation of
paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (¢), and ().

2) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection
with the specific grant. :

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Concord Hospital, In¢c, From: July 1, 20613 or date of G&C Approv';al whichever is later To: June 30, 2015
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Nichael B roen ﬁészdza;f «ed

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative ‘,

G ey 2247

Contractor Represen/tative Signature Date
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NH Department of Healthjand Human Services
i

Standard Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
|
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov151ons agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319
of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and
further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as 1dent1ﬁed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVIQES ~ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTQRS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C Approval, whﬁchever is later. through June 30,2015
]

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge a;pd belief, that:

) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of
any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendméng or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub:grantee or sub-contractor).

(2)  If any funds, other than Federal appropriated funds; have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Membeér of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,

grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specificimention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the undersigned
shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its
instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of t}éis certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify an{i disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or

entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite ifor making or entering into this transaction imposed by

Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to civil

penalty of not less than $10,00Q and not more than $100,000 for each such failure,
W2 Pa B Pesident~ ¢ £0

Contractor Signature Contractor s Representative Title
Concord Hospital, Inc. ] é’ /Z@“f 20 U
Contractor Name Date
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMEIﬂ, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provis:ions agrees to comply with the provisions of Executive
Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Ceniﬁcation:

Instructions for Certification

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification Irequired below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary,)the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The cemﬁcanon or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Health and Human Servnces (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation
shall disqualify such person from participation in this trfansaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when DHHS
determined to enter into this transition. If it is latef: determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for :cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the profspective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
I
The terms “covered transaction,” ‘“debarred,” “suspénded ” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transition,”
pamc1pant » “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntary excluded,” as
used in this clause, have the meanings set out m; the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rule

implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitiing this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless au@horized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by isubmitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier
Covered Transaction”, “provided by DHHS, without modnﬁcatlon in all lower tier covered transactions and in

all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. !
A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon ;a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the cemﬁcatlon is erroneous. A participant may decide the
method and frequency by ‘which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is
not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of  excluded parties).

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials: 2 i;
September 2009 :
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of
business dealings. i

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph |6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered. transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available
to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best: of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

a.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposefd for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a p:ublic (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement,
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction (:)f records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property;

are not presently indicted for otherwise criminallyi or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal,
State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 1 b of this certification;
and i

have not within a three-year period preceding| this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for }cause or default.

2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanationito this proposal (contract).

Lower Tier Covered Transactions i

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined
in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledgeland belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
prosp p p prosp
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees bx submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include

this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion —
. - . . ' . . . .

Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all

Wr lowersier covered transactions. t ,
&Q LR fféﬁl/jél,/’ +(ED

- Contractor Sig’nature Contractor’s Representative Title

Contractor Name

Date

Concord Hospital, Inc. : b )lw M’?
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICAllils WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisif)ns agrees by signature of the Contractor’s representative
as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Cohtractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

U DA o Peosderts ¢ £0

Contractor Signgature Contractor’s Representative Title
Concord Hospital, Inc. é ,7 e/ ' / j

Contractor Name ! Date
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVllilONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act),
requires that smoking not be permitted in any pomon of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an
entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee The law does not apply to children’s services
provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medlcare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used
for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply w1th the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of
a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the 1mposmon of an administrative compliance order on the
responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractof agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with all
applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Wé&&a% 7ng5,éﬂ@z} e 0

Contractor Signature : Contractor’s Representative Title

Concord Hospital, Inc. (" /77’>’ 200

Contractor Name Date
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NH Department of Health: and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Géneral Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply

with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability [Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually [dentifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of
the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and -subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services. :

O]

a.

b.

Definitions.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

i

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.
“Business_Associate” has the meaning given suc}l term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. »

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such fem in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal

Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. |

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. |

“Health Care Operations™ shall have the same mfeaning as the term “health care operations” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health lnformationéTechnology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXI1I, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American ;Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Ponabilit)?' and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191

and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Elndividually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the ;term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal: representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g). (

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under }:IIPAA by the United States Department of Health and
Human Services. ; . ’

“Protected Health Information” shall have the sar?ne meaning as the term “protected health information”

in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or

on behalf of Covered Entity. @
Standard Exhibits A - J ' Contractor Initials:
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“Required by lL.aw” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section

164.501.
“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Defpartment of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.
“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and arilendments' thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” meansi protected health information that is not secured by a

A . . .
technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or indecipherable
to unauthorized individuals and is developed or efjldorsed by a standards developing organization that is

accredited by the American National Standards Ins‘ititute.

. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise deﬁnéd herein shall have the meaning established under 45
{

C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from ti:me to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informa!tion.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the sérvices outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and sHall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule. ;

. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

|
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
IL As required by law, pursuant to thé terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
11 For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted ur'1der the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held conﬁdentlally and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the(thlrd party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the ex‘tent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such dlsclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate rellef If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses Ar disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assoc1ate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such addmona] restrictions and shall abide by any additional
security safeguards. ;
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Q) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.:

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreemeht, including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.13402,

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sec:tions of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 ahd Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received |fr0m or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for | purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. !

d. Business Associate shall require all of its businéss associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including thé duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of
the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will
be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose
of use and disclosure of protected health information.

e.  Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hou:rs at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosureiof PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’§ compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

f.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrmen request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Recolrd Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in'a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall

make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.
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h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Seétion 164.528.

i.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrltten request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assomate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to, fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall; within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the! responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as requnred by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

k.  Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Afgreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up
tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Assocnate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make
the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHL. If Covered
Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the B;llsiness Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business
Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

@ Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance wutlh 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Assoc1ate s use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Assocnate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section' 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

I

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Assocxate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or gnsclosure of PHI.
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5) Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entlty determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms :used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Secunty Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit 1, to a Section in the
Privacy and Securlty Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c¢. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect to the
PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity, in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exilibit I or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given
effect without the invalid term or condition; to th|s end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are
declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreen’lent in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract. provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement. -
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit [.

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Concord Hospital, Inc.

The State Agency Name

ai\ﬁev Dﬁ/f_/

Name of Contractor

MW 2 5

Signature of Authorized R¥presentative

LISA L. BUINO, MSN, APRN

Signature of Authorized Representative

/f)l(;h[}d B.é‘{eey\

Name of Authorized Representative

BUREAU CHIEF

Name of Authorized Representative

Q&zw +( €0

Title of Authorized Representative

S~ 307"-7 2013

Title of Authorized Representative

¢ Jley ol7

Date
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NH Department of Health:fand Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on data related
to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the initial award is below
$25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject
to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub- award and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requ1rement§

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundmg actnon
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executlves if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arelfrom the Federal government, and those revenues are
greater than $25M annually and !
b. Compensation information is not already avallable through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which the
award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of The
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR
Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensatwn Information), and further agrees to have the
Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1. l;l and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the
following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed mformatlon as outlined above to the NH Department of
Health and Human Services and to comply with all appllcable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act. i

W@%«K A. Green )D st CED

f72 Bey
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authonzed Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Concord Hospital, Inc.
(Contractor Name)
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NH Department of Health:and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the below
listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed ﬁscal year, did your business or organization receive
(1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U. S federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-
grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000 000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal
contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperatlve agreements?

BXZENo

If the answer to #2 abov;e is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensatlon of the executives in your business or

organization through periodic reports filed under section l3;(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?
!

If the answer to #3 abové is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Amount: B2

Name: Amount: B

Name: Amount: g
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Agency Name: Concord Hospital Family Health Center

Name of Bureau/Section: = Community Health Services/Maternal & Child Health/Family Planning Services TANF

Robert P. Steigmeyer, Presidnet and CEQ $580,000 0.00%
P. Travis Harker, MD, Family Health Center Medical Director $176,500 0.00%
Martha Seery, Director, Family Health Center Administrative Director $110,822 0.00%
Susan Hemingway, MA, LCMHC $61,904 53.36%
$0 0.00%

$0 0.00%
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Robert P. Steigmeyer, Presidnet and CEO $580,000 0.00%
P. Travis Harker, MD, Family Health Center Medical Director $176,500 0.00%
Martha Seery, Director, Family Health Center Administrative Director $113,593 0.00%
Susan Hemingway, MA, LCMHC $63,761 51.80%
$0 0.00%

$0 0.00%
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc.), and
individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager, etc.). These
personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name, title, annual salary and
percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to Family Planning Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Family Planning Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment 1”) dated this 9th day of April, 2015, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department”) and Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 54 Willow Street, Berlin, NH
03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 19, 2013, (item #94), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may
amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and
increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained inthe Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:

Amend Form P-37, Subject to read Family Planning Services

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2017

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $290,602.47

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9 to read Eric Borrin

Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9558

Amend Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Contract Period to read: “July 1, 2013 or date of G&C
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2017."

7. Amend Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, by:

7.1. Changing Contract Period to read, “July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever
is later, through June 30, 2017~

7.2. Changing Job #45130203 to read Job #45030203

7.3. Deleting paragraph 1 in its entirety and replacing it with new paragraph 1 and sub-
paragraphs (a) and (b):

ok 0N =

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for the cost and
expenses incurred in the performance of services during the period of July 1,
2015 through June 30, 2017 shall not exceed:

CA/DHHS/100213
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

(a) $78,635.59in SFY 2016 and $78,635.59 in SFY 2017 for a total amount of
$157,271.18.

(b) Funding is available as follows:

¢ $81,120.10 — 61.2% Federal Funds from the Office of Population Affairs,
Family Planning Services, Title X of the Public Health Services Act, CFDA
#93.217, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), FPHPAQ016063

o $51,429.08 — 38.8% from General Funds

o $24722.00 — 100% Federal Funds from the Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Title 1V of the Social
Security Act, (CFDA #93.558, FAIN 1502NHTANF).

7.4. Deleting paragraph 2 and replacing it with new paragraph 2:

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for
direct and indirect costs and expenses including, but not limited to, personnel
costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as detailed in Exhibit
B-1, Budget. Allowable cods and expenses shall be determined by the State
in accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The
Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or
improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the
State.

7.5. Deleting paragraph 6 and replacing it with new paragraph 6:

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment
limited to adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers,
within the price limitation, may be made by written agreement of both parties
and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

8. Add Exhibit B-1

9. Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1
10. Add Exhibit C-1

11. Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1
12. Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

CA/DHHS/1(0213
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

</e N ,(7})/\/ \%

Date BrookDupee
Bureau Chief

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

i—\/\% /th/ ’jjfzﬁr( (jt)i‘)oj, dg0O
Datff / %&E ’ |

Acknowledgement: / ,

State of N , County of (7 0035 on *// /3//5 , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s’he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

/
i

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

LINDA BLANCHETTE, Notary Public
My Commission Expires September 18, 2018

CA/DHHS/100213 V
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Planning Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,

substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dat&l L/ ql/lg N;éy U\fﬁu\\/
Title: Wf\“‘( X /

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/M100213 .
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Family Planning

Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

Total Salary/Wages 50,208.00

50.208.00

Employee Benefits 16,066.59

16,066.59

Consultants

nal B I B

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

5. Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

~

Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing/Communications

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/,bgreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
Telephone $ -
$
$
$
3
3
$
$
$
$
$
$
3
$
$
$
$

TOTAL 66,274.59

b A AR R d R R Kool Ry R R A Rz ROy B R R A R Ry Ry R A Ry g B Y Ry R Ry R D R A R A R Y 72N R Y

$
$
$
$
3
$
$
$
3
$
$
$
$
3
$
$
$ -
$
$
$
$
3
3
3
$
$
3
$
3
$
$
$
$

66,274.59 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Family Planning
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17

50,208.00

Total Salary/Wages 50,208.00

Employee Benefits 16,066.59 16,066.59

Consultants

Hloinf=

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

5. Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy
Medical
Office

6. Travel
Occupancy

~

8. Current Expenses

Postage
Subscriptions
Audit and Legal
Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing/Communications

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

|l |p || |B|p ||| R B | |H BB | |A PR |R|A BB | P PR PR BB |H
)

$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
3 $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
Telephone $ - $ -
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
3$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $

TOTAL 66,274.59 66,274.59 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: Family Planning-TANF
Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 9,365.00 | $ $ 9,365.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 2,996.0018% - $ 2,996.00

3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - 3 -
Purchase/Depreciation 3 - $ - $ -

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy 3 - $ - $ -
Medical 3 - 3 - $ -
Office $ - $ - $ -

6. Travel $ - $ - $ -

7. Occupancy $ - 3 - $ -

8. Current Expenses 3 - $ - 3 -
Telephone 3 - 3 - 3 -
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - 3 - 3 -
Insurance $ - 3 - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -

9. Software $ - $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - 3 -

11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - 3 -

12._Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - 3 - $ -

$ - 3 - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 12,361.00 | $ - $ 12,361.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS K
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Exhibit B-1
Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: Family Planning-TANF
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 9,365.00 | $ $ 9,365.00

2. Employee Benefits $ 2,996.00| % - $ 2,996.00

3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -

5. Supplies: $ - 3 - $ -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ - $ - $ -

6. Travel $ - $ - $ -

7. Occupancy $ - $ - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone 3$ - $ - $ -
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $ -
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - 3 - $ -

9. Software $ - $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - $ -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - 3 - $ -

$ - $ - 3 -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
3 - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 12,361.00 | $ - $ 12,361.00 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS \\)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ‘K y
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materiais, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shali not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Emplo yment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistiebiower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the F ederal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’'s performance on an ongoing basis
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shail
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPQSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Renewal:
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewal Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to General Provisions Contractor Initials K
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does notinclude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G- Amendment #1 ’K
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G — Amendment #1

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

/ | / \
4/\3 )i &_:;ng (—oNol (12D
z 7

Dat{ Name:
: Title:

Exhibit G- Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | - Amendment #1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected heaith information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
20089.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(qg).

j.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /
3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials i\
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“‘Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
[l For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PH! in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

/
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’'s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’'s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials KC
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

p Ol CA " Qbm ﬁw\q oot w@

The State _ Na of the (.tq’f or /
Signature of Authorized Representative jn}ture of Wonzed Reprezentatwe

/l?.y®/4 Dyper fs1id E u&k

Name of Authorized Representative Néxne of Authorized Représentative
/ﬁ
\oreav (Lo (L2 Buseanks O %ﬁ R
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authdrized Representative
</l /(5 /s

Date D7( /
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State of Netu Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed December 14, 1979. I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 8" day of April, A.D. 2015

Zy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Robert Peichat, do hereby certify that:
1. I am a duly elected Officer of Coos County Family Health Services

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Agency
duly held on February 19, 2015:

RESOLVED: That the President, Vice-President, Treasure or Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized on behalf
of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of the 13" day
of April, 2015.

4. Kenneth E. Gordon is the duly elected Chief Executive Officer of the Agency.

(Signature of Robert’Pelchat, Board President)
STATE OF New Hampshire
County of Coos

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 13™ day of April, 2015.

By Robert Pelchat

Y

{Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

TARY SEAL
(NOTARY SEAL) LINDA BLANCHETTE, Notary Pubic

My Commission Expires September 18, 2018

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



STATE CONTRACT RESOLUTIONS:

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into any and all contracts, amendments, renewals,
revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its Department
of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, and/or Division of Community-

Based Care Services.

RESOLVED: That the President, Vice-President, Treasurer, or Chief Executive Officer is hereby
authorized on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State and to execute any
and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or

modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate.

(State Contract Resolutions)
CCFHS Board Approved 2/19/15
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

7/16/2014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

policy{les} must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
FIAI/Cross Insurance
1100 Elm Street

CONTACT 3 yian Vaudreuil

[ FAX

PHONE . (603) 669-3218 [Ake, Moy; (603) 645-4331

_&QQABE& vvaudreuil@crossagency.com

INSURER(S] AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 msurer A :Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED msurer B ‘Philadelphia Ins Co
Coos County Family Health Services insurer ¢ MEMIC Indemnity Company 11030

133 Pleasant Street INSURER D :
INSURER E :
Berlin NH 03570-2006 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:14~-15 All lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
i TRDDLSUBR

LIR TYPE OF INSURANCE misalwvg POLICY NUMBER RNt | RO YT L LmrTs
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY | PREMISES (Ea occumence) | $ 1,000,000
A qummos OCCUR PHPK1197781 7/1/2014  {1/1/2015 | yEpEXP (Any one person) | § 20,000
" PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | s 1,000,000
| GENERAL AGGREGATE [ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
e[ 122 [x]en
POUICY ECT X {i6e 13
AUTCMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea accident] T ls 1,000,000
A X | anv auto BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
| :bl:r 82¢NED ES%QULED IPEPK1197781 7/1/2014 {7/1/2015 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
. NON-OWNED PROPE
| | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS '58,55 RTY DAMAGE s
Uninsured molorist Bisingle | ¥ 1,000,000
"X [umereLaias | X | occun EACH OCCURRENCE s 2,000,000
B EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
oep | X | sevenmions 10, 00 PHUB465302 7/1/2014 {1/1/2015 s
C | WORKERS COMPENSATION 102802240 X | W STATU: G
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN [mgx L.M15| ‘ ER.
8;4: gggmﬁsggsjgguneoggecurwe NIA (3a.) NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 3 1,000,000
(’u..r‘mtory In NH) All officers included 7/1/2014  [1/1/2015 |y i5EASE - EAEMPLOYEH $ 1,000,000
1t yos, describe unc
Dées?:m;?ﬂ)ﬁ gchgpgaAfnoNs baow EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
B |Employee Dishonesty PHSD944097 7/1/2014  [7/1/2015 | (imit $1,000,000

State of NH Department of Health & Human Services is

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required}

includad as additional insured with respects to the

CGL as per written contract. Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health & Human Services
29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED N
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

T Oz

Dwayna Davis/JSC

(3
ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INSN28 2n1nnsy o1

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Tha ACNRN nama and Innn ara ronictorad marke nf ACORD




54 Willow Street | 33 Pleasant Street

COOS Berlin, NH 03570-1800 Berlin, NH 03570-2006

COU n Ph: 1-603-752-3669 Ph: 1-603-752-2040
Fax: 1-603-752-3027 Fax 1-603-752-7797

qully mqlth 2 Broadway Street 59 Page Hill Road
Gorham, NH 03581-1597 Berlin, NH 03570-3568

= S E R\/I E S Ph: 1-603-466-2741 Ph: 1-603-752-2900
= ( : Fax: 1-603-466-2953 Fax: 1-603-752-3727

_ MISSION OF
COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

Coods County Family Health Services is a community-based organization providing innovative,
personalized, comprehensive health care and social services of the highest quality to everyone,
regardless of economic status.

(Mission/Vision Statement)
Board Approved 1/15/15

RESPONSE (603) 752-5679 « FAX (603) 752-3027 www.coosfamilyhealth.org

This institution is an equal opportunity provider, and employer. People helping pecple TTTTTTTY
The United Way




COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
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BRAD BORBIDGE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
197 LOUDON ROAD, SUITE 350
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE 603/224-0849
FAX 603/224-2397

Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coos County Family Health
Services, Inc. which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. as of June
30, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 11, 2014, on our consideration of the Association’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important
for assessing the results of our audit.

ANAYS

Concord, New Hampshire
December 11, 2014



COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
ASSETS
2014 2013
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 371,527 310,353
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowances of
for uncollectible accounts of $218,000 and $195,000
at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively 978,555 435,123
Grants receivable 143,394 242,150
Due from third party payers 40,105 31,737
Prepaid expenses 91,036 102,267
Total Current Assets 1,624,617 1,121,630
Assets Limited As To Use 651,351 625,069
Beneficial Interest In Perpetual Trust Held By Others 19,973 18,274
Property And Equipment, Net 2,619,138 2,100,494
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,915,079 3,865,467
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 257,195 83,220
Accrued payroll and related expenses 700,765 680,503
Due to third party payers - 21,057
Deferred revenue 26,724 60,282
Current maturities of long-term debt 59,139 79,892
Total Current Liabilities 1,043,823 924,954
Long-term Debt, Less Current Maturities 715,850 902,002
Total Liabilities 1,759,673 1,826,956
Net Assets:
Unrestricted 2,392,640 1,153,541
Temporarily restricted 740,809 864,280
Permanently restricted 21,957 20,690
Total Net Assets 3,155,406 2,038,511
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 4,915,079 3,865,467

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Operating Revenue:
Patient service revenue $ 7,524,240 5,817,776
Provision for bad debts (272,094) (269,804)
Net patient service revenue 7,252,146 5,547,972
Grants, contracts, and contributions 2,750,768 2,712,601
Other operating revenue 521,180 466,133
Interest income 3,008 3,134
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 278,480 219,146
Total Operating Revenue 10,805,582 8,948,986
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 7,210,447 6,688,068
Other operating expenses 2,487,345 1,707,879
Depreciation 235,073 227,921
Interest expense 33,618 42,629
Total Operating Expenses 9,966,483 8,666,497
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 839,099 282,489
Grant Received For Capital Acquisition 400,000 -
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS $ 1,239,099 282,489

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Unrestricted Net Assets:
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 839,099 $ 282,489
Grant received for capital acquisition 400,000 -
Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets 1,239,099 282,489
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Grants, contracts, and contributions 153,310 47,035
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (278,480) (219,146)
Capital appreciation on endowment funds - 530
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in
perpetual trust held by others 1,699 274
Decrease in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets (123,471) (171,307)
Permanently Restricted Net Assets:
Contributions 1,267 2,113
Increase in Permanently Restricted Net Assets 1,267 2,113
Change in Net Assets 1,116,895 113,295
Net Assets, Beginning Of Year 2,038,511 1,925,216
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 3,155,406 $ 2,038,511

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets 1,116,895 113,295
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Bad debt expense 272,094 269,804
Depreciation 235,073 227,921
Grant received for capital acquisition (400,000) -
Restricted grants, contracts, and contributions (154,577) (49,148)
Capital appreciation on endowment funds - (530)
Change in fair value of beneficial interest in
perpetual trust held by others (1,699) (274)
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Patient accounts receivable (815,526) (328,193)
Grants receivable 98,756 5,397
Due from third party payers (8,368) 9,263
Prepaid expenses 11,231 (39,682)
Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 173,975 19,743
Accrued payroll and related expenses 20,262 27,221
Due to third party payers (21,057) 21,057
Deferred revenue (33,558) (733,552)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 493,501 (457,678)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Decrease in assets limited as to use 128,295 57,351
Increase in beneficial interest in perpetual trust
held by others - (18,000)
Capital acquisitions (753,717) (91,489)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (625,422) (52,138)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Grant received for capital acquisition 400,000 -
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 179,000 -
Payments on long-term debt (385,905) (85,369)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 193,095 (85,369)




COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow
Information:
Cash paid for interest

2014 2013
61,174 (595,185)
310,353 905,538
$ 371,527 310,353
$ 33,618 42,629

(See accompanying notes to these financial statements)
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc., “the Organization”, is a non-stock, not-for-
profit corporation organized in New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally
Qualified Health Center (FQHC) which provides outpatient health care and disease
prevention services to residents of Coos County, New Hampshire through direct services,
referral and advocacy.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. As a public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income
taxes on income earned in accordance with its tax exempt purpose. Unrelated business
income is subject to state and federal income tax. Management has evaluated the
Organization’s tax positions and concluded that the Organization has no unrelated
business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial
statements. Management believes the Agency is no longer subject to income tax
examinations for years prior to 2011.

Use of Estimates

The Organization uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported revenues
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, petty cash funds and
investments with a maturity of three months or less, and exclude amounts whose use is
limited by Board designation or other arrangements under trust agreements or with
third-party payers.
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. In
evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes its past
history and identifies trends for each funding source. Management regularly reviews
data about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been
exhausted are applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts. The
Organization has not changed its methodology for estimating the allowance for
doubtful accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts at June 30, 2014 and 2013
follows:

2014 2013
Balance, beginning of year $ 195000 $ 187,000
Provision for bad debts 272,094 269,804
Write-offs (249,094) (261,804)
Balance, end of year $ 218,000 $ 195,000

The increase in the allowance for uncollectible accounts is primarily related to the
increase in patient accounts receivable balances.

Assets Limited As to Use

Assets limited as to use include assets set aside as a reserve fund under loan agreements
for repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loans and assets
designated by the board of directors and donor restricted grants and contributions.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts Held by Others

During 2013, the Organization became a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at
The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation, “the Foundation”, by transferring $18,000
of endowment assets to be held and administered by the Foundation for the benefit of
the Organization. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing the fund,
property contributed to the Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the Organization. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation
makes distributions from the fund to the Organization. The distributions are
approximately 4.03% of the market value of the fund per year. The Organization’s
interest in the fund is recognized as permanently restricted net assets with changes in fair
value reported as temporarily restricted net assets.
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Maintenance repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and
betterments are capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method and
is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions and grants for which donor-
imposed restrictions have not been met. Assets are released from restrictions as
expenditures are made in line with restrictions called for under the terms of the donor.
Restricted contributions and grants for capital acquisitions received prior to July 1, 2013
are released from restriction over the life of the related asset acquired in accordance
with the reporting of related asset’s depreciation expense. Restricted contributions and
grants released are reported as unrestricted revenue and support.

Permanently restricted net assets include net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the
donors of these assets permit the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on
related investments for general or specific purposes.

Patient Service Revenue

The Organization has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to
the Organization at amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the
payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

¢ Medicare -- Primary care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are
reimbursed under cost reimbursement methodology. The Organization is
reimbursed at a tentative encounter rate with final settlement determined after
submission of annual cost reports by the Organization and audits thereof by the
Medicare fiscal intermediary. The Organization’s Medicare cost reports have been
retroactively settled by the Medicare Administrative Contractor through June 30,
2012.

o Other payers -- The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with
Medicaid certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance
Organizations and preferred provider Organizations. The basis for payment to
the Organization under these agreements includes prospectively determined
rates per visit, discounts from established charges and capitated arrangements
for primary care services on a per member, per month basis.
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to
future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action
including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The
Organization believes that it is in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations. However, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
could change by a material amount in the near term. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or
payable are included in net patient service revenues in the year that such amounts
become known. The differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts
subsequently determined to be recoverable from third-party payers increased patient
service revenues by approximately $15,000 and $103,000 for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Organization, as a FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program.
The program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHC's and
other identified entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local
pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible
patients of the Organization and bill Medicare and commercial insurances on behalf of
the Organization. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies is remitted to the
Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. Gross revenue generated from
the program is included in patient service revenue. Contracted expenses incurred
related to the program are included in other operating expenses.

Donated Goods and Services

Various program help and support for the daily operations of the Organization’s
Response Program were provided by the general public of the surrounding
communities. The donated services have not been reflected in the accompanying
financial statements because they did not meet the criteria for recognition.
Management estimates the fair value of donated services received but not recognized as
revenues was $102,510 and $92,187 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The Response Program also receives donated supplies to be used for
program activities. The fair value of supplies recognized as revenues was $5,122 and
$3,606 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Donated Goods and Services (Continued)

The Organization receives samples of medical supplies that are distributed to patients.
The donated supplies have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements
because they did not meet the criteria for recognition.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the
date the promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as
either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as
received are reflected as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial
statements.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The statement of operations includes the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including
assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purposes of acquiring such assets).

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE AND BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL
TRUST HELD BY OTHERS

Assets limited as to use and beneficial interest in perpetual trusts consisted of the
following at June 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013

Board designated:

Working capital (Federal 330 monies) $ 507870 $ 505,025
United States Department of Agriculture

Rural Development loan agreements 29,640 36,589
Donor restricted:

Temporarily 111,857 81,039

Permanently 21,957 20,690

Total $ 671,324 $ 643,343
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NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE AND BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL
TRUST HELD BY OTHERS (CONTINUED)

2014 2013
Assets limited as to use $ 651,351 $ 625,069
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust
held by others 19,973 18,274
Total $ 671324 $ 643,343

Assets limited as to use are comprised of cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents included in assets limited as to use are not considered cash and cash
equivalents for cash flow purposes.

Financial accounting standards established a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the
inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad
levels as follows:

e Level 1 inputs - quoted prices traded daily in an active market.

e Level 2 inputs - other than quoted prices for active markets that are traded
less frequently than daily.

o Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs.

The fair value of the beneficial interest in perpetual trust held by others is measured on
non-recurring basis using level 3 inputs. The fair value is determined annually based on
the fair value of the assets in the trust as represented by the Foundation’s management.
The Organization’s management determines the reasonableness of the methodology by
evaluating market developments.

The following table sets forth a summary of the change in the fair value of the level 3
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts held by others for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013.

2014 2013
Balance, beginning of year $ 18,274 $ -
Contributions - 18,000
Change in fair value 2,527 1,069
Distributions (706) (703)
Fees 122 (92)
Balance, end of year $ 19973 § 18274
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NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The cost and accumulated depreciation of property and equipment at June 30, 2014 and
2013 follows:

2014 2013
Land and improvements $ 153,257 $ 153,257
Building and leasehold improvements 3,176,922 2,603,291
Furniture and equipment 1,752,474 1,572,389
Total Cost 5,082,653 4,328,937
Less accumulated depreciation 2,463 515 2,228 443
Property And Equipment, Net $ 2619138  $ 2,100,494

In 2010 the Organization made renovations to certain buildings with Federal grant
funding under the ARRA - Capital Improvement Program. In 2014 the Organization also
made renovations to certain buildings with Federal grant funding under the ACA -
Capital Development Program. In accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of
Federal Interest (NFI) is required to be filed in the appropriate official records of the
jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is designed to notify any prospective
buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest in the real property
acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not be used for any
purpose inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and applicable
regulations; that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral
without the written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal
Assistance Management, Health Resources and Services Administration (OFAM, HRSA);
and that the property may not be sold or transferred to another party without the written
permission of the Associate Administrator of OFAM and HRSA.

NOTE4 LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $500,000 line of credit with a local banking institution through
December 2014. The line of credit is secured by all assets. The interest rate at June 30, 2014
was 4.75% (Prime plus 1.5%). The Organization is also required to pay 0.25% monthly on
the unused portion of the line. There was no outstanding balance at June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.
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NOTE5 LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2014 and 2013 long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the
following:
2014 2013

Note payable, Rural Economic and Community
Development, payable in monthly installments
of $1,285, including interest at 3.375%, due
May 2042, secured by real estate. $ 277,878 $ 283,846

Note payable, Rural Economic and Community
Development, payable in monthly installments
of $2,741, including interest at 4.5%, due
November 2028, secured by all business assets. 347,376 364,127

Note payable, New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Authority (NH HEFA),
payable in monthly installments of $3,060
including interest at 1.00%, due August 2018,
secured by real estate. 149,735 -

Note payable, Citizens Bank, payable in variable
monthly installments of $4,723 plus interest,
3.25% as of June 30, 2014, due February 2018,
secured by real estate. The note was paid
in full in May 2014 - 209,722

Note payable, Rural Economic and Community
Development, payable in monthly installments
of $2,268, including interest at 6.125%, due
November 2018, secured by real estate. The
note was refinanced by the NH HEFA loan
in August 2013. - 124,199

Total long-term debt 774,989 981,894
Less current maturities 59,139 79,892

Long-term Debt Excluding
Current Maturities $ 715850 $ 902,002

-16-



NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter
follows:

Year Ending Long-term
June 30, Debt
2015 $ 59,139
2016 60,514
2017 61,937
2018 63,411
2019 34,170
Thereafter 495,818
Total $ 774,989

NOTE 6 TEMPORARILY AND PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily and permanently restricted net assets consisted of the following at June 30,
2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Temporarily restricted:
Specific purpose $ 109884 $ 79,703
Expended capital improvements 628,952 783,241
Endowment earnings 1,973 1,336
Total $ 740809 $ 864,280
Permanently restricted:
Endowment $ 21957 5 20,690

NOTE 7 ENDOWMENTS

The Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies
as a donor restricted endowment (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor restricted
endowment gifts and (c) accumulations to the donor restricted endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund.
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NOTE7 ENDOWMENTS (CONTINUED)

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure

by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed
by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in

making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment
funds:

(1)  The duration and preservation of the fund

(2)  The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment
fund

(3)  General economic conditions

(4)  The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(5)  The expected total return from income

(6)  Other resources of the Organization

The following summarizes changes in endowment assets for years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013:

Temporarily Permanently
Restricted Restricted

Balance June 30, 2012 $ 530 $ 18,577
Contributions - 2,113
Investment income, net of fees 532 -
Change in fair value of beneficial interest

in perpetual trust held by others 274 -

Balance June 30, 2013 1,336 20,690
Contributions - 1,267
Appropriation of endowment assets

for expenditures (1,062) -
Change in fair value of beneficial interest
in perpetual trust held by others 1,699 -
Balance June 30, 2014 $ 1,973 $ 21957

Endowment assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and a beneficial interest in
perpetual trust held by others. Endowment interest income earned is spent at the
discretion of the Organization’s Board of Directors.
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NOTE 8 PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

A summary of patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
follows:

2014 2013
Medical patient service revenue $ 5,729,532 $ 5,817,776
340B pharmacy revenue 1,794,708 -
Total Patient Service Revenue $ 7,524,240 $ 5,817,776

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity
care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the
Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity
care, the revenue is recorded net of the free care allowance. The Organization estimates
the costs associated with providing charity care by calculating the ratio of total cost to
total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges
associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost of
providing services to patients under the Organization charity care policy amounted to
$353,281 and $401,411 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received
through local community support and federal and state grants.

NOTE 9 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The Organization provides various services to residents within its geographic location.

Expenses related to providing these services for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
follows:

2014 2013
Program services $ 8,751,900 $ 7,532,513
Administrative and general 1,214,583 1,133,984
Total $ 9966483 $ 8,666497
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NOTE 10 MALPRACTICE INSURANCE

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as a FQHC under the
Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice
insurance, on a claims-made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the
FTCA. As of the year ended June 30, 2014, there were no known malpractice claims
outstanding which in the opinion of management, will be settled for amounts in excess of
both FTCA and gap insurance coverage nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents
which require loss accrual. The Organization intends to renew the additional medical

malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage
will be available.

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section
401(k) that cover substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $160,026
and $145,048 to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 12 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions in excess of $250,000,
which exceeds federal depository insurance limits. The financial institutions have a
strong credit rating and management believes the credit risk related to these deposits is
minimal.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are local
residents and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The mix of medical patient
service revenue receivables from patients and third-party payers at June 30, 2014 follows:

Medicare 32%
Medicaid 13%
Anthem Blue Cross 17%
Other 38%

Total 100%
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NOTE 13 PATIENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

The Organization acts as a conduit for pharmaceutical company patient assistance
programs. The Organization provides assistance to patients in applying and distributing
prescription drugs under the programs. The value of the prescription drugs distributed
by the Organization to patients is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.
The Organization estimates that the value of prescription drugs distributed by the
Organization for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $2,914,948 and $2,754,348,
respectively.

NOTE 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management

through December 11, 2014, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Pass-Through
Federal Grantor Federal Entity
Pass-through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct programs:
Health Center Cluster
Consolidated Health Centers 93.224 $ 1,442,547
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for
Capital Development in Health Centers 93.526 400,000
Total Health Center Cluster 1,842,547
Pass-through programs from:
State of New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services
Primary Care 93.994 102-500731/90080000 16,263
Neuromotor Disabilities Clinical Program 93.994 561-500911/93001000 6,305
Total Maternal and Child Health Services 22,568
State of New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services
Family Planning 93.217 102-500734/90080203 32,014
Breast and Cervical Cancer Prevention 93.283 102-500731/90080081 28,584
Family Planning - TANF 93.558 502-500891/45130203 12,361
Oral Health 93.991 102-500731/90072003 43,359
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence:
Statewide Program to Improve Response
to Domestic Violence 93.671 60,433
Total Pass-through Programs 199,319
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 2,041,866

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Pass-Through
Federal Grantor Federal Entity
Pass-through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct programs:
Transitional Housing Assistance Grants for
Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence,
Stalking or Sexual Assault 16.736 32,915
Pass-through programs from:
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence :
Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 12,467
Victims of Crime Act 16.575 172,945
Total U.S. Department of Justice 218,327
Total Federal Awards, All Programs $ 2,260,193

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, “the Schedule”, includes
the federal grant activity of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.., “the Organization”,
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2014. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular
A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule, if any, represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to
amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers
are presented where available.
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BRAD BORBIDGE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
197 LOUDON ROAD, SUITE 350
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE 603/224-0849
FAX 603/224-2397

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. which comprise the
balance sheets as of June 30, 2014 , and the related statements of operations, changes in
net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ANAYS

Concord, New Hampshire
December 11, 2014
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BRAD BORBIDGE, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
197 LOUDON ROAD, SUITE 350
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

TELEPHONE 603/224-0849
FAX 603/224-2397

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Board of Directors
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The Organization’s major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-
133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the Organization’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing

based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

ANAYD

Concord, New Hampshire
December 11, 2014
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

A. Financial Statements

1. Type of auditor’s report issued
2. Internal control over financial reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified?
¢ Significant deficiency(s) identified?
3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

B. Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified?
¢ Significant deficiency(s) identified?

2. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133?

C. Major Programs

Health Center Cluster
Consolidated Health Centers
Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for Capital
Development in Health Centers

D. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs

E. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

-30-
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No

None Reported
No

No
None Reported

Unmodified

93.224

93.526

$300,000
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Section II - Findings and Questioned Costs

A. Financial Statements
There were no financial statement findings for the year ended June 30, 2014.
B. Federal Awards

There were no federal awards findings for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Section III ~ Prior Findings and Questioned Costs for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

There were no prior financial statement or federal award audit findings for the year ended
June 30, 2013.
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KENNETH E. GORDON

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY

2/2015 — Present Coos County Family Health Services, 54 Willow Street, Berlin, NH
03570 (603) 752-3669 ext. 4018 kgordon/wccths.org

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (2015 — Present)

e Responsible for the successful administration and overall direction of a $10.2M
Community Health Center, including 6 sites and 10 programs. Major administrative
responsibilities include: oversight of budget preparation and fiscal management,
development and implementation of long and short-term planning, personnel
management, grantsmanship and public relations. Includes extensive contact with the
public and government officials as well as ongoing communications with 14 member
volunteer Board of Directors, 120 paid staff and numerous volunteers.

ADMINISTRATOR: North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, New Hampshire
(8/13 - 2/15)

e Provided administrative leadership of the North Country Accountable Care
Organization, a non-profit entity comprised of four community health centers
working in collaboration to improve the health and well-being of North Country
residents.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Area Agency on Aging for Northeastern Vermont, St. Johnsbury,
Vermont (9/02 — 7/13)

e Provided administrative leadership to a private, non-profit human service agency
serving older adults and family caregivers.

e Financial management of the organization’s budget.

e Supervision of clinical and administrative staff.

SOCIAL SERVICES COORDINATOR: Caledonia Home Health Care and Hospice, St
Johnsbury, Vermont (8/97 - 8/02)

e Provided medical social work to individuals and families receiving home care and
hospice services.

e Supervised and coordinated the work of four master’s level staff members.

e Provided consultation to medical staff regarding psycho-social issues.

e Participated in discharge planning with other social service and health agencies.



Kenneth E. Gordon Resume Page 2

CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICE WORKER: Vermont Department of Social &
Rehabilitation Services, St. Johnsbury, Vermont (5/96 - 8/97)

Coordinated multidisciplinary treatment teams providing services to families.
Psychosocial assessment & case planning.

Care Management (Medicaid reimbursable).

Individual and family counseling.

Placement and supervision of children in foster care.

Preparation of court reports.

ADOPTION SOCIAL WORKER: Vermont Department of Social & Rehabilitation Services,
St. Johnsbury & Newport, Vermont (4/90 -9/94)

Recruitment, training and assessment of adoptive applicants.

Placement and supervision of abused and neglected children with adoptive families.
Counseling with birth parents considering the voluntary relinquishment of a child.
Consultation with casework staff regarding adoption issues.

Preparation of adoption homes studies and probate court reports.

FOSTER CARE COORDINATOR: Vermont Department of Social & Rehabilitation Services,
St. Johnsbury, Vermont (12/86 - 4/90)

e Managed a foster care program serving approximately fifty children.
¢ Fiscal administration, program planning and evaluation.
e Curriculum development and in-service training.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR: Upward Bound Project, Lyndon State College (9/85 - 12/86)

Co-directed a college preparatory program for disadvantaged youth.
Formulated program goals and evaluated outcomes.

Co-authored a successful federal grant proposal totaling more than $400.00.
Training, supervision and evaluation of staff.

Academic and career counseling.

EDUCATION

MASTERS OF SOCIAL WORK (M.S.W.) May 1996. University of Vermont
¢ 1* year field internship: Reach Up Program, Vermont Department of Social Welfare
e 2" year clinical internship: Fletcher Allen Health Care, Inpatient Psychiatric Unit

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (B.S.) Behavioral Science and Special Education. May, 1984.
Lyndon State College, Lyndonville, Vermont

REFERENCES

Available upon request



MELISSA M FRENETTE, CPA

FUNCTIONAL SUMMARY

Certified Public Accountant with over twelve years of experience in public accounting. Experienced
in training and supervising staff, managing multiple on-going engagements and facilitating timely
income tax filing and reporting for firm clients.

EMPLOYMENT

2007-Present  Coos County Family Health Services
Chief Financial Officer

Oversee the general operation of the Finance and Purchasing Departments

2004-2007

Berlin, NH

Analyzes available data and suggests way to improve agency’s self sufficiency

Prepares budgets, reports and studies for CCFHS and all funding sources

Takes a leadership role in the annual financial audit

Petforms employee evaluations and assigns tasks as appropriate

Attends applicable board and committee meetings

Possesses a through working knowledge of cost reporting requirements

Senior Staff Accountant

Conducted financial statement audits for multiple entities
Prepared audited, reviewed, and compiled financial statements
Compiled and prepared loan package information

Consulted in business entity choices

Prepared personal and business income tax returns

Prepared personal and business income tax projections
Prepared projected financial statements and cash flows
Consulted in inventory cost methods

Trained clients in use of accounting software

1995-2004 Driscoll & Company, PLLC
Senior Staff Accountant/ Office Manager

" EDUCATION

Supervised and trained office staff members

Managed work flow for deadline achievement

Installed and maintained accounting and tax software
Prepared audited, reviewed, and compiled financial statements
Prepared payroll tax returns

Conducted 401(K) plan audits and financial statements

Malone, Dirubbo & Company/Phillips & AssociatesLincoln, NH

Berlin, NH

1992-1995 Plymouth State University

B.S. Accounting, minor Mathematics
Graduated cum laude

Plymouth, NH




Patricia A. Couture

Work History
1983- Present  Coos County Family Health Services, Berlin, NH.

1991- Present: Chief Operating Officer/RN:  Responsible for the day-to-day
administration and overall aclivities of the clinical services in conjunction with the
Medical Director and Chiel Executive Officer. Major administrative responsibilities
include: implement and monitor quality improvement programs; hire, train, supervise and
evaluate employees; assist Chief Executive Officer with grant proposals; assist Medical
Director with clinical policies and puidelines; perform medical record audits; implement
all clinical schedules, and be familiar with all outpatient nursing functions. Responsible
for the overall direction, coordination and evaluation of Nursing, Medical Records,
Pharmacy, Medical Support, Laboratory and Maintenance Services.

2011- Present: Corporate Compliance Officer: Responsible for the operation and
management of the Compliance Program and reports to the CEO and Board of Directors.

1986-1991 Site Coordinator: Responsible for the coordination and evaluation of three
programs: Family Planning/Women’s Health, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, and HIV
Counseling and Testing in three communities - Berlin, Lancaster and Colebrook.
Administrative responsibilities included: trained. supervised and evaluated employees;
assisted Executive Director with agency policies, procedure and protocols; and provided
community education. Clinical responsibilities included: patient counseling. education,
follow-up,  documentation, laboratory  services, referrals and  nursing
functions/procedures.

1983-1986 Clinical Nurse/Counselor: Responsible {or outpatient clinical services and
Family Planning/Women’s Iealth counseling services.

1976-1983 St. Vincent de Panl Nursing Home, Berlin, NH.

LPN Charge Nurse: Nursing responsibilities included: responsible for 29 residents,
supervised nurse’s aides, prepared verbal/written reports, administration of medication,
complete nursing care, transcribed physician orders, and documentation; nursing process,
assessment. nursing diagnosis, care plan, outpatient goals, outcomes and nursing
interventions.

1976-1977 Androscoggin Valley Hospital Berlin, NH
Private Duty Nurse: Complete nursing care.



1 FORM NUMBER P37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Family Planning
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractf‘or hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PRO;VISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. i
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 29 Hazen Drive
Division of Public Health Services Concord, NH 03301-6504
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.

54§wiuow Street
Berlin, NH 03570
:
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